
 

The Mayor reserves the right to change the order of items to be considered by the Council at their meeting.  No new items will be heard after 11:00 p.m., unless 

approved by the Council. 

 
City of Newberg: City Council Agenda (March 21, 2016) Page 1 of 2 

 
 
 

 
AMENDED 

CITY COUNCIL AGENDA 
MARCH 21, 2016, 7:00 PM 

PUBLIC SAFETY BUILDING TRAINING ROOM (401 EAST THIRD STREET) 
 

Mission Statement 
The City of Newberg serves its citizens, promotes safety, and maintains a healthy community. 

Vision Statement 
Newberg will cultivate a healthy, safe environment where citizens can work, play and grow in a friendly, dynamic and 

diverse community valuing partnerships and opportunity. 

 
I. CALL MEETING TO ORDER   

 
 
II. ROLL CALL 

 
 
III. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

  
 
IV. PRESENTATIONS 
 1. Pat Haight 
 

2. Cultural District Report        Pages 1-26 
 
V. CITY MANAGER’S REPORT 
 
 
 
VI.  PUBLIC COMMENTS 
           (30 minutes maximum, which may be extended at the Mayor’s discretion, with an opportunity to speak for no more 

than 5 minutes per speaker allowed) 
 
 
VII.  CONSENT CALENDAR 
 1. Minutes from February 16        Pages 27-31 
 

2. Resolution 2016-3267, A Resolution authorizing the City Manager   Pages 32-34 
Pro Tem to appoint recommended candidate to a position in the Library 

 
 
 
VIII. PUBLIC HEARING - LEGISLATIVE  

1. Ordinance 2016-2798, An Ordinance amending the Newberg Development  Pages 35-87 
Code regarding Recreational Marijuana producers and processors;  
and declaring an emergency 

 
 

 
 
 
Agenda continued on next page 
  



 

The Mayor reserves the right to change the order of items to be considered by the Council at their meeting.  No new items will be heard after 11:00 p.m., unless 

approved by the Council. 

 
City of Newberg: City Council Agenda (March 21, 2016) Page 2 of 2 

 
IX. NEW BUSINESS  

1. Resolution 2016-3262, A Resolution designating the two days of the Relay for  Pages 88-90 
Life for Newberg event as Festival Days in order to permit the installation of  
flags in the City Right-of-Way  

  
 2. Consider whether to continue or not continue discussions with Sportsman  Pages 91-185 

             Airpark for the City to be a sponsor for the Federal Aviation Administration  

            Airport Development Rights Pilot Program 
 
 
 3.  Council Priorities Timelines       Pages 186-195 
 
  
  
 
X. COUNCIL BUSINESS 

1. Information on Community Development Block grant application  Pages 196-198 
 
2. Information on January Financial statements     Pages 199-207 
 
3. Information on Council Calendar      Pages 208-209 

  
 

XI. ADJOURNMENT 
 

 
 

  
 
   
ACCOMMODATION OF PHYSICAL IMPAIRMENTS: In order to accommodate persons with physical impairments, please notify the City Recorder’s Office of any 
special physical or language accommodations you may need as far in advance of the meeting as possible and no later than two business days prior to the meeting.  To 
request these arrangements, please contact the City Recorder at (503) 537-1283. For TTY services please dial 711. 

Council accepts comments on agenda items during the meeting.  Fill out a form identifying the item you wish to speak on prior to the agenda item beginning 
and turn it into the City Recorder. Speakers who wish the Council to consider written material are encouraged to submit written information in writing by 
12:00 p.m. (noon) the day of the meeting. 



Newberg Cultural District
Annual Report February/March, 2016

3/21/16
PAGE 1 



3/21/16
PAGE 2 



An Intergovernmental Agreement (IGA) 

between the City of Newberg and the 

Chehalem Park & Recreation District 

was signed in 2013 establishing the 

Newberg Cultural District and 

delegating to the NCD Executive Board 

the management of the District

3/21/16
PAGE 3 



The Newberg Cultural District    

Executive  Board 2016

City of Newberg Representative:  Tony Rourke 
(Appointed in 2015)

Neighborhood Representative:  Robert Soppe
(Re-elected by neighbors in October, 2015)

Chehalem Park & Recreation:   Don Clements 

Chehalem Cultural Center:  Rob Dailey

Newberg Public Library :   Leah Griffith, chair

Usually meets on the 1st Tuesday of each month,        
6:30 pm,  at the Chehalem Cultural Center
(In July & August meets on alternate days due to Tunes on Tuesday)

3/21/16
PAGE 4 



The NCD Board is charged with managing 

the public outside areas of the  

Newberg Cultural District

It does not regulate indoor uses of the 

Newberg Public Library or the 

Chehalem Cultural Center, however     

activities within those establishments may 

impact District activities 

3/21/16
PAGE 5 



The NCD Board:

• Develops rules of operation

• Reserves events (delegates the process to the CCC)

• Approves design elements, including 

street furniture, signage and other 

elements that define the district 

• Coordinates with the City and CPRD for 

maintenance and construction activities

3/21/16
PAGE 6 



What did the NCD Board do in 2015?

• Reserved space for a variety of events

Tunes on Tuesday
Farmer’s Market
Camellia Festival 
Lavender Festival
Public Works Day 
High school reunion 
Library Events 
Christmas Tree Lighting 

3/21/16
PAGE 7 



Tunes on Tuesday 

3/21/16
PAGE 8 



Camellia Festival 

3/21/16
PAGE 9 



Public Works Day 

3/21/16
PAGE 10 



Library Summer Reading Programs

3/21/16
PAGE 11 



Christmas Tree Lighting 

3/21/16
PAGE 12 



What did the NCD Board do in 2015? 

• Held Monthly Meetings:  Public and Noticed

January February -- Annual Meeting 

March April 

May June

July August 

September October

November December*

* No Meeting Held

3/21/16
PAGE 13 



What did the NCD Board do in 2015? 

• Parking Signs for Tunes on Tuesday 

– 8 residents requested signs 

– Positive Responses

– No other parking complaints 

3/21/16
PAGE 14 



What did the NCD Board do in 2015? 

• The Parking Management Plan is 
always under refinement withTony 
Rourke and Robert Soppe working on 
it for the 2016 season

3/21/16
PAGE 15 



What did the NCD Board do in 2015? 

• Working on estimates for wayfinding 
and other signage 

• This would include permanent signage 
on College and Hancock to direct people 
to parking, especially the parking behind 
the Cultural Center that tourists don’t 
realize exists

3/21/16
PAGE 16 



Wayfinding Plan 

3/21/16
PAGE 17 



3/21/16
PAGE 18 



What did the NCD Board do in 2015? 

• Worked with the City with the new 
Festival Street Designation for closing 
Sheridan and Howard   

• This eliminated going house to house and 
simply notified residents and businesses 
of closures that they are already 
expecting, being in the Cultural District  

3/21/16
PAGE 19 



What did the NCD Board do in 2015? 

• Established the Chehalem Cultural 
Center as the entity for managing all 
District space reservations

• Established a Fee Schedule for using 
space in the District

3/21/16
PAGE 20 



What did the NCD Board do in 2015? 

The NCD Board communicated with the 
community

• www.newbergculturaldistrict.org 

• Monthly e-newsletter announcing board 
meetings and notifying interested parties 
about events in the District      

• Newsletter may be subscribed to from the 
web site

3/21/16
PAGE 21 



What is planned for 2016? 

• Looking at options for funding for 
permanent signage to direct visitors to 
the area

– Truffle Festival

– Lavender Festival 

– Camellia Festival and Run 

3/21/16
PAGE 22 



What is planned for 2016? 

• Work with any public arts groups to 
bring art to the district 

• Work with the Chehalem Cultural 
Center and CPRD on the Ballroom 
Patio

3/21/16
PAGE 23 



What is planned for 2016? 

• Revise the Parking Plan to 
implement changes to make it more 
practical and usable 

• Continue to develop the web site as a 
location for district information

3/21/16
PAGE 24 



A special place for 
people to enjoy 
cultural and arts 
experiences

3/21/16
PAGE 25 



Enhancing Newberg 

as a destination for 

tourists

3/21/16
PAGE 26 



 
 
City of Newberg: RCA MOTION Page 1 

REQUEST FOR COUNCIL ACTION 

DATE ACTION REQUESTED: March 21, 2016 

Order       Ordinance       Resolution        Motion XX  Information ___ 

No. No. No. 

SUBJECT:  Minutes  
Contact Person (Preparer) for this 

Motion: Sue Ryan, City Recorder 

Dept.: Administration 

File No.:  

 

RECOMMENDATION:  
 

Approve City Council minutes from February 16, 2016. 

3/21/16
PAGE 27 



 

 

 
City of Newberg: City Council Minutes (February 16, 2016)  Page 1 of 4 

 NEWBERG CITY COUNCIL MINUTES 

REGULAR SESSION 

FEBRUARY 16, 2016, 7:00 PM 

PUBLIC SAFETY BUILDING (401 E. THIRD STREET) 
 

The work session was held at 6:00 p.m. preceding the meeting. Present were Mayor Bob Andrews, Councilors Lesley 

Woodruff, Stephen McKinney, Scott Essin, Denise Bacon, Mike Corey and Tony Rourke. Also present were City 

Manager Pro Tem Stephen Rhodes, City Attorney Truman Stone, City Recorder Sue Ryan, Finance Director Matt Zook, 

Community Development Director Doug Rux, City Engineer Kaaren Hofmann, and Interim Human Resources Director 

Nancy McDonald. 

 

REVIEW OF COUNCIL AGENDA:  There were no changes to the agenda.   

 

COUNCIL ITEMS: Mayor Andrews, Councilor Woodruff, Councilor Rourke, and Councilor Essin had items to share. 

 

PRESENTATION ON STATEMENT OF ECONOMIC INTEREST: City Recorder Ryan said the Council had to do 

an annual Statement of Economic Interest with the Oregon Government Ethics Commission and explained they were now 

being filed electronically. They were to be done between March 15 and April 15. She then discussed the process, showed 

a training video, and reviewed the Frequently Asked Questions. 

 

COUNCIL BUSINESS: Councilor Woodruff announced a community band concert for children on March 13 and that 

Oregon Battle of the Books needed volunteers for the regional competition on February 27.  Councilor Essin said he had 

resigned his position with Chehalem Parks and Recreation District. Councilor Rourke had accepted a new job in Texas. 

His last Council meeting would be March 7. Staff would be starting the appointment process.   

 

Mayor Andrews asked about the renaming of the city utility bill. City Manager Pro Tem Rhodes said it was being 

redesigned. There was discussion on the property condemnation on Villa Road for the sidewalk. Mayor Andrews said the 

Council was being asked to support economic revitalization of the Willamette Falls Locks. 

 

CALL MEETING TO ORDER 

The Mayor called the meeting to order at 7:00 p.m. 

 

ROLL CALL 
Members Present: Mayor Bob Andrews Scott Essin Stephen McKinney 

 Lesley Woodruff Denise Bacon Mike Corey 

 Tony Rourke 

  

Staff Present: Stephen Rhodes, City Manager Pro Tem                     Sue Ryan, City Recorder 

Truman Stone, City Attorney                      Paul Chiu, Senior Engineer         

 Doug Rux, Community Development Director           Matt Zook, Finance Director 

 Nancy McDonald, Interim Human Resources Director  

 Kaaren Hofmann, City Engineer 

                       

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE:  The Pledge of Allegiance was performed.  

 

CITY MANAGER PRO TEM’S REPORT:  CMPT Rhodes said letters regarding the Newberg Dundee Bypass 

Interchange had been sent to State Representative Davis a letter of agreement would be sent soon. The Planning 

Commission had initiated a process to update land development standards. He and the Mayor presented at City Club on 

upcoming City projects. 

  

PUBLIC COMMENTS:  Stan Halle, Ladd Hill Neighborhood Association, spoke about the Newberg Dundee Bypass 

Phase 1 and Wilsonville Road intersection. He thanked the Planning Commission for their help and Representative Davis, 

Mayor Andrews, CMPT Rhodes, and CDD Rux who showed leadership in having all the organizations work together. 

They were now looking at Option 4, connecting Wilsonville Road south of Wynooski on Highway 219.  

 

 

3/21/16
PAGE 28 



 

 

 
City of Newberg: City Council Minutes (February 16, 2016)  Page 2 of 4 

CONSENT CALENDAR:  

MOTION:  Rourke/Bacon moved to approve minutes for January 19 and February 1, 2016; Resolution 2016-3258, A 

Resolution authorizing the City Manager Pro Tem to appoint recommended candidates to positions in multiple 

departments: Tyler Joel Milton and Dennis Louis Hohstadt, Jr. to lateral police officer positions. Motion carried (7 Yes/ 0 

No).  

 

PUBLIC HEARING - LEGISLATIVE:   

Ordinance 2016-2795: 

Mayor Andrews opened the hearing and called for any abstentions or conflicts of interest on the part of the Council or 

objections to the Council’s jurisdiction on this matter. There were none. 

 

Senior Engineer Chiu gave the staff report. The ordinance affirmed the final assessment for the College Street Local 

Improvement District. He entered into the record a letter from Willow Place Assisted Living Facilities. In July 2013, the 

LID was created to recoup a portion of the costs for the improvement of College Street from Illinois to Aldercrest. The 

assessments for all 73 properties were listed in Table 1. The total assessment was $194,197. The LID would recoup 84.1% 

of the cost. Staff invited all of the LID property owners to a neighborhood meeting to provide comments on the 

assessments and six owners attended and asked questions, but did not have concerns regarding the final assessment.  

 

Willow Creek Living Facility’s concerns regarded the new sidewalk, which they said was not usable by their residents and 

the cost created a significant burden for the business. The living facility said the sidewalk curbing posed a risk to their 

handicapped and older residents. SE Chiu said the sidewalk followed ODOT standards. The concern about the cost would 

be a decision for the Council. The project offered a partnership with the City and LID participants by leveraging major 

financial resources from ODOT to complete a critical segment of the sidewalks and bike lanes that was heavily used in the 

City’s transportation system. 

 

There was discussion on the concerns of the Willow Creek Facility regarding the sidewalk. Mayor Andrews clarified none 

of the assessments were more than what was estimated. SE Chiu said that was correct. 

 

Proponents: 

Paul Bock, resident on College Street, said they enjoyed the sidewalk and the safety it brought to the street. The 

neighborhood supported the project. The proposal before them represented a compromise between the City and the 

neighborhood in giving the neighborhood a 30-year loan with 1.5% interest and he hoped it stayed the same. 

 

Opponents: 

Michael DeShane, representative for Willow Place Assisted Living Facility, said there was a liability issue for the 

business’s residents because of the curb height and the water retention area. The business felt it was a significant danger. 

He said while it might meet ODOT requirements, the elderly and disabled living in the building could not use the 

sidewalk. He objected to the cost because they served a lot of Medicaid patients and the cost was a significant burden. 

 

There was a discussion on the sidewalk curb and safety measures. Mayor Andrews closed public testimony and asked for 

staff’s recommendation. SE Chiu recommended adoption of the ordinance.  

 

MOTION:  Bacon/Rourke moved to waive the second reading for Ordinance 2016-2795. Motion carried (6 Yes/1 No 

[McKinney]).  

 

Deliberations:  Councilor McKinney thought staff should be directed to bring back options for fixing the trip hazard.  

Councilor Corey explained the current ordinance was about the assessments and not about railings. Councilor Rourke did 

not share the same concern regarding the safety hazard of the curbs and agreed it was a separate issue. Mayor Andrews 

suggested bringing back the issue during the Council Business part of the agenda.  

 

MOTION:  Bacon/Rourke moved to approve Ordinance 2016-2795, An Ordinance to affirm the final assessments for 

the College Street Local Improvement District that was created by Ordinance No. 2013-2769 to recoup a portion of the 

costs for the west side frontage improvements of N. College Street from Illinois Street to Aldercrest Drive. Motion carried 

(5 Yes/2 No [Essin/McKinney]).  

 

3/21/16
PAGE 29 



 

 

 
City of Newberg: City Council Minutes (February 16, 2016)  Page 3 of 4 

Ordinance 2016-2797: 

Mayor Andrews opened the hearing and called for any abstentions or conflicts of interest on the part of the Council or 

objections to the Council’s jurisdiction on this matter. There were none. 

 

CA Stone presented the staff report. PGE had expressed concern regarding amendments to the Municipal Code in 2008 to 

include a licensing model for utilities using the City’s right-of-way. PGE thought a franchise necessary to address specific 

concerns unique to PGE. Council had directed staff to negotiate a franchise agreement and the agreement was before 

Council that night. The agreement did not supersede the Municipal Code as the Code stated there might be instances 

where modifications would be necessary. 

MOTION:  Bacon/Essin moved to waive the second reading for Ordinance 2016-2797. Motion carried (7 Yes/0 No).  

 

Councilor McKinney asked about financial impact. CA Stone said PGE wanted some clarifying language on the 

definitions of gross revenue and how it was calculated. By changing the definition of gross revenue, staff could not say 

with certainty what the financial impact would be.  

 

Councilor Rourke asked what was different in the franchise agreement than what was required in the Code. CE Stone said 

the Code required before any work was done in the City’s right-of-way that a construction bond be posted. Staff thought 

when dealing with entities like PGE that did not need to be required. The agreement gave PGE a higher level of certainty 

in dealing with the City rather than the general terms under the Code. 

 

Wendy Veliz, PGE, said the City did allow franchise agreements if it was to the benefit of its constituents, and she 

believed there was a need for an agreement. She highlighted who was allowed to work on construction projects which 

aided in safety, $500 penalty per day for delay in relocation projects, and use of PGE facilities and attaching to poles free 

of charge for municipal purposes. The payment for use of the City’s right-of-way would be an annual payment instead of 

quarterly. Barbara Halle, PGE, said the definition of gross revenues was standard in all PGE’s franchise agreements and 

came from the PUC regulations. PGE was required to put any amount more than 3.5% of gross revenues on customer 

bills. It would not change the percentage being paid to the City. 

 

Councilor McKinney asked if this agreement was similar to those PGE had with other cities. Ms. Veliz said yes, and the 

agreement clarified how PGE was to work in the right-of-way. Councilor Essin asked about the one day noticing 

requirement. Ms. Veliz clarified that section was a notice for the agreement or any changes to the agreement, not for 

construction projects. 

 

Mayor Andrews closed the public testimony and asked for closing comments from staff. CA Stone recommended the 

Council approve the ordinance. 

 

MOTION:  Bacon/Rourke moved to approve Ordinance 2016-2797, An Ordinance granting Portland General Electric 

Company, an Oregon Corporation, a franchise agreement intended to clarify, enhance, expand, waive or vary the 

provisions of NMC 12.05 to be read by title only. Motion carried (7 Yes/0 No).  

 

NEW BUSINESS: Audit Report: Brad Bingenheimer of Boldt, Carlisle and Smith, presented on the City’s audit. He 

said the City received an unmodified report, where in their opinion the City’s financial statements presented fairly in all 

material respects, financial position, and results of operations of the City for the year ending June 2015. A new accounting 

standard for pension plans per GASB 68 was now required, which meant the City had to report its share of Public 

Employees Retirement System accounts (PERS) and the position of the City’s retirement plan through Principal at the end 

of the year. The City ended up with a net pension asset for PERS. This would likely be a liability next year due to recent 

legislation and there was a net pension liability for the City’s plan.  

 

Mr. Bingenheimer said the City ended the year with total assets including deferred outflows of $210 million and total 

liabilities and deferred inflows of $68 million. This left them in a net position of $144 million, which was an increase of 

$9.6 million. Governmental funds showed overall improvement in fund balance of $1.1 million and proprietary funds 

showed a positive improvement of $7.3 million. Trends showed an overall improving financial position of the City.  

 

He pointed out a few things in relation to the budget: two areas where items were overspent and issues with internal 

controls. Regarding the internal controls, the bank reconciliations as performed by the Finance Department did not fully 

3/21/16
PAGE 30 



 

 

 
City of Newberg: City Council Minutes (February 16, 2016)  Page 4 of 4 

reconcile all items between the accounting records and bank statements. He suggested there be more segregation of duties 

for better internal controls. The total federal expenditures for the year were $6.5 million.  

 

Councilor Essin asked about the net liability for the pension plans. Mr. Bingenheimer explained the totals in the audit. It 

meant that today the City’s retirees had earned the right to those payments and the City had not yet set aside sufficient 

funds to fund them. FD Zook discussed the action plan to address audit findings. Staff now performed reconciliations as 

required. He was working on the separation of duties and internal controls for the Court finances.  

 

The City had to report to the Secretary of State and implement the timeframes of the planned changes. Staff had been 

working under an old model and was moving forward with improvements. He would give a progress update to the 

Council on a quarterly basis. 

 

Councilor McKinney thought the action plan showed progress and asked if there were still some violations that needed to 

be attended to. FD Zook said all of the key areas had been addressed. Mr. Bingenheimer did not anticipate these items 

would be included in the next audit. 

 

MOTION:  Rourke/Corey moved to accept the auditor’s report and the annual financial statements, and adopt the plan 

of action to address deficiencies identified in the audit report for June 30, 2015. Motion carried (7 Yes/0 No).  

 

COUNCIL BUSINESS:  Councilor Essin asked about the financial report for December in the packet regarding the 

reserves balance. FD Zook explained the $24 million in contingencies was a combination of all the funds including water 

and sewer where the reserves were large. The reserves were appropriate for future projects and debt service payments. 

There were also unspendable funds and emergency contingency funds. Overall the reserves were in an okay position, but 

fund by fund there were different scenarios. The upcoming budget process would reassess the City’s reserves. 

 

MOTION:  Andrews/Bacon moved to send a letter supporting the Willamette Falls Locks economic revitalization. 

Motion carried (7 Yes/0 No). 

 

Mayor Andrews asked if the Council wanted to take action on the suggestion for sidewalk railings for Willow Place 

Assisted Living Facility. Councilor McKinney did not sense support for the railings. They had spent a lot of money on the 

sidewalks, and the facility forbade residents to use them because they were unsafe. He thought some mitigation was 

needed. Councilor Bacon said they could not afford to fix every problem, but was willing to have staff look into it. 

Councilor Corey agreed with Councilor Bacon as there were many trip hazards throughout the City. They had complied 

with all of the requirements and he did not think anything else needed to be done. Willow Place could come up with a 

plan and pay for improvements. Councilor Woodruff thought this was not the City’s responsibility. 

 

CA Stone said College Street was owned by ODOT and the state came up with the design. The City had an agreement to 

maintain the sidewalk. They would have to get approval from ODOT for any improvements and had to have evidence that 

there was a safety problem.  

 

CMPT Rhodes said staff would look into the options and bring them back to Council. 

 

Mayor Andrews asked for a way to have the School District keep the City better informed on events and achievements of 

the students. CA Stone advised signing up for the School District newsletters that would be emailed to the Mayor. 

 

ADJOURNMENT:  The meeting was adjourned at 8:45 p.m.  

 

ADOPTED by the Newberg City Council this 21st day of March, 2016. 

        _______________________________ 

         Sue Ryan, City Recorder 

ATTESTED by the Mayor this ___ day of March, 2016. 

 

 

__________________________Bob Andrews, Mayor  

 

3/21/16
PAGE 31 



CITY OF NEWBERG: RESOLUTION NO. 2016-3267 PAGE 1 

 

REQUEST FOR COUNCIL ACTION 

                                   DATE ACTION REQUESTED: March 21, 2016 

Order       Ordinance       Resolution  XX   Motion        Information ___ 

No. No.  No. 2016-3267 

SUBJECT:  Resolution authorizing the City Manager 

Pro Tem to appoint the recommended candidate to 

the position as listed below.  

Contact Person (Preparer) for this 

Motion: Nancy McDonald, Interim Human 

Resources Director 

Dept.: Administration 

File No.:  

 

 

Adopt Resolution No. 2016-3259 Authorizing the City Manager Pro Tem to appoint the recommended 

candidate to the position as listed below. 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY: 

The City Charter, Chapter VIII, Section 34(h) provides the manager pro tem “has the authority and duties of 

manager, except that a Manager Pro Tem may appoint or remove employees only with council approval”. 

The City Manager Pro Tem Steve Rhodes and Interim Human Resources Director McDonald have reviewed the 

recommendations for hire submitted by the position’s supervisor and recommend the hiring of said candidate to the 

council for their approval pursuant to the city charter as stated above. 

 

The City of Newberg has successfully recruited for the vacant position listed below. The recommended candidate 

has been vetted through the appropriate hiring procedure for the department as indicated.  

 

 

Library     Line Item: 01 3120 432000 

 

Library Assistant I    Non-exempt, non-represented substitute (varying hours) position 

 

 Current budget includes funding for this substitute position. 

 

 16 applicants; 4 interviewed by Leah Griffith & Korie Buerkle. 

 

Recommended candidate: Joleen Jin - two years as a library assistant in the Newberg School District (Edwards and 

MountainView Schools) and four years’ experience at public libraries in Napa, CA and Rochester, MN. 

  

FISCAL IMPACT: 

Funding for this position is in the adopted FY 2015-2016 Budget under the appropriate salary and benefit line item 

as indicated above. 

 

STRATEGIC ASSESSMENT: 

This departments is working at less than full-staff capacity; quickly refilling this vacancy is the fiscally responsible 

solution. 

 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 

3/21/16
PAGE 32 



 

 

CITY OF NEWBERG: RESOLUTION NO. 2016-3267 PAGE 2 

 

 

 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 2016-3267 

 

 

 A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER PRO TEM TO 

 APPOINT RECOMMENDED CANDIDATE TO A POSITION IN THE 

 LIBRARY 

 

 

 

RECITALS: 

  

  

1. Reason for Vacancy: This is a substitute position vacated by existing employees who have had their 

working hours increased based on the recent council approval to increase Library operating hours. 

2. Recommendations: Interim Human Resources Director McDonald recommends the appointment of 
the candidate listed as soon as possible. 

3. Funding: Position funding is within the FY 2015-2016 Budget and is indicated by the applicable 
departmental personnel services line items. 

4. Manager Pro Tem Appointment: Steve Rhodes was appointed manager pro tem on September 8, 

2015, by the city council. He has reviewed the recommendations for hire submitted by the 

supervisor of the position and recommends the hiring of said candidate to the vacant position. The 

City Charter, Chapter VIII, Section 34(h) provides the manager pro tem “has the authority and 

duties of manager, except that a manager pro tem may appoint or remove employees only with 

council approval”. 

 

THE CITY OF NEWBERG RESOLVES AS FOLLOWS: 

 

The city council approves the appointment by the city manager pro tem of the selected candidate: 

 
 

  Joleen Jin  –    Library Assistant I, Library  
       
 

 EFFECTIVE DATE of this resolution is the day after the adoption date, which is: March 22, 2016. 

3/21/16
PAGE 33 



CITY OF NEWBERG: RESOLUTION NO. 2016-3267 PAGE 1 

 

ADOPTED by the City Council of the City of Newberg, Oregon, this 21st day of March, 2016. 

 

 

_______________________________ 

Sue Ryan, City Recorder 

 

 

 

ATTESTED by Mayor this                day of March, 2016. 

 

____________________ 

 

Bob Andrews, Mayor 

3/21/16
PAGE 34 



 
 
City of Newberg:  ORDINANCE NO. 2016-2798 PAGE 1 

REQUEST FOR COUNCIL ACTION 

DATE ACTION REQUESTED: March 21, 2016 

Order       Ordinance  XX  Resolution        Motion        Information ___ 

No. No. 2016-2798 No. 

SUBJECT:  An ordinance amending the Newberg 

Development Code regarding recreational 

marijuana producers and processors; and declaring 

an emergency 

Contact Person (Preparer) for this 

Motion: Doug Rux, Director 

Dept.: Community Development  

File No.: DCA-15-003 

HEARING TYPE: LEGISLATIVE QUASI-JUDICIAL NOT APPLICABLE 

 

RECOMMENDATION:  

 

Adopt Ordinance No. 2016-2798 amending the Newberg Development Code for recreational marijuana 

producers and processors. 

 

 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY:   

A. SUMMARY:  The proposed Development Code amendments do the following: 

 Prohibits Recreational Marijuana Producer as an indoor or outdoor use in R-1, R-2, R-3, R-4, R-

P, AR, R-1/PD, R-1/0.1, R-1/.04, R-1/6.6, R-1/SP, R-2/PD, R-2/SP, SD/LDR, SD/MMR, R-

3/PD, RP/SP, RP/LU, C-1, C-2, C-3, C-4, C-1/SP, C-2/LU, C-2,PD, C-2/SP, C-3/LU, SD/V, 

SD/NC, SD/H, CC, M-4-C, CF, CF/RF, RF, I, IO, FHO, AI, AIO, H, SC, BI. 

 Adds Recreational Marijuana Producer as an indoor permitted use in in M-1, M-2, M-3, M-4-I, 

M-1/SP, SD/E and II. 

 Adds Recreational Marijuana Producer as a conditional outdoor use in in M-1, M-2, M-3, M-4-I, 

M-1/SP, SD/E and II. 

 Adds Recreational Marijuana Processor as a permitted indoor use in M-1, M-2, M-3, M-4-I and 

SD/E. 

 Prohibits Recreational Marijuana Processor in all residential, commercial, community facility, 

institutional, airport industrial and miscellaneous districts and subdistricts. 

 Add definitions for Recreational Marijuana Producer and Processor. 

 

B. BACKGROUND: The Oregon voters passed Measure 91 on recreational marijuana in November 

2014. The Oregon Legislature enacted four bills during the 2015 legislative session related to the 

Oregon Medical Marijuana Act and Measure 91. House Bill (HB) 3400 was the omnibus bill 

covering recreational marijuana and modifications to the medical marijuana program. HB 2014 was 

enacted addressing taxes on the sale of recreational marijuana, SB 460 related to limited retail sales 

of marijuana from medical marijuana dispensaries and SB 844 enacted a task force on researching 

the medical and public health properties of cannabis. In addition to the enacting of the four bills the 

3/21/16
PAGE 35 



 
 
City of Newberg:  ORDINANCE NO. 2016-2798 PAGE 2 

Oregon Liquor Control Commission adopted temporary Oregon Administrative Rules (OAR’s) on 

October 22, 2015 that were subsequently modified on November 20, 2015 for recreational marijuana 

under Chapter 845, Division 25  

On September 8, 2015 the Newberg City Council was provided background information on medical 

and recreational marijuana at its Work Session. At the City Council Business Session on September 

8th they established the Marijuana Subcommittee (Subcommittee) comprised of Councilors Rourke, 

Bacon and McKinney along with non-voting member Mayor Andrews. The City Council also 

directed staff to bring back an ordinance with a ban of the sale of recreational marijuana from 

Medical Marijuana Dispensaries. 

 

On September 21, 2015 the Newberg City Council passed Ordinance No. 2015-2787 declaring a ban 

on the early sale of recreational marijuana by marijuana dispensaries and declaring an emergency. 

 

The Subcommittee met on November 19, 2015 to review the similarities and differences between the 

medical marijuana and recreational marijuana programs. The Subcommittee met on December 9, 

2015 and discussed initiating a Request for Council Action (RCA) to initiate the Development Code 

amendment process for place, time and manner regulations for recreational marijuana producers and 

processors. The Subcommittee was also provided a timeline of dates and activities that would need 

to occur to prepare place, time and manner land use regulations for recreational marijuana producers 

and processors. The Subcommittee subsequently passed a motion 3-0 directing staff to create a 

Request for Council Action (RCA) to initiate the Development Code Amendment for recreational 

marijuana producer and processor regulations to bring forward for Council consideration on January 

4, 2016. 

 

The City Council adopted Resolution No. 2015-3248 on January 4, 2016 initiating the Development 

Code amendment process (Attachment 1). 

 

The Subcommittee met again on January 12, 2016 and developed recommendations on recreational 

marijuana producers and processors.  

  

C. PROCESS:  A development code amendment is a Type IV application and follows the 

procedures in Newberg Development Code 15.100.060.  Important dates related to this 

application are as follows: 

1. 1/4/16: The Newberg City Council initiated the Development Code 

amendment. 

2. 2/25/16: After proper notice, the Planning Commission held a legislative 

hearing to consider the item, took public comment, and approved 

Resolution 2016-313. 

3. 3/21/16: After proper notice, the City Council held a legislative hearing to 

consider the item. 

D. PUBLIC COMMENTS:  As of the writing of this report, the city has received no comments on 

the application.  If the city receives additional written comments by the comment deadline, 

Planning staff will forward them to the City Council. 

3/21/16
PAGE 36 



 
 
City of Newberg:  ORDINANCE NO. 2016-2798 PAGE 3 

E. ANALYSIS:   

Place, Time and Manner: Recreational Marijuana Producers and Processors have certain 

limitations per HB 3400 and OAR 845-025. HB 3400 states (bracketed and italicized text is 

deleted and bold text is new). 

 

HB 3400, Section 33 allows local governments to regulate the location of marijuana producer 

and processor sites. Specifically the law reads: 
 

(Land Use) 
 

SECTION 33. Section 59, chapter 1, Oregon Laws 2015, is amended to read: 

Sec. 59. [(1) Cities and counties may adopt reasonable time, place and manner 

regulations of the nuisance aspects of establishments that sell marijuana to consumers if 

the city or county makes specific findings that the establishment would cause adverse 

effects to occur.] 

[(2) The authority granted to cities and counties by this section is in addition to, and not 

in lieu of, the authority granted to a city or county under its charter and the statutes and 

Constitution of this state.] 

(1) For purposes of this section, “reasonable regulations” includes: 

 

(g) Reasonable limitations on where a premises for which a license may be issued 

under section 19, 20, 21 or 22, chapter 1, Oregon Laws 2015, may be located. 

 

Oregon Laws 2015, Chapter 1 as related to Production license and Processor license states: 

 

SECTION 19. Production license. (1) The production of marijuana is subject to 

regulation by the Oregon Liquor Control Commission. (2) A marijuana producer must 

have a production license issued by the commission for the premises at which the 

marijuana is produced.  

 

SECTION 20. Processor license. (1) The processing of marijuana items is subject to 

regulation by the Oregon Liquor Control Commission. (2) A marijuana processor must 

have a processor license issued by the commission for the premises at which marijuana 

items are processed. 
 

 

Oregon Administrative Rule, Division 25 provides the following definitions: 

 

GENERAL REQUIREMENTS APPLICABLE TO 

 ALL MARIJUANA LICENSES 

 

 

845-025-1015 

Definitions 

 

(38) "Premises" or "licensed premises" includes the following areas of a location licensed 

under section 19, 20, 21 or 22, chapter 1, Oregon Laws 2015: 

3/21/16
PAGE 37 



 
 
City of Newberg:  ORDINANCE NO. 2016-2798 PAGE 4 

(a) All public and private enclosed areas at the location that are used in the business 

operated at the location, including offices, kitchens, rest rooms and storerooms; 

(b) All areas outside a building that the Commission has specifically licensed for the 

production, processing, wholesale sale or retail sale of marijuana items; and 

(c) For a location that the Commission has specifically licensed for the production of 

marijuana outside a building, the entire lot or parcel, as defined in ORS 92.010, that the 

licensee owns, leases or has a right to occupy. 

(d) “Premises” or “licensed premises” does not include a primary residence. 

(39) “Primary Residence” means real property inhabited for the majority of a calendar 

year by an owner, renter or tenant, including manufactured homes and vehicles used as 

domiciles.  

 

Oregon Administrative Rule, Division 25 provides the following on when the Oregon Liquor 

Control Commission would deny a license application: 

 

OAR 845-025-1115 

Denial of Application (1) The Commission must deny an initial or renewal application 

if:  

(a) An applicant is under the age of 21 or, until January 1, 2020, has not been a resident 

or Oregon for at least two years. If the Commission determines that an applicant is a non-

resident the Commission will hold that application under review until 30 days after the 

2016 Oregon Legislature adjourns.  

(b) The applicant’s land use compatibility statement shows that the proposed land use is 

prohibited in the applicable zone. 

(c) The proposed licensed premises is located:  

(A) On federal property.  

(B) At the same physical location or address as a:  

(i) Medical marijuana grow site registered under ORS 475.304, unless the grow site is 

also licensed under section 116, chapter 614, Oregon laws 2015;  

(ii) Medical marijuana processing site registered under section 85, chapter 614, Oregon 

Laws 2015; or 

(iii) Medical marijuana dispensary registered under ORS 475.314.  

(C) At the same physical location or address as a liquor licensee licensed under ORS 

chapter 471 or as a retail liquor agent appointed by the Commission.  

(d) The proposed licensed premises of a producer applicant is:  

(A) On public land; or  

(B) On the same tax lot or parcel as another producer licensee under common ownership.  

(e) The proposed licensed premises of a processor who has applied for an endorsement to 

process extracts is located in an area that is zoned exclusively for residential use. 

 

Oregon Administrative Rule, Division 25 states the following on restrictions: 

 

OAR 845-025-1230 

Licensed Premises Restrictions and Requirements (1) A licensed premises may not be 

located:  

(a) On federal property; or  

(b) At the same physical location or address as a: 

(A) Medical marijuana grow site registered under ORS 475.304, unless the grow site is 

also licensed under section 116, chapter 614, Oregon Laws 2015; 

3/21/16
PAGE 38 



 
 
City of Newberg:  ORDINANCE NO. 2016-2798 PAGE 5 

(B) Medical marijuana processing site registered under section 85, chapter 614, Oregon 

Laws 2015; or  

(C) Medical marijuana dispensary registered under ORS 475.314.  

(D) Liquor licensee licensed under ORS Chapter 471 or as a retail liquor agent appointed 

by the Commission.  

(2) The licensed premises of a producer applicant may not be on:  

(a) Public land; or  

(b) The same tax lot or parcel as another producer licensee under common ownership. 

 

(4) The licensed premises of a processor who has an endorsement to process extracts may 

not be located in an area that is zoned exclusively for residential use.  

(5) The licensed premises of a processor, wholesaler, laboratory and retailer must be 

enclosed on all sides by permanent walls and doors. 

(11) The general public is not permitted in limited access areas on a licensed premises, 

except for the licensed premises of a retailer and as provided by section (14) of this rule. 

In addition to licensee representatives, the following individuals are permitted to be 

present in limited access areas on a licensed premises, subject to the requirements in 

section (12) of this rule:  

(a) Laboratory personnel, if the laboratory is licensed by the Commission;  

(b) A contractor, vendor or service provider authorized by a licensee representative to be 

on the licensed premises; (c) Another licensee or that licensee’s representative;  

(d) Up to seven invited guests per week subject to requirements of section (12) of this 

rule; or (e) Tour groups as permitted under section (14) of this rule.  

(12) Prior to entering a licensed premises all visitors permitted by section (11) of this rule 

must be documented and issued a visitor identification badge from a licensee 

representative that must remain visible while on the licensed premises. A visitor badge is 

not required for government officials. All visitors described in subsection (11) of this rule 

must be accompanied by a licensee representative at all times. 

 

Oregon Administrative Rule, Division 25 states the following on recreational marijuana 

producers: 

 

RECREATIONAL MARIJUANA PRODUCERS 

 

OAR 845-025-2000 

Definitions As used in OAR 845-025-2000 to 845-025-2080: 

(1) “Canopy” means the surface area utilized to produce mature marijuana plants 

calculated in square feet and measured using the outside boundaries of any area that 

includes mature marijuana plants including all of the space within the boundaries. 

(2) “Indoor production” means producing marijuana in any manner:  

(a) Utilizing artificial lighting on mature marijuana plants; or  

(b) Other than “outdoor production” as that is defined in this rule.  

(3) “Outdoor production” means producing marijuana:  

(a) In an expanse of open or cleared ground; or 

(b) In a greenhouse, hoop house or similar non-rigid structure that does not utilize any 

artificial lighting on mature marijuana plants, including but not limited to electrical 

lighting sources. 

 

 

3/21/16
PAGE 39 



 
 
City of Newberg:  ORDINANCE NO. 2016-2798 PAGE 6 

HB 3400, Section 14 limits where processing extracts can occur. The law reads: 

 

(License Holders) 

 

SECTION 14. Section 20, chapter 1, Oregon Laws 2015, is amended to read: 

Sec. 20. (1) The processing of marijuana items is subject to regulation by the Oregon 

Liquor Control Commission. 

(2) A marijuana processor must have a processor license issued by the commission for the 

premises at which marijuana items are processed. To hold a processor license under 

this section, a marijuana processor: 

(a) Must apply for a license in the manner described in section 28, chapter 1, 

Oregon Laws 2015; 

(b) Must, until January 1, 2020, provide proof that an applicant listed on an 

application submitted under section 28, chapter 1, Oregon Laws 2015, has been a 

resident of this state for two or more years, and must provide proof that the 

applicant is 21 years of age or older; 

(c) If the marijuana processor processes marijuana extracts, may not be located in 

an area zoned exclusively for residential use; and 

(d) Must meet the requirements of any rule adopted by the commission under 

subsection (3) of this section. 

(3) The commission shall adopt rules that: 

(a) Require a marijuana processor to annually renew a license issued under this 

section; 

(b) Establish application, licensure and renewal of licensure fees for marijuana 

processors; 

(c) Require marijuana processed by a marijuana processor to be tested in 

accordance with section 92 of this 2015 Act; and 

(d) Require a marijuana processor to meet any public health and safety standards 

and industry best practices established by the commission by rule related to: 

(A) Cannabinoid edibles; 

(B) Cannabinoid concentrates; 

(C) Cannabinoid extracts; and 

(D) Any other type of cannabinoid product identified by the commission by rule. 

(4) Fees adopted under subsection (3)(b) of this section: 

(a) May not exceed the cost of administering sections 3 to 70, chapter 1, Oregon 

Laws 2015, with respect to marijuana processors; and 

(b) Shall be deposited in the Marijuana Control and Regulation Fund established 

under section 32 of this 2015 Act. 

 

  

HB 3400, Section 34 identifies marijuana as a crop for purposes of farm use, farm, farming 

practice and as farm product as noted below. This section also requires a land use compatibility 

statement prior to issuance of any license. 

(Land Use) 

 

SECTION 34. (1) Notwithstanding any other provision of law, marijuana is: 

(a) A crop for the purposes of “farm use” as defined in ORS 215.203; 

(b) A crop for purposes of a “farm” and “farming practice,” both as defined in ORS 

3/21/16
PAGE 40 



 
 
City of Newberg:  ORDINANCE NO. 2016-2798 PAGE 7 

30.930; 

(c) A product of farm use as described in ORS 308A.062; and 

(d) The product of an agricultural activity for purposes of ORS 568.909. 

(2) Notwithstanding ORS chapters 195, 196, 197 and 215, the following are not 

permitted uses on land designated for exclusive farm use: 

(a) A new dwelling used in conjunction with a marijuana crop; 

(b) A farm stand, as described in ORS 215.213 (1)(r) or 215.283 (1)(o), used in 

conjunction with a marijuana crop; and 

(c) A commercial activity, as described in ORS 215.213 (2)(c) or 215.283 (2)(a), 

carried on in conjunction with a marijuana crop. 

(3) A county may allow the production of marijuana as a farm use on land zoned for 

farm or forest use in the same manner as the production of marijuana is allowed in 

exclusive farm use zones under this section and ORS 215.213 and 215.283. 

(4)(a) Prior to the issuance of a license under section 19, 20, 21 or 22, chapter 1, 

Oregon Laws 2015, the Oregon Liquor Control Commission shall request a land use 

compatibility statement from the city or county that authorizes the land use. The 

land use compatibility statement must demonstrate that the requested license is for a 

land use that is allowable as a permitted or conditional use within the given zoning 

designation where the land is located. The commission may not issue a license if the 

land use compatibility statement shows that the proposed land use is prohibited in 

the applicable zone. 

(b) A city or county that receives a request for a land use compatibility statement 

under 

this subsection must act on that request within 21 days of: 

(A) Receipt of the request, if the land use is allowable as an outright permitted use; 

or 

(B) Final local permit approval, if the land use is allowable as a conditional use. 

(c) A city or county action concerning a land use compatibility statement under this 

subsection is not a land use decision for purposes of ORS chapter 195, 196, 197 or 

215. 

 

HB 3400 allows opt-in for medical marijuana grow sites to also produce recreational marijuana. 

The law reads: 

MEDICAL MARIJUANA GROW SITE OPT-IN 

OPERATIVE JANUARY 1, 2016 

 

SECTION 116. (1) A person responsible for a marijuana grow site under ORS 

475.304 may apply for a license under section 19, chapter 1, Oregon Laws 2015, to 

produce marijuana at the address of the marijuana grow site, provided that all 

individuals registered with the Oregon Health Authority to produce marijuana at 

the address are listed on the application submitted to the Oregon Liquor Control 

Commission under section 28, chapter 1, Oregon Laws 2015. 

(2) Notwithstanding any other provision of sections 3 to 70, chapter 1, Oregon Laws 

2015, the commission may issue a license under section 19, chapter 1, Oregon Laws 

2015, to a person responsible for a marijuana grow site under ORS 475.304 if the 

3/21/16
PAGE 41 



 
 
City of Newberg:  ORDINANCE NO. 2016-2798 PAGE 8 

person responsible for the marijuana grow site: 

(a) Meets any criminal background check requirements established by the 

commission by rule; 

(b) Agrees to be subject to the provisions of sections 3 to 70, chapter 1, Oregon Laws 

2015, including section 59, chapter 1, Oregon Laws 2015, and section 34 of this 2015 

Act, and rules adopted under sections 3 to 70, chapter 1, Oregon Laws 2015, that 

apply to marijuana producers; and 

(c) Submits proof, in a form and manner prescribed by the commission, of having 

obtained the permission to apply for licensure under section 19, chapter 1, Oregon 

Laws 2015, of each individual who holds a registry identification card issued under 

ORS 475.309 for whom the person produces marijuana at the address of the 

marijuana grow site. 

(3) The commission by rule or order may waive the application of any rule adopted 

under sections 3 to 70, chapter 1, Oregon Laws 2015, to a person responsible for a 

marijuana grow site that holds a license under section 19, chapter 1, Oregon Laws 

2015. 

(4) A person responsible for a marijuana grow site that holds a license under section 

19, chapter 1, Oregon Laws 2015: 

(a) May not possess more than the amount or number of marijuana plants 

permitted pursuant to ORS 475.300 to 475.346; 

(b) Must allow each marijuana plant to be tracked using the system developed and 

maintained under section 23 of this 2015 Act; 

(c) May sell immature marijuana plants and usable marijuana in excess of amounts 

produced for individuals who hold a registry identification card issued under ORS 

475.309 to a person who holds a license under section 20, 21 or 22, chapter 1, 

Oregon Laws 2015, in accordance with rules adopted by the commission; and 

(d) May transfer marijuana and usable marijuana to other registrants under ORS 

475.300 to 475.346 in accordance with rules adopted by the authority. 

(5) In a form and manner prescribed by the commission, a person responsible for a 

marijuana grow site that holds a license under section 19, chapter 1, Oregon Laws 

2015, may surrender the person’s license. If the person surrender’s the person’s 

license, the person is no longer subject to the provisions of this section. 

(6) Notwithstanding ORS 475.331, the authority may provide information to the 

commission as is necessary for the commission to determine whether a person 

responsible for a marijuana grow site that holds a license under section 19, chapter 

1, Oregon Laws 2015, is in compliance with this section. 

(7) This section does not prohibit or otherwise restrict the duties, functions and 

powers of a person responsible for a marijuana grow site as set forth in ORS 

475.300 to 475.346, except that the person is not subject to any requirement related 

to the reporting or tracking of mature marijuana plants and usable marijuana. 

The Newberg Municipal Code states the following regarding horticulture and light 

manufacturing: 

3/21/16
PAGE 42 



 
 
City of Newberg:  ORDINANCE NO. 2016-2798 PAGE 9 

15.05.030 Definitions. 

For the purpose of this title, the following definitions shall apply unless the context 

clearly indicates or requires a different meaning: 

“Horticulture” means the cultivation of a garden, orchard, or nursery, or the cultivation 

of flowers, fruits, vegetables, or ornamental plants for commercial purposes. It excludes 

farm stands or other on-site retail sale of the products. 

 

“Light manufacturing category” means a category of uses under Chapter 15.303 NMC 

that involves manufacturing, processing, fabrication, packaging, or assembly of goods. 

These types of firms are involved in the secondary processing and assembly of materials 

and components into finished products, generally for the wholesale market, for transfer to 

other plants, or to order for firms or consumers. The external impact from these uses is 

generally less than heavy manufacturing. Outdoor storage and processing of goods and 

materials is less than 10 percent of the site. Transportation needs are often met by truck. 

Goods are generally not displayed or sold on site, but if so, they are a subordinate part of 

sales. Relatively few customers come to the manufacturing site (typically fewer than five 

per day per 1,000 square feet of floor area). 

Use Categories 

15.303.100 Agricultural uses. 

The following agricultural uses defined in NMC 15.050.030 

  A. Horticulture 

  B. Livestock and poultry farming. 

  C. Home gardening. 

D. Home livestock and poultry raising. [Ord. 2673 § 1 (Exh. A § 5), 9-16-13.] 

 

  15.303.506 Light manufacturing category. 

A. Characteristics. Light Manufacturing involve manufacturing, processing, fabrication, 

packaging, or assembly of goods. These types of firms are involved in the secondary 

processing and assembly of materials and components into finished products, generally 

for the wholesale market, for transfer to other plants, or to order for firms or consumers. 

The external impact from these uses is generally less than heavy manufacturing. Outdoor 

storage and processing of goods and materials is less than 10 percent of the site. 

Transportation needs are often met by truck. Goods are generally not displayed or sold on 

site, but if so, they are a subordinate part of sales. Relatively few customers come to the 

manufacturing site (typically fewer than five per day per 1,000 square feet of floor area). 

B. Accessory Uses. Retail sales of goods produced on site, provided the floor area 

devoted to retail sales is small (less than 10 percent of the floor area, up to 2,000 square 

feet). 

C. Examples. Instrument and machinery manufacturers, food processors, furniture 

manufacturers, wineries, wholesale bakeries. 

D. Exclusions. Heavy Manufacturing is a separate category. [Ord. 2763 § 1 (Exh. A § 5), 

9-16-13.] 
 

 

 

3/21/16
PAGE 43 

http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=176.1
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=158.1
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=158.2


 
 
City of Newberg:  ORDINANCE NO. 2016-2798 PAGE 10 

 
USES R-1 R-2 R-3 R-4 RP C-1 C-2 C-3 C-4 M-1 M-2 M-3 M-4-I M-4-C CF I 

AR AI Notes and 

Special 

Use Standards 

100 AGRICULTURALU

SES 

                                    

Def. Horticulture P P P(1) P(1) P(1) P(1) P(1) P(1) P(1) P(1) P(1) P(1) P(1) P(1) P(1) P(1) P(1) P(1)  

 INDUSTRIAL 

USES 

                   

 Light Manufacturing          P P P P     P(33)  

 

 Key: 

  

 P: Permitted use 

 S: Special use – Use requires a special use permit 

 C: Conditional use – Requires a conditional use permit  

 X: Prohibited use 

 (#): See notes for limitations 

 
 Notes. 

(1) Limited to sites with preexisting agricultural uses, including at time of annexation. 

(33) Must be aviation-related. See Chapter 15.332 NMC. 

 

TIME 

 

HB 3400, Section 33 allows local government to regulate the manner and access of marijuana 

producers and processors sites. Specifically the law reads: 

 

SECTION 33. Section 59, chapter 1, Oregon Laws 2015, is amended to read: 

Sec. 59. [(1) Cities and counties may adopt reasonable time, place and manner 

regulations of the nuisance aspects of establishments that sell marijuana to consumers if 

the city or county makes specific findings that the establishment would cause adverse 

effects to occur.] 

[(2) The authority granted to cities and counties by this section is in addition to, and not 

in lieu of, the authority granted to a city or county under its charter and the statutes and 

Constitution of this state.] 

(1) For purposes of this section, “reasonable regulations” includes: 

(a) Reasonable conditions on the manner in which a marijuana producer licensed 

under section 19, chapter 1, Oregon Laws 2015, may produce marijuana; 

(b) Reasonable conditions on the manner in which a marijuana processor licensed 

under section 20, chapter 1, Oregon Laws 2015, may process marijuana; 

 

(f) Reasonable requirements related to the public’s access to a premises for which a 

license has been issued under section 19, 20, 21 or 22, chapter 1, Oregon Laws 2015; 

and 

 

(2) Notwithstanding ORS 633.738, the governing body of a city or county may adopt 

ordinances that impose reasonable regulations on the operation of businesses 

located at premises for which a license has been issued under section 19, 20, 21 or 

22, chapter 1, Oregon Laws 2015, if the premises are located in the area subject to 

3/21/16
PAGE 44 



 
 
City of Newberg:  ORDINANCE NO. 2016-2798 PAGE 11 

the jurisdiction of the city or county, except that the governing body of a city or 

county may not adopt an ordinance that prohibits a premises for which a license has 

been issued under section 22, chapter 1, Oregon Laws 2015, from being located 

within a distance that is greater than 1,000 feet of another premises for which a 

license has been issued under section 22, chapter 1, Oregon Laws 2015. 

(3) Regulations adopted under this section must be consistent with city and county 

comprehensive plans and zoning ordinances and applicable provisions of public 

health and safety laws. 

 

HB 3400, Section 33 allows local government to regulate the hours of marijuana grow 

sites and processing sites. There are no additional provisions in Oregon Revised Statutes 

(ORS) or OAR’s regarding hours of operation for grow sites or processors. The Planning 

Commission may want to consider the hours required for growing marijuana which is 

likely on a 24-hour bases. For processors, the operation could be considered similar to an 

industrial operation, the Development Code does not limit hours. 

 

MANNER 

 

HB 3400, Section 33 allows local government to regulate the manner of marijuana producers and 

processors sites. Specifically the law reads: 

 

SECTION 33. Section 59, chapter 1, Oregon Laws 2015, is amended to read: 

Sec. 59. [(1) Cities and counties may adopt reasonable time, place and manner 

regulations of the nuisance aspects of establishments that sell marijuana to consumers if 

the city or county makes specific findings that the establishment would cause adverse 

effects to occur.] 

[(2) The authority granted to cities and counties by this section is in addition to, and not 

in lieu of, the authority granted to a city or county under its charter and the statutes and 

Constitution of this state.] 

(1) For purposes of this section, “reasonable regulations” includes: 

(a) Reasonable conditions on the manner in which a marijuana producer licensed 

under section 19, chapter 1, Oregon Laws 2015, may produce marijuana; 

(b) Reasonable conditions on the manner in which a marijuana processor licensed 

under section 20, chapter 1, Oregon Laws 2015, may process marijuana; 

 

(f) Reasonable requirements related to the public’s access to a premises for which a 

license has been issued under section 19, 20, 21 or 22, chapter 1, Oregon Laws 2015; 

and 

 

(2) Notwithstanding ORS 633.738, the governing body of a city or county may adopt 

ordinances that impose reasonable regulations on the operation of businesses 

located at premises for which a license has been issued under section 19, 20, 21 or 

22, chapter 1, Oregon Laws 2015, if the premises are located in the area subject to 

the jurisdiction of the city or county, except that the governing body of a city or 

county may not adopt an ordinance that prohibits a premises for which a license has 

been issued under section 22, chapter 1, Oregon Laws 2015, from being located 

within a distance that is greater than 1,000 feet of another premises for which a 

license has been issued under section 22, chapter 1, Oregon Laws 2015. 

(3) Regulations adopted under this section must be consistent with city and county 

3/21/16
PAGE 45 



 
 
City of Newberg:  ORDINANCE NO. 2016-2798 PAGE 12 

comprehensive plans and zoning ordinances and applicable provisions of public 

health and safety laws. 

 

HB 3400, Section 13 authorizes OLCC to limit mature grow canopies. The law reads: 

 

(License Holders) 

 

SECTION 13. (1) Subject to subsection (2) of this section, the Oregon Liquor 

Control Commission shall adopt rules restricting the size of mature marijuana plant 

grow canopies at premises for which a license has been issued under section 19, 

chapter 1, Oregon Laws 2015. In adopting rules under this subsection, the 

commission shall: 

(a) Limit the size of mature marijuana plant grow canopies, for premises where 

marijuana is grown outdoors and for premises where marijuana is grown indoors, 

in a manner calculated to result in premises that produce the same amount of 

harvested marijuana leaves and harvested marijuana flowers regardless of whether 

the marijuana is grown outdoors or indoors. 

(b) Adopt a tiered system under which the permitted size of a marijuana producer’s 

mature marijuana plant grow canopy increases at the time of licensure renewal 

under section 19, chapter 1, Oregon Laws 2015, except that the permitted size of a 

marijuana producer’s mature marijuana plant grow canopy may not increase 

following any year during which the commission disciplined the marijuana 

producer for violating a provision of sections 3 to 70, chapter 1, Oregon Laws 2015, 

or a rule adopted under a provision of sections 3 to 70, chapter 1, Oregon Laws 

2015. 

(c) Take into consideration the market demand for marijuana items in this state, the 

number of persons applying for a license under section 19, chapter 1, Oregon Laws 

2015, and to whom a license has been issued under section 19, chapter 1, Oregon 

Laws 2015, and whether the availability of marijuana items in this state is 

commensurate with the market demand. 

(2) This section does not apply to a premises for which a license has been issued 

under section 19, chapter 1, Oregon Laws 2015, if the premises is used only to 

propagate immature marijuana plants. 

 

 

GENERAL REQUIREMENTS APPLICABLE TO ALL 

MARIJUANA LICENSEES 

 

  OAR 845-025-1030 Application Process 

(g) For producers: 

(A) The proposed canopy size and tier as described in OAR 845-025-2040 and a 

designation of the canopy area within the license premises. 

(B) A report describing the applicant’s electrical and water usage, on a form prescribed by 

the Commission. The report must describe the estimated water usage taking into account 

all portions of the premises and expected requirements of the operation. 

(C) A description of the growing operation including growing media, a description of 

equipment to be used in the production, and whether production will be indoor, outdoor 

or both. 

3/21/16
PAGE 46 



 
 
City of Newberg:  ORDINANCE NO. 2016-2798 PAGE 13 

(D) A water right permit or certificate number; a statement that water is supplied from a 

public or private water provider, along with the name and contact information of the 

water provider; or proof from the Oregon Water Resources Department that the water to 

be used for production is from a source that does not require a water right. 

 

(h) For processors: 

(A) On a form prescribed by the Commission, the proposed endorsements as described in 

OAR 845-025-3210. 

(B) A description of the type of products to be processed, a description of equipment to 

be used, including any solvents, gases, chemicals or other compounds used to create 

extracts or concentrates.  

 

Oregon Administrative Rule, Division 25 establishes fees for recreational marijuana producers 

and processors.  

OAR 845-025-1060 

Fees (1) At the time of initial license or certificate application an applicant must pay a 

$250 nonrefundable application fee. 

(2) If the Commission approves an application and grants an annual license, the following 

fees must be paid, prorated for an initial license that is issued for six months or less: 

(a) Producers:  

(A) Tier I $3,750 

(B) Tier II $5,750  

(b) Processors: $4,750 

 

Oregon Administrative Rule, Division 25 provides for civil penalties for failure to comply with 

local ordinances.  

 

OAR 845-025-1295 

Local Ordinances The Commission may impose a civil penalty, suspend or cancel any 

licensee for failure to comply with an ordinance adopted by a city or county pursuant to 

section 34, chapter 614, Oregon Laws 2015 if the city or county:  

(1) Has provided the licensee with due process substantially similar to the due process 

provided to a licensee under the Administrative Procedures Act, ORS 183.413 to 

183.470; and 

(2) Provides the Commission with a final order that is substantially similar to the 

requirements for a final order under ORS 183.470 that establishes that the licensee has 

violated the local ordinance. 

 

Oregon Administrative Rule, Division 25 establishes security requirements for recreational 

marijuana producers. 

 

SECURITY 

 

OAR 845-025-1470 

Producer Security Requirements (1) In addition to the security requirements in OAR 

845-025-1400 to 845-025-1460, a producer must effectively prevent public access and 

obscure from public view all areas of marijuana production. A producer may satisfy this 

requirement by:  

3/21/16
PAGE 47 



 
 
City of Newberg:  ORDINANCE NO. 2016-2798 PAGE 14 

(a) Submitting a security plan as described in OAR 845-025-1400;  

(b) Fully enclosing indoor production on all sides so that no aspect of the production area 

is visible from the exterior satisfies; or  

(c) Erecting a solid wall or fence on all exposed sides of an outdoor production area that 

is at least eight (8) feet high.  

(2) If a producer chooses to dispose of usable marijuana by any method of composting, as 

described in OAR 845-025-7750, the producer must prevent public access to the 

composting area and obscure the area from public view. 

 

Oregon Administrative Rule, Division 25 establishes safety inspections and requirements to 

contact local governments on water and sanitary sewer to ensure compliance. 

 

HEATH AND SAFETY 

 

OAR 845-025-1600 

State and Local Safety Inspections  

(1) All marijuana licensees may be subject to inspection of licensed premises by state or 

local government officials to determine compliance with state or local health and safety 

laws.  

(2) A licensee must contact any utility provider to ensure that the licensee complies with 

any local ordinance or utility requirements such as water use, discharge into the sewer 

system, or electrical use. 

 

Oregon Administrative Rule, Division 25 establishes that producers may have indoor and 

outdoor operations. 

 

RECREATIONAL MARIJUANA PRODUCERS 

 

OAR 845-025-2020 

Producer Privileges  

(1) A producer may only plant, cultivate, grow, harvest and dry marijuana in the manner 

approved by the Commission and consistent with chapter 1, Oregon Laws 2015, chapter 

614, Oregon Laws 2015 and these rules.  

(2) A producer may engage in indoor or outdoor production of marijuana, or a 

combination of the two.  

(3) A producer may sell or deliver:  

(a) Usable marijuana to the licensed premises of a marijuana processor, wholesaler, 

retailer, laboratory, or research certificate holder;  

(b) Dried mature marijuana plants that have been entirely removed from any growing 

medium to the licensed premises of a marijuana processor or research certificate holder; 

or  

(c) Immature marijuana plants and seeds to the licensed premises of a marijuana 

producer, wholesaler, retailer or research certificate holder.  

(4) A producer may not sell a mature marijuana plant other than as provided in section 

(3)(b) of this rule.  

(5) A producer may provide a sample of usable marijuana to a marijuana wholesaler, 

retailer or processor licensee for the purpose of the licensee determining whether to 

purchase the product. The sample product may not be consumed on a licensed premises. 

Any sample provided to another licensee must be recorded in CTS. 

3/21/16
PAGE 48 



 
 
City of Newberg:  ORDINANCE NO. 2016-2798 PAGE 15 

 

Oregon Administrative Rule, Division 25 limits where a producer may operate, not in a primary 

residence. 

 

OAR 845-025-2030 

Licensed Premises of Producer  

(1) The licensed premises of a producer authorized to cultivate marijuana indoors 

includes all public and private enclosed areas used in the business operated at the location 

and any areas outside of a building that the Commission has licensed.  

(2) The licensed premises of a producer authorized to cultivate marijuana outdoors 

includes the entire lot or parcel, as defined in ORS 92.010, that the licensee owns, leases 

or has the right to occupy.  

(3) A producer may not engage in any privileges of the license within a primary 

residence. 

(4) The licensed premises of a producer may not be located at the same physical location 

or address as a marijuana grow site registered under ORS 475.304 unless the producer is 

also a person responsible for a marijuana grow site and has been issued a license by the 

Commission in accordance with section 116, chapter 614, Oregon Laws 2014, and OAR 

845-025-1100. 

 

Oregon Administrative Rule, Division 25 limits the size of canopy cover for mature marijuana 

plants. 

 

OAR 845-025-2040 

Production Size Limitations (1) Cultivation Batches and Cultivate Batch Sizes.  

(a) A producer must establish cultivation batches and assign each cultivation batch a 

unique identification number. (b) A cultivation batch may not have more than 100 

immature plants.  

(c) A producer may have an unlimited number of cultivation batches at any one time.  

(2) Canopy Size Limits.  

(a) Indoor Production.  

(A) Tier I: Up to 5,000 square feet.  

(B) Tier II: 5,001 to 10,000 square feet.  

(b) Outdoor production.  

(A) Tier I: Up to 20,000 square feet.  

(B) Tier II: 20,001 to 40,000 square feet.  

(c) Mixed production. If a producer intends to have a mixture of indoor and outdoor 

production the Commission will determine the producer’s tiers and canopy sizes by 

applying the ratio in section (4) of this rule.  

(d) For purposes of this section, square footage of canopy space is measured starting from 

the outermost point of the furthest mature flowering plant in a designated growing space 

and continuing around the outside of all mature flowering plants located within the 

designated growing space.  

(e) A producer may designate multiple grow canopy areas at a licensed premises but those 

spaces must be separated by a physical boundary such as an interior wall or by at least 10 

feet of open space.  

(f) If a local government adopts an ordinance that would permit a producer to have a 

higher canopy size limit than is permitted under this rule, the local government may 

petition the Commission for an increase in canopy size limits for that jurisdiction. If the 

3/21/16
PAGE 49 



 
 
City of Newberg:  ORDINANCE NO. 2016-2798 PAGE 16 

Commission grants such a petition, the Commission may amend this rule in addition to 

considering changes to the license fee schedule.  

(g) On an annual basis, the Commission will evaluate market demand for marijuana 

items, the number of person applying for producer licenses or licensed as producers and 

whether the availability of marijuana items in this state is commensurate with the market 

demand. Following this evaluation the Commission may amend this rule as needed.  

(3) Canopy Size Limit – Designation and Increases.  

(a) A producer must clearly identify designated canopy areas and proposed canopy size in 

the initial license application. A producer may change a designated canopy area within a 

production type at any time with prior written notice to Commission, but a producer may 

only change canopy tiers at the time of renewal in accordance with subsection (b) of this 

section. 

(b) A producer may submit a request to change canopy tiers at the time the producer 

submits an application for renewal of the license. The Commission will grant a request to 

increase the canopy tier for the producer’s next licensure term if:  

(A) The producer’s renewal application is otherwise complete;  

(B) There are no bases to deny or reject the producer’s renewal application;  

(C) The producer has not already reached the applicable maximum canopy size set forth 

in section (2) of this rule; and  

(D) During the preceding year of licensure, the producer has not been found to be in 

violation, and does not have any pending allegations of violations of chapter 1, Oregon 

Laws 2015, chapter 614, Oregon Laws 2015, or these rules. 

(c) The Commission shall give a producer an opportunity to be heard if a request is 

rejected under this section.  

(4) Mixed cultivation methods.  

(a) A producer may produce marijuana indoors and outdoors at the same time on the same 

licensed premises. The Commission must be notified of a producer’s plan to engage in 

the indoor and outdoor production of marijuana at the time of initial licensure or at 

renewal, and not at any other time. A producer who utilizes mixed production may only 

change designated canopy areas from one production type to another at the time the 

producer submits a renewal application. 

(b) The Commission must approve the canopy size applicable to each method.  

(c) The Commission will use a 4:1 ratio, for outdoor and indoor respectively, to allocate 

canopy size limits under this section, not to exceed the sum canopy size limits set forth in 

section (2) of this rule. For example, if a Tier II producer in the first year of licensure has 

5,000 square feet of indoor canopy space, then the producer may have up to 20,000 

square feet of outdoor canopy space at the same time.  

(5) Violations. An intentional violation of this rule is a Category I violation and may 

result in license revocation. All other violations are Category III violations. 

 

 

HB 3400, Section 14 established requirements to hold a processor license. The law states: 

 

SECTION 14. Section 20, chapter 1, Oregon Laws 2015, is amended to read: 

Sec. 20. (1) The processing of marijuana items is subject to regulation by the Oregon 

Liquor Control Commission. 

(2) A marijuana processor must have a processor license issued by the commission for the 

premises at which marijuana items are processed. To hold a processor license under 

3/21/16
PAGE 50 



 
 
City of Newberg:  ORDINANCE NO. 2016-2798 PAGE 17 

this section, a marijuana processor: 

(a) Must apply for a license in the manner described in section 28, chapter 1, 

Oregon Laws 2015; 

(b) Must, until January 1, 2020, provide proof that an applicant listed on an 

application submitted under section 28, chapter 1, Oregon Laws 2015, has been a 

resident of this state for two or more years, and must provide proof that the 

applicant is 21 years of age or older; 

(c) If the marijuana processor processes marijuana extracts, may not be located in 

an area zoned exclusively for residential use; and 

(d) Must meet the requirements of any rule adopted by the commission under 

subsection (3) of this section. 

(3) The commission shall adopt rules that: 

(a) Require a marijuana processor to annually renew a license issued under this 

section; 

(b) Establish application, licensure and renewal of licensure fees for marijuana 

processors; 

(c) Require marijuana processed by a marijuana processor to be tested in 

accordance with section 92 of this 2015 Act; and 

(d) Require a marijuana processor to meet any public health and safety standards 

and industry best practices established by the commission by rule related to: 

(A) Cannabinoid edibles; 

(B) Cannabinoid concentrates; 

(C) Cannabinoid extracts; and 

(D) Any other type of cannabinoid product identified by the commission by rule. 

(4) Fees adopted under subsection (3)(b) of this section: 

(a) May not exceed the cost of administering sections 3 to 70, chapter 1, Oregon 

Laws 2015, with respect to marijuana processors; and 

(b) Shall be deposited in the Marijuana Control and Regulation Fund established 

under section 32 of this 2015 Act. 

 

HB 3400, Section 72 established producer reporting requirements on quantities sold. The law 

states: 

 

(Form and Style Amendments) 

SECTION 72. Section 35, chapter 1, Oregon Laws 2015, is amended to read: 

Sec. 35. On or before the 20th day of each month, every marijuana producer shall file 

with the Oregon Liquor Control Commission a statement of the quantities of marijuana 

flowers, marijuana leaves[,] and immature marijuana plants sold by the marijuana 

producer during the preceding calendar month. 

HB 3400, Section 91established requirements for testing and includes a definition of 

“Processing” and “Producing”. The law states:  

TESTING 

OPERATIVE JANUARY 1, 2016 

 

3/21/16
PAGE 51 



 
 
City of Newberg:  ORDINANCE NO. 2016-2798 PAGE 18 

SECTION 91. As used in sections 91 to 99 of this 2015 Act: 

(1) “Cannabinoid” means any of the chemical compounds that are the active 

constituents of marijuana. 

(2) “Cannabinoid concentrate or extract” means a substance obtained by separating 

cannabinoids from marijuana by a mechanical, chemical or other process. 

(3) “Cannabinoid edible” means food or potable liquid into which a cannabinoid 

concentrate or extract or the dried leaves or flowers of marijuana have been 

incorporated. 

(4)(a) “Cannabinoid product” means a cannabinoid edible or any other product 

intended for human consumption or use, including a product intended to be applied 

to a person’s skin or hair, that contains cannabinoids or the dried leaves or flowers 

of marijuana. 

(b) “Cannabinoid product” does not include: 

(A) Usable marijuana by itself; 

(B) A cannabinoid concentrate or extract by itself; or 

(C) Industrial hemp, as defined in ORS 571.300. 

(5)(a) “Marijuana” means the plant Cannabis family Cannabaceae, any part of the 

plant Cannabis family Cannabaceae and the seeds of the plant Cannabis family 

Cannabaceae. 

(b) “Marijuana” does not include industrial hemp, as defined in ORS 571.300. 

(6) “Marijuana item” means marijuana, usable marijuana, a cannabinoid product 

or a cannabinoid concentrate or extract. 

(7) “Processing” means the compounding or conversion of marijuana into 

cannabinoid products or cannabinoid concentrates or extracts. 

(8) “Producing” means: 

(a) Planting, cultivating, growing, trimming or harvesting marijuana; or 

(b) Drying marijuana leaves and flowers. 

(9)(a) “Usable marijuana” means the dried leaves and flowers of marijuana. 

(b) “Usable marijuana” does not include: 

(A) The seeds, stalks and roots of marijuana; or 

(B) Waste material that is a by-product of producing or processing marijuana. 

 

HB 3400, Section 23 established a tracking system for production and processing. The law states: 

 

(Seed to Sale Tracking System) 

 

SECTION 23. (1) The Oregon Liquor Control Commission shall develop and 

maintain a system for tracking the transfer of marijuana items between licensed 

premises. 

(2) The purposes of the system developed and maintained under this section include, 

but are not limited to: 

(a) Preventing the diversion of marijuana items to criminal enterprises, gangs, 

cartels and other states; 

(b) Preventing persons from substituting or tampering with marijuana items; 

3/21/16
PAGE 52 



 
 
City of Newberg:  ORDINANCE NO. 2016-2798 PAGE 19 

(c) Ensuring an accurate accounting of the production, processing and sale of 

marijuana items; 

(d) Ensuring that taxes are collected for the purpose of being distributed as 

described in section 44, chapter 1, Oregon Laws 2015; 

(e) Ensuring that laboratory testing results are accurately reported; and 

(f) Ensuring compliance with the provisions of sections 3 to 70, chapter 1, Oregon 

Laws 2015, rules adopted under the provisions of sections 3 to 70, chapter 1, Oregon 

Laws 2015, and any other law of this state that charges the commission with a duty, 

function or power related to marijuana. 

(3) The system developed and maintained under this section must be capable of 

tracking, at a minimum: 

(a) The propagation of immature marijuana plants and the production of marijuana 

by a marijuana producer; 

(b) The processing of marijuana by a marijuana processor; 

(c) The receiving, storing and delivering of marijuana items by a marijuana 

wholesaler; 

(d) The sale of marijuana items by a marijuana retailer to a consumer; 

(e) The purchase and sale of marijuana items between licensees, as permitted by 

sections 3 to 70, chapter 1, Oregon Laws 2015; 

(f) The transfer of marijuana items between licensed premises; 

(g) The collection of taxes imposed upon the retail sale of marijuana items under 

section 70 of this 2015 Act; and 

(h) Any other information that the commission determines is reasonably necessary 

to accomplish the duties, functions and powers of the commission under sections 3 to 

70, chapter 1, Oregon Laws 2015. 

Oregon Administrative Rule, Division 25 requires endorsements for recreational marijuana 

processors. 

 

RETAIL MARIJUANA PROCESSORS 

 

OAR 845-025-3200 

Definitions For purposes of OAR 845-025-3200 to 845-025-3290:  

(1) “Cannabinoid topical” means a cannabinoid product intended to be applied to skin or 

hair.  

(2) “Food” means a raw, cooked, or processed edible substance, or ingredient used or 

intended for use or for sale in whole or in part for human consumption, or chewing gum. 

 

 

OAR 845-025-3210 

Endorsements  

(1) A marijuana processor may only process and sell cannabinoid products, concentrates 

or extracts if the processor has received an endorsement from the Commission for that 

type of processing activity. Endorsements types are:  

(a) Cannabinoid edible processor;  

(b) Cannabinoid topical processor;  

(c) Cannabinoid concentrate processor; and  

(d) Cannabinoid extract processor. 

3/21/16
PAGE 53 



 
 
City of Newberg:  ORDINANCE NO. 2016-2798 PAGE 20 

 (2) An applicant must request an endorsement upon submission of an initial application 

but may also request an endorsement at any time following licensure.  

(3) In order to apply for an endorsement an applicant or processor licensee must submit a 

form prescribed by the Commission that includes a description of the type of products to 

be processed, a description of equipment to be used, and any solvents, gases, chemicals or 

other compounds proposed to be used to create extracts or concentrates.  

(4) Only one application and license fee is required regardless of how many endorsements 

an applicant or licensee requests or at what time the request is made.  

(5) An individual processor licensee may hold multiple endorsements.  

(6) For the purposes of endorsements any cannabinoid product that is intended to be 

consumed orally is considered a cannabinoid edible. 

(7) If a processor is no longer going to process the product for which the processor is 

endorsed the processor must notify the Commission in writing and provide the date on 

which the processing of that product will cease.  

(8) The Commission may deny a processor’s request for an endorsement if the processor 

cannot or does not meet the requirements in OAR 845-025-3200 to 845-025-3290 for the 

endorsement that is requested. If the Commission denies approval the processor has a 

right to a hearing under the procedures of ORS chapter 183. 

 

Oregon Administrative Rule, Division 25 establishes requirements for equipment and surfaces 

for processors. 

 

OAR 845-025-3220 

General Processor Requirements  

(1) A processor must:  

(a) Use equipment, counters and surfaces for processing that are food-grade and do not 

react adversely with any solvent being used.  

(b) Have counters and surface areas that are constructed in a manner that reduce the 

potential for development of microbials, molds and fungi and that can be easily cleaned.  

(c) Maintain the licensed premises in a manner that is free from conditions which may 

result in contamination and that is suitable to facilitate safe and sanitary operations for 

product preparation purposes.  

(d) Store all marijuana items not in use in a locked area, including products that require 

refrigeration in accordance with OAR 845-025-1410. 

 (e) Assign every process lot a unique identification number and enter this information 

into CTS. 

(2) A processor may provide a sample of a cannabinoid product, concentrate or extract to 

a marijuana wholesaler or retailer for the purpose of the wholesaler or retailer licensee 

determining whether to purchase the product but the product may not be consumed on a 

licensed premises. Any sample provided to another licensee must be recorded in CTS.  

(3) A processor may not process or sell a marijuana item: 

(a) That by its shape and design is likely to appeal to minors, including but not limited to:  

(A) Products that are modeled after non-cannabis products primarily consumed by and 

marketed to children; or  

(B) Products in the shape of an animal, vehicle, person or character.  

(b) That is made by applying cannabinoid concentrates or extracts to commercially 

available candy or snack food items. 

 

3/21/16
PAGE 54 



 
 
City of Newberg:  ORDINANCE NO. 2016-2798 PAGE 21 

Oregon Administrative Rule, Division 25 establishes limitations on where processors can locate 

in regards to restaurant operations. 

 

OAR 845-025-3250 

Cannabinoid Edible Processor Requirements  

(1) A cannabinoid edible processor may only process in a food establishment licensed by 

the Oregon Department of Agriculture (ODA) and must comply with the applicable 

provisions of OAR 603, Division 21, Division 22, Division 24, Division 25, with the 

exception of OAR 603- 025-0020(17) and Division 28.  

(2) A cannabinoid edible processor may not:  

(a) Engage in processing in a location that is operating as a restaurant, seasonal temporary 

restaurant, intermittent temporary restaurant, limited service restaurant, single-event 

temporary restaurant, commissary, mobile unit, bed or breakfast, or warehouse licensed 

under ORS 624;  

(b) Share a food establishment with a person not licensed and endorsed by the 

Commission as a cannabinoid edible processor; 

(c) Process food intended for commercial sale that does not contain cannabinoids, at the 

licensed premises; or  

(d) Use a cannabinoid concentrate or extract to process food unless that concentrate or 

extract was made by a processor licensed by the ODA under ORS 616.706.  

(3) A cannabinoid edible processor may share a food establishment with another 

cannabinoid edible processor if:  

(a) The schedule, with specific hours and days that each processor will use the food 

establishment, is prominently posted at the entrance to the food service establishment and 

has been approved by the Commission:  

(A) The schedule must be submitted to the Commission in writing and will be approved if 

it demonstrates that use of a shared food establishment by multiple cannabinoid edible 

processors does not create an increased compliance risk.  

(B) A processor licensee may only change the schedule with prior written approval from 

the Commission. (b) Each licensee designates a separate area to secure, in accordance 

with OAR 845-025-1410, any marijuana, cannabinoid products, concentrates or extracts 

that a licensee stores at the food establishment. If a cannabinoid edible processor does not 

store marijuana, cannabinoid products, concentrates or extracts at the food establishment 

those items must be stored on a licensed premises. 

(4) A food establishment used by a cannabinoid edible processor is considered a licensed 

premises and must meet the security and other licensed premises requirements in these 

rules. 

(5) A cannabinoid edible processor is strictly liable for any violation found at a shared 

food establishment during that processor’s scheduled time or within that processor’s 

designated area in the food establishment. 

 

Oregon Administrative Rule, Division 25 establishes rules for concentrate and extract processors. 

 

OAR 845-025-3260 

Cannabinoid Concentrate and Extract Processor Requirements  

(1) Cannabinoid Concentrates or Extracts. A processor with a cannabinoid concentrate or 

extract endorsement:  

3/21/16
PAGE 55 



 
 
City of Newberg:  ORDINANCE NO. 2016-2798 PAGE 22 

(a) May not use Class I solvents as those are classified in the Federal Drug 

Administration Guidance, Table I, published in the Federal Register on December 24, 

1997 (62 FR 67377).  

(b) Must:  

(A) Only use a hydrocarbon-based solvent that is at least 99 percent purity.  

(B) Only use a non-hydrocarbon-based solvent that is food-grade.  

(C) Work in an environment with proper ventilation, controlling all sources of ignition 

where a flammable atmosphere is or may be present.  

(D) Use only potable water and ice made from potable water in processing.  

(E) If making a concentrate or extract that will be used in a cannabinoid edible, be 

endorsed as a cannabinoid edible processor and comply with OAR 845-025-3250.  

(2) Cannabinoid Extracts. A processor with an endorsement to make cannabinoid 

extracts:  

(a) May not use pressurized canned butane.  

(b) Must:  

(A) Process in a:  

(i) Fully enclosed room clearly designated on the current diagram of the licensed 

premises. 

(ii) Spark proof room equipped with evacuation fans and lower explosive limit (LEL) 

detectors.  

(B) Use a commercially manufactured professional grade closed loop extraction system 

designed to recover the solvents and built to codes of recognized and generally accepted 

good engineering practices, such as:  

(i) The American Society of Mechanical Engineers (ASME);  

(ii) American National Standards Institute (ANSI);  

(iii) Underwriters Laboratories (UL); or  

(iv) The American Society for Testing and Materials (ASTM).  

(C) If using CO2 in processing, use a professional grade closed loop CO2 gas extraction 

system where every vessel is rated to a minimum of nine hundred pounds per square inch.  

(D) Have equipment and facilities used in processing approved for use by the local fire 

code official;  

(E) Meet any required fire, safety, and building code requirements specified in:  

(i) Applicable Oregon laws; 

 (ii) National Fire Protection Association (NFPA) standards;  

(iii) International Building Code (IBC); 

(iv) International Fire Code (IFC); and  

(F) Have an emergency eye-wash station in any room in which cannabinoid extract is 

being processed; and  

(G) Have all applicable material safety data sheets readily available to personnel working 

for the processor.  

(3) Cannabinoid Concentrates. A processor with an endorsement to make cannabinoid 

concentrates:  

(a) May not: 

(A) Use denatured alcohol.  

(B) If using carbon dioxide, apply high heat or pressure.  

(b) Must only use or store dry ice in a well-ventilated room to prevent against the 

accumulation of dangerous levels of CO2. (c) May use:  

(A) A mechanical extraction process;  

3/21/16
PAGE 56 



 
 
City of Newberg:  ORDINANCE NO. 2016-2798 PAGE 23 

(B) A chemical extraction process using a nonhydrocarbon-based or other solvent, such 

as water, vegetable glycerin, vegetable oils, animal fats, isopropyl alcohol or ethanol; or  

(C) A chemical extraction process using the hydrocarbon-based solvent carbon dioxide, 

provided that the process does not involve the use heat over 180 degrees or pressure. 

 

Oregon Administrative Rule, Division 25 limits where topical processor may operate in regards 

to restaurants. 

 

OAR 845-025-3280 

Cannabinoid Topical Processor  

A processor with a cannabinoid topical endorsement may not engage in processing in a 

location that is operating as a restaurant, seasonal temporary restaurant, intermittent 

temporary restaurant, limited service restaurant or single-event temporary restaurant 

licensed under ORS 624. 

 

Oregon Administrative Rule, Division 25 establishes rules for waste from production and 

processing operations. 

 

WASTE MANAGEMENT 

 

OAR 845-025-7750 

Waste Management  

(1) A licensee must:  

(a) Store, manage and dispose of solid and liquid wastes generated during marijuana 

production and processing in accordance with applicable state and local laws and 

regulations which may include but are not limited to:.  

(A) Solid waste requirements in ORS 459 and OAR 340 Divisions 93 to 96;  

(B) Hazardous waste requirements in ORS 466 and OAR 340, Divisions 100 to 106; and  

(C) Wastewater requirements in ORS 468B and OAR 340, Divisions 41 to 42, 44 to 45, 

53, 55 and 73.  

(b) Store marijuana waste in a secured waste receptacle in the possession of and under the 

control of the licensee.  

(2) A licensee may give or sell marijuana waste to a producer, processor or wholesale 

licensee or research certificate holder. Any such transaction must be entered into CTS 

pursuant to OAR 845- 025-7500.  

(3) In addition to information required to be entered into CTS pursuant to OAR 845-025-

7500, a licensee must maintain accurate and comprehensive records regarding waste 

material that accounts for, reconciles, and evidences all waste activity related to the 

disposal of marijuana. 

 

 

HB 3400, Section 89 allows local government to regulate the manner and access hours of 

marijuana grow sites and processing sites. There are no additional provisions in ORS or OAR’s 

regarding manner of operation for grow sites or processors. The City Council may want to 

consider if a grow site can occur outdoors or indoors. If outdoors what type of visual screening or 

security requirements should be established? There may be other manners of operation the City 

COuncil identifies for discussion and consideration.  

 

 

3/21/16
PAGE 57 



 
 
City of Newberg:  ORDINANCE NO. 2016-2798 PAGE 24 

Staff therefore proposes the following code amendments for Recreational Marijuana Producers and 

Processors:  

 

 Prohibit Recreational Marijuana Producer as an indoor or outdoor use in R-1, R-2, R-3, R-4, R-P, 

AR, R-1/PD, R-1/0.1, R-1/.04, R-1/6.6, R-1/SP, R-2/PD, R-2/SP, SD/LDR, SD/MMR, R-3/PD, 

RP/SP, RP/LU, C-1, C-2, C-3, C-4, C-1/SP, C-2/LU, C-2,PD, C-2/SP, C-3/LU, SD/V, SD/NC, 

SD/H, CC, M-4-C, CF, CF/RF, RF, I, IO, FHO, AI, AIO, H, SC, BI. 

 Add Recreational Marijuana Producer as an indoor permitted use in in M-1, M-2, M-3, M-4-I, 

M-1/SP, SD/E and II. 

 Add Recreational Marijuana Producer as a conditional outdoor use in in M-1, M-2, M-3, M-4-I, 

M-1/SP, SD/E and II. 

 Add Recreational Marijuana Processor as a permitted indoor use in M-1, M-2, M-3, M-4-I and 

SD/E. 

 Prohibits Recreational Marijuana Processor in all residential, commercial, community facility, 

institutional, airport industrial and miscellaneous districts and subdistricts. 

 Add definitions for Recreational Marijuana Producer and Processor. 

F. MARIJUANA SUBCOMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION: The Subcommittee developed 

the following recommendations. 

Marijuana Processors: 

1. Allow Recreational Marijuana Processor in industrial zoning categories as a permitted 

use indoors (M-1, M-2, M-3, M-4 and SD/E).  

2. Prohibit Recreational Marijuana Processor in AI and AIO and all residential, commercial 

community facility, institutional and miscellaneous districts and subdistricts. 

3. Add a definition for Recreational Marijuana Processor. 

Marijuana Producers: 

1. Allow Recreational Marijuana Producer as a conditional use indoors in certain residential 

districts or subdistricts (R-1, R-2, R-1/PD, R-1/0.1, R-1/.04, R-1/6.6, R-1/SP, R-2/PD, R-

2/SP and SD/LDR). 

2. Prohibit Recreational Marijuana Producer in commercial districts and subdistricts. 

3. Prohibit Recreational Marijuana Producer in the Community Facility district and 

subdistrict. 

4. Prohibit Recreational Marijuana Producer in the Institutional district and subdistrict. 

5. Allow Recreational Marijuana Producer in industrial zones as a permitted use indoors in 

M-1, M-2, M-3, M-4, SD/E, M-1/SP and II. 

6. Allow Recreational Marijuana Producer in industrial zones as a conditional use outdoors 

in M-1, M-2, M-3, M-4, M-1/SP, SD/E and II. 

3/21/16
PAGE 58 



 
 
City of Newberg:  ORDINANCE NO. 2016-2798 PAGE 25 

7. Prohibit Recreational Marijuana Producer in AI and AIO. 

8. Prohibit Recreational Marijuana Producer in H, SC and BI. 

9. Add a definition for Recreational Marijuana Producer. 

 

G. PLANNING COMMISSION RECOMMENDATION 

The Newberg Planning Commission held a public hearing on February 25, 2016, heard public 

testimony, and approved Resolution 2015-313, which recommends that the City Council: 

 

 Prohibit Recreational Marijuana Producer as an indoor or outdoor use in R-1, R-2, R-3, R-4, R-P, 

AR, R-1/PD, R-1/0.1, R-1/.04, R-1/6.6, R-1/SP, R-2/PD, R-2/SP, SD/LDR, SD/MMR, R-3/PD, 

RP/SP, RP/LU, C-1, C-2, C-3, C-4, C-1/SP, C-2/LU, C-2,PD, C-2/SP, C-3/LU, SD/V, SD/NC, 

SD/H, CC, M-4-C, CF, CF/RF, RF, I, IO, FHO, AI, AIO, H, SC, BI. 

 Add Recreational Marijuana Producer as an indoor permitted use in in M-1, M-2, M-3, M-4-I, 

M-1/SP, SD/E and II. 

 Add Recreational Marijuana Producer as a conditional outdoor use in in M-1, M-2, M-3, M-4-I, 

M-1/SP, SD/E and II. 

 Add Recreational Marijuana Processor as a permitted indoor use in M-1, M-2, M-3, M-4-I and 

SD/E. 

 Prohibits Recreational Marijuana Processor in all residential, commercial, community facility, 

institutional, airport industrial and miscellaneous districts and subdistricts. 

 Add definitions for Recreational Marijuana Producer and Processor. 

 

FISCAL IMPACT: The fiscal impact of allowing recreational marijuana producers and processors is 

unknown at this time. 

 

 

STRATEGIC ASSESSMENT (RELATE TO COUNCIL GOALS): 

Recreational Marijuana Producers and Processors are a legal activity under state law, and the city wishes 

to allow businesses the opportunity to operate in the city. Zoning restrictions on the uses are appropriate 

to address potential adverse impacts on adjacent uses. 

 

 

ATTACHMENTS: 

Ordinance 2016-2798 with 

 Exhibit “A”:  Proposed Development Code Text Amendment 

 Exhibit “B”:  Findings 

1. Resolution No. 2015-3248  

2. Planning Commission Resolution 2016-313 

  

3/21/16
PAGE 59 



 
 
City of Newberg:  ORDINANCE NO. 2016-2798 PAGE 1 

 

ORDINANCE NO. 2016-2798 

 

 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE NEWBERG DEVELOPMENT CODE 

REGARDING RECREATIONAL MARIJUANA PRODUCERS AND 

PROCESSORS; AND DECLARING AN EMERGENCY 
 

 

RECITALS: 

 

1. Measure 91 was approved by Oregon voters in November 2014 and House Bill 3400 was enacted by 

the Oregon Legislature in 2015 related to recreational marijuana. 

 

2. The Oregon Liquor Control Commission adopted temporary Oregon Administrative Rules (OAR’s) 

on October 22, 2015 that were subsequently modified on November 20, 2015 for recreational 

marijuana under Chapter 845, Division 25. 

 

3. The Newberg City Council established the Marijuana Subcommittee on September 8, 2015 to 

review and provide recommendations on local place, time and manner regulations for 

recreational marijuana. 

 

4. The Newberg City Council initiated a potential amendment to Newberg's Development Code 

regarding recreational marijuana producers and processors on January 4, 2016, under City Council 

Resolution 2015-3248. 

 

5. The Marijuana Subcommittee met on January 12, 2016 and developed recommendations to the 

Planning Commission on recreational marijuana producers and processors. 

 

6. After proper notice, the Newberg Planning Commission held a hearing on February 25, 2016 to 

consider the amendment for recreational marijuana producers and processors.  The Commission 

considered testimony, deliberated, and found that adding regulations for recreational marijuana 

producers and processors would be in the best interests of the city. The Planning Commission 

approved Resolution 2016-313, which recommends that the City Council adopt the proposed 

amendments to the Newberg Development Code.   

 

7. After proper notice, the Newberg City Council held a hearing on March 21, 2016 to consider the 

proposed amendment.  The Council considered testimony and deliberated. 

 

 

THE CITY OF NEWBERG ORDAINS AS FOLLOWS: 

 

1. The Council finds that adding regulations for recreational marijuana producers and processors 

would be in the best interests of the city. The Council adopts the amendments to the Newberg 

Development Code as shown in Exhibit “A”.  Exhibit "A" is hereby adopted and by this 

reference incorporated. 

 

3/21/16
PAGE 60 



 
 
City of Newberg:  ORDINANCE NO. 2016-2798 PAGE 2 

2. The findings shown in Exhibit “B” are hereby adopted.  Exhibit "B" is by this reference 

incorporated. 

 

3. This ordinance being necessary for the immediate preservation of the public peace, health and 

safety, an emergency is declared to exist, and this ordinance shall be in full force and effect 

immediately upon passage by the council and signature of the mayor. 

 

 

 

 

 
 EFFECTIVE DATE of this ordinance is March 22, 2016. 

ADOPTED by the City Council of the City of Newberg, Oregon, this 21st day of  March, 2016, by the 

following votes:  AYE:   NAY:  ABSENT:    ABSTAIN:          
 

 

_______________________________ 

Sue Ryan, City Recorder 

 

ATTEST by the Mayor this                day of              , 2016. 

 

 

____________________ 

Bob Andrews, Mayor 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

3/21/16
PAGE 61 



 
 
City of Newberg:  ORDINANCE NO. 2016-2798 PAGE 3 

 

 

 

 

Exhibit “A” to Ordinance 2016-2798 

Development Code Amendments –File DCA-15-003 

Recreational Marijuana Producers  

and Processors 

 

 

 

Section 1.  The Newberg Development Code 15.05.030 shall be amended to read as follows: 

 

Note:   Existing text is shown in regular font. 

 Added text is shown in double-underline 

 Deleted text is shown in strikethrough. 

 

 

 15.05.030 Definitions  

 

“Marijuana processor” means a person who processes marijuana items in this state. 

 

“Marijuana producer” means a person who produces marijuana in this state. 

 

Section 2.  Newberg Development Code, Zoning Use Table, Section 15.305.020 shall be amended to 

read as follows: 

 

 

See Exhibit A, Attachment 1 

 

 

Section 3.  Newberg Development Code, Zoning Use Table, Section 15.305.030 shall be amended to 

read as follows: 

 

 

See Exhibit A, Attachment 2 

 

 

 

Section 4.  Newberg Development Code, Stream Corridor Overlay Subdistrict, Section 15.342.110 

is amended to read as follows:  

 

15.342.110 Prohibited uses and activities. 

The following activities or uses are prohibited within this subdistrict: 

A. Except as provided in NMC 15.342.040(R), the planting or propagation of any plant identified 

3/21/16
PAGE 62 

http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=289
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/html/Newberg15/Newberg15342.html#15.342.040


 
 
City of Newberg:  ORDINANCE NO. 2016-2798 PAGE 4 

as a nuisance plant as determined by a qualified botanist or indicated as a nuisance plant on the 

Newberg plant list. 

B. The removal of native trees that are greater than six inches in diameter at breast height, except 

as is otherwise permitted within this chapter. 

C. Any use dealing with hazardous substances or materials, including but not limited to gas 

service stations. 

D. Public pathways, except those in conjunction with public lands, public parks or 

public easements that have been acquired by other than eminent domain. [Ord. 2451, 12-2-96. 

Code 2001 § 151.475.] 

E. Recreational Marijuana Producer and Recreational Marijuana Processor. 

 

Section 5.  Newberg Development Code, Civic Corridor Overlay Subdistrict, Section 15.350.030 is 

amended to read as follows:  

15.350.030 Permitted buildings and uses. 

All uses permitted in the underlying primary district are permitted within the CC subdistrict 

except as follows: 

A. In addition to the buildings and uses permitted conditionally in NMC 15.305.020, 

the planning commission may grant a conditional use permit for any of the 

following buildings and uses in accordance with a Type III procedure: 

1. Facilities which exist for the purpose of providing for the temporary care and/or 

lodging of adult indigent persons. 

2. Hospitals. 

B. The following uses are prohibited within the CC subdistrict: 

1. Automobile sales, new and used. 

2. Car washes, coin-operated or mechanical. 

3. Garages, repair. 

4. Service stations. [Amended during 11/13 supplement; Ord. 2561, 4-1-02. Code 2001 

§ 151.526.3.] 

5.  Recreational Marijuana Producer and Recreational Marijuana Processor. 

Section 6.  Newberg Development Code, Bypass Interchange Overlay, Section 15.356.050 is 

amended to read as follows:  

15.356.050 Prohibited uses. 

3/21/16
PAGE 63 

http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=289
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=216.1
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=109
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/html/ords/Ord2451.pdf
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=289
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=50
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=289
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/html/Newberg15/Newberg15305.html#15.305.020
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=229
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=81
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=50
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=289
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=226
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=161
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=289
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=197
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/html/ords/Ord2561.pdf


 
 
City of Newberg:  ORDINANCE NO. 2016-2798 PAGE 5 

A. Several commercial types of uses are permitted outright or with conditional use approval in 

Newberg’s industrial districts (M-1, M-2, and M-3). The area within the Newberg UGB near the 

Oregon 219 Interchange is generally planned for industrial use. To protect the interchange area 

from commercial development, the following uses are prohibited within the M-1, M-2, and M-3 

districts within the boundaries of the bypass interchange overlay: 

1. Automobile sales, new and used. 

2. Billboards. 

3. Car washes. 

4. Convenience grocery stores. 

5. Restaurants larger than 2,000 square feet or with drive-up service windows. 

6. Service stations. 

7. Drive-in theaters. 

8. Auction sales. 

9. Bakeries, retail. 

10. Building material sales. 

11. Driving ranges. 

12. Feed and seed stores. 

13. Miniature golf courses. 

14. Skating rinks. 

15. Recreational Marijuana Producer and Recreational Marijuana Processor. 

B. The industrial commercial subdistrict of the M-4 district shall not be applied within the 

boundaries of the BI overlay. [Ord. 2734 § 1 (Exh. B), 3-7-11; Ord. 2708 § 2, 12-1-08; 

Ord. 2602, 9-20-04. Code 2001 § 151.531.4.] 

 

Section 7.  Newberg Development Code, Interim Industrial Overlay, Section 15.358.030 is 

amended to read as follows:  

15.358.030 Permitted uses. 

All uses of land and water that are permitted in the underlying zoning district(s) are also 

permitted in the interim industrial overlay, with the exception of those uses listed in 

NMC 15.358.050. In addition, the following are permitted: 

3/21/16
PAGE 64 

http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=289
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=289
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=289
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=289
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=197
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=247
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=50
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=141.1
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/html/ords/Ord2734.pdf
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/html/ords/Ord2708.pdf
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/html/ords/Ord2602.pdf
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=289
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=289
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/html/Newberg15/Newberg15358.html#15.358.050


 
 
City of Newberg:  ORDINANCE NO. 2016-2798 PAGE 6 

A. Contractor’s equipment or storage. 

B. Construction material storage. [Ord. 2720 § 1(5), 11-2-09. Code 2001 § 151.532.2.] 

C. Recreational Marijuana Producer (indoor). 

 

Section 8.  Newberg Development Code, Interim Industrial Overlay, Section 15.358.040 is 

amended to read as follows: 

15.358.040 Conditional uses. 

A. Use of land and water that are listed as conditional uses in the underlying zoning district(s) 

may also be allowed in the interim industrial overlay, with the exception of uses included in the 

list of prohibited uses in NMC 15.358.050. 

B. Proposed conditional uses in the interim industrial overlay are subject to the standard 

conditional use criteria and procedures of this code. [Ord. 2720 § 1(5), 11-2-09. Code 2001 

§ 151.532.3.] 

C. Recreational Marijuana Producer (outdoor). 

 

Section 9.  Newberg Development Code, Interim Industrial Overlay, Section 15.358.050 is 

amended to read as follows: 

15.358.050 Prohibited uses. 

The following uses are prohibited in the interim industrial overlay: 

A. Cemeteries. 

B. Garbage dumps, sanitary landfills. 

C. Parks. 

D. Permanent buildings. 

E. Wrecking yards for motor vehicles, building materials, and other similar items. 

[Ord. 2720 § 1(5), 11-2-09. Code 2001 § 151.532.4.] 

F. Recreational Marijuana Processor. 

 

 

 

 

 

3/21/16
PAGE 65 

http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/html/ords/Ord2720.pdf
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=289
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=289
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=289
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=289
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/html/Newberg15/Newberg15358.html#15.358.050
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=289
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=289
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=72
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/html/ords/Ord2720.pdf
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=289
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=64
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=216.1
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=50
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=302
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=50
http://www.codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/html/ords/Ord2720.pdf


 
 
City of Newberg:  ORDINANCE NO. 2016-2798 PAGE 7 

 

 

Exhibit “B” to Ordinance 2016-2798 

Findings –File DCA-15-003 

Recreational Marijuana Producers   

 and Processors  
 

 

 

Findings –File DCA-15-003 

Recreational Marijuana Producers and Processors 

I. Statewide Planning Goals - relevant goals 

 Goal 1, Citizen Involvement, requires the provision of opportunities for citizens to be 

 involved in all phases of the planning process.  

Finding:  The City Council initiated the potential development code amendment at a public meeting on 

January 4, 2016. The Marijuana Subcommittee meet on January 12, 2016 at a public meeting to review 

potential place, time and manner regulations for Recreational Marijuana Producers and Processors. The 

Planning Commission, after proper notice, held a public hearing on February 25, 2016. The City Council 

considered the recommendation of the Planning Commission at a public hearing on March 21, 2016, and 

decided whether or not to adopt the development code amendment. The development code amendment 

process provides opportunity for public comments throughout the planning process.  

Goal 2, Land Use Planning, requires the development of a process and policy framework that 

acts as a basis for all land use decisions.  

Finding: The Recreational Marijuana Producer and Processor proposal is supportive of this goal because 

it was developed following city procedures for legislative action. 

II. Newberg Comprehensive Plan - relevant policies 

A. CITIZEN INVOLVEMENT GOAL: To maintain a Citizen Involvement Program that 

offers citizens the opportunity for involvement in all phases of the planning process.  

 

Finding:  The City Council initiated the potential development code amendment at a public meeting on 

January 4, 2016. The Marijuana Subcommittee meet on January 12, 2016 at a public meeting to review 

potential place, time and manner regulations for Recreational Producers and Processors. The Planning 

Commission, after proper notice, held a public hearing on February 25, 2016. The City Council 

considered the recommendation of the Planning Commission at a future public hearing on March 21, 

2016, and decided  whether or not to adopt the development code amendment. The development code 

amendment process provides opportunity for public comments throughout the planning process.  

B. LAND USE PLANNING GOAL: To maintain an on-going land use planning program to 

implement statewide and local goals. The program shall be consistent with natural and cultural 

resources and needs. 

 

Finding: The Recreational Marijuana Producers and Processors proposal is supportive of this goal 

3/21/16
PAGE 66 



 
 
City of Newberg:  ORDINANCE NO. 2016-2798 PAGE 8 

because it was developed following city procedures for legislative action. 

H. THE ECONOMY GOAL: To develop a diverse and stable economic base.  

1. General Policies  

c. The City will encourage the creation of a diversified employment base, the strengthening of 

trade centers and the attraction of both capital and labor intensive enterprises.  

g. The City shall encourage business and industry to locate within the Newberg City limits. 

 

Finding:  The city encourages new businesses to develop within the city. A Recreational Producer or 

Processor operation is a legal operation under State law. Allowing Recreational Marijuana Producer as a 

conditional use indoors in certain residential districts and subdistricts; as a permitted use indoors in 

industrial districts or subdistricts or as a conditional use for outdoor operations; prohibiting Recreational 

Marijuana Producer in commercial, community facility, institutional and airport districts and 

subdistricts; and allowing Recreational Marijuana Processor as a permitted use in M-1, M-2, M-3, M-4, 

and SD/E is consistent with this Comprehensive Plan goal. 

III. Conclusion:  The proposed development code amendments meet the applicable requirements of 

the Statewide Planning Goals, and the Newberg Comprehensive Plan, and should be approved.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

3/21/16
PAGE 67 



#
Use

R-1 R-2 R-3 R-4 RP C-1 C-2 C-3 C-4 M-1 M-2 M-3 M-4-I M-4-C CF I AR AI
Notes and 

Special UseStandards

100 AGRICULTURALUSES

Def. Horticulture P P P(1) P(1) P(1) P(1) P(1) P(1) P(1) P(1) P(1) P(1) P(1) P(1) P(1) P(1) P(1) P(1)

Def.
Livestock and poultry 

farming
X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X

Def.
Home gardening

P P P P P P P P P P P P P P P P P P

Def. Home livestock and 

poultry raising
S S S NMC Title 6

200 RESIDENTIAL USES

Def. Dwelling, single-family 

detached

P(2) P P(3) P C(4) C(5) P P(6)
Subject to density limits 

of NMC15.405.010(B)

Def. Dwelling, single-family 

attached

S(2) S S(3) S C(4) C(5) P P(6)

NMC15.415.050; subject to 

density limits of 

NMC15.405.010(B)

Def.
Manufactured homeon 

individual lot
S(2) S S(3) P(7) S P(6)

NMC15.445.050 –15.445.0

70; subject to density limits 

of NMC15.405.010(B)

Def.
Manufactured dwelling 

park
S S S

NMC15.445.075 –15.445.1

60

Def.
Mobile home park

S S S
NMC15.445.075 –15.445.1

60

Def.
Manufactured home 

subdivision
S S

NMC15.445.075 –15.445.1

60

Def. Dwelling, two-

family (duplex)

P(2) P P C P C(4)
P(8)/C

(5)
P

Subject to density limits 

of NMC15.405.010(B)

Def.

Dwelling, multifamily

C P P C P C(4)
P(8)/C

(5)
P

Subject to density limits 

of NMC15.405.010(B)

Def.

Dwelling, accessory
C S S S S

Chapter15.445 NMC, 

Article V

Def.
Dwelling, mixed use

P(9) P(10)
P(8)/C

(5)
P(11) C C

Def.

Dwelling, caretaker

P P P C P(12)

Limited to one per lot, and 

allowed whenever 

theuse requires the on-site 

residence of such person.

Def. Dormitory C P P P

Def.
Home occupation(no 

more than one outside 

paid employee)

S S S(13) S S S(13) S(13) S(13) S(13) S(13) S(13) S(13) S(13) S(13) S(13) S S S(13) NMC15.415.060

Def. Home occupation(more 

than one outside paid 

employee)

C C C(13) C C C(13) C(13) C(13) C(13) C(13) C(13) C(13) C(13) C(13) C(13) C C C(13) NMC15.415.060

300

310

Def.
Family child care home

P P P(13) P(13) P P(13) P(13) P(13) P(13) P P(13) Chapter 657AORS

312 Day care P P P C P P P P C C C C P P P(14) Chapter 657AORS

Def.

Residential care 

home (5 or fewer 

people)
P P P(13) P(13) P P(13) P(13) P(13) P(13) P P(13) ORS 197.665

Def. Residential care 

facility (6 – 15 people)

C P P C P C C P ORS 197.665

315 Group care facility(16+ 

people)
C C C C C P

316 Hospital C C C C P P P

Def. Prison C C C C

320 ASSEMBLY

321 Religious institution, 

place of worship
P P P P P P P P P P(29) C P

322
Private club, lodge, 

meeting hall
C C P P C P

330 SCHOOLS

Exhibit A, Attachment 1 

Newberg Development Code – Zoning Use Table 

INSTITUTIONAL AND PUBLIC USES
INSTITUTIONAL CARE AND HOUSING

Chapter 

15.305
ZONING 

USE 

15.305.020 Zoning use table - Use Districts.

3/21/16
PAGE 68 

http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=289
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/cgi/extract.pl?def=289
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/html/Newberg06/Newberg06.html
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/html/Newberg15/Newberg15405.html
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/html/Newberg15/Newberg15405.html
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/html/Newberg15/Newberg15405.html
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/html/Newberg15/Newberg15405.html
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/html/Newberg15/Newberg15405.html
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/html/Newberg15/Newberg15405.html
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/html/Newberg15/Newberg15445.html
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/html/Newberg15/Newberg15445.html
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/html/Newberg15/Newberg15415.html
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/html/Newberg15/Newberg15415.html
http://www.codepublishing.com/cgi-bin/ors.pl?cite=657a
http://www.codepublishing.com/cgi-bin/ors.pl?cite=657a
http://www.codepublishing.com/cgi-bin/ors.pl?cite=197.665
http://www.codepublishing.com/cgi-bin/ors.pl?cite=197.665


330
School, primary or 

secondary
P P P P C

331 College P P P P P P P(15) C P

332
Commercial educational 

services
C C C C P P P C

340
PARKS AND OPEN 

SPACEs

341 Open space P P P P P P P P P P P P P P P P P P

342 Park P P P P P P P P P P(16) P(17) P

Def. Golf course P P P P(17)

350 PUBLIC SERVICES

351 Community services C C C C P P P P C P

352 Emergency services P P P P P P P P P P P P P P P P P P

Def. Pound, dog or cat C C C P P C C

Def. Cemetery C C C C C C C C C C C C C C C C C C Chapter 97.46ORS

360 TRANSPORTATION

Def. Transportation facilities 

and improvements

P P P P P P P P P P P P P P P P P P

Def. Transit center P P P P P P

Def. Parking facility P C C P P(18) C P P P P P

Def. Airport, landing field C C P

Def. Heliport, helipad C C C C C C C C C C C C C C C C C P

Def. Marina C

Pilings, piers, docks, and 

similar in-

waterstructures

C

370 UTILITIES

Def. Basic utilities P P P P P P P P P P P P P P P P P P

Def.
Utility distribution plant 

or yard
P P P

Def.
Wastewater treatment 

plant
C P C

Def.

Telecommunication 

facility incorporated into 

existing structure/utility 

pole and no taller than 

18 feet above existing 

structure/utility pole

C C C C C S S S S S S S S S S
Chapter15.445 NMC, 

Article IV

Def.

Telecommunication 

facility, 

includingradio towers and 

transmitters, which are 100 

feet or less in height, 

except those incorporated 

into an existingstructure no 

taller than 18 feet above 

that structure.

C C C C S(19) S(19) P C C
Chapter15.445 NMC, 

Article IV

Def.

Telecommunication 

facility, 

includingradio towers and 

transmitters, which are over 

100 feet

C C C C C C C C C
Chapter15.445 NMC, 

Article IV

400 COMMERCIAL USES

410 COMMERCIAL OFFICES

411 Medical office C P P(20) P P(21) P

412
Local business office

P(22) P(20) P P(21)

420

421 Retail sales – General P(20) P
P(15) 

(21)
P P(23)

422
Retail sales – Bulk 

outdoor
P C P

423
Retail sales – 

Convenience
P(20) P P(21) P P(24) P(25)

Def. Temporary merchant S S(21) NMC5.15.050 et seq.

Medical marijuana 

dispensary
P(35) P(35)

425
Retail food and 

beverage production
S S

Chapter15.445 NMC, 

Article VIII

430

430
Eating and drinking – 

Alcohol-related
P P(21) P Requires liquor license

430
Eating and drinking – Non-

alcohol-related
P(20) P P(21) P P P C(26)

440
COMMERCIAL SERVICES

441 Personal services P P(20) P P(21) P

442 Commercial services P(20) P P(21)

443
Commercial vehicle 

service P C P(27) P P(28)

Def. Kennel, commercial C C C P P C C

450

COMMERCIAL SALES AND RENTALS

EATING AND DRINKING ESTABLISHMENTS

COMMERCIAL RECREATION

3/21/16
PAGE 69 

http://www.codepublishing.com/cgi-bin/ors.pl?cite=97.46
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/html/Newberg15/Newberg15445.html
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/html/Newberg15/Newberg15445.html
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/html/Newberg15/Newberg15445.html
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/html/Newberg15/Newberg15445.html
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/html/Newberg15/Newberg15445.html
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/html/Newberg15/Newberg15445.html
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/html/Newberg05/Newberg0515.html
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/html/Newberg15/Newberg15445.html
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/html/Newberg15/Newberg15445.html


451
Commercial recreation 

– Indoors
P P(15) P(29) P(29)

452 Commercial recreation 

– Outdoors

P C

453 Commercial recreation 

– Motor-vehicle-related

C C(33)

460 COMMERCIAL LODGING

Def.
Vacation rental home

C C S S S S(13) S(13) S(13) S(13)
Chapter15.445 NMC, 

Article VII

Def.
Bed and breakfast(2 or 

fewer rooms)
C S S S S S S S NMC15.445.010

Def. Bed and breakfast(3 or 

more rooms)
C C C C C S S S NMC15.445.010

Def. Hotel or motel P P(15) P C(26)

Def.
Recreational vehicle 

park
C C C C C NMC15.445.170

500 INDUSTRIAL USES

501 Traded sector industry 

office
P(30) P(30) P P P P P P(33)

502 Industrial services C P P P P(33)

503
Wholesale and industry 

sales
C(31) P(31) P P P P(33)

504
Warehouse, storage, 

and distribution
P(32) P P P P(33)

505
Self-service storage

P P P P P

506 Light manufacturing P P P P P(33)

507
Heavy manufacturing

P(34) P C

508 Waste-related C C

600 MISCELLANEOUS USES

Def.

Accessory 

buildingand use incidental 

to other permitted usesin 

the zone

P P P P P P P P P P P P P P P P P P

Uses similar to 

permitted uses in the zone 

and not defined or 

categorized

P P P P P P P P P P P P P P P P P P

Uses similar to 

conditional uses in the 

zone and not defined or 

categorized

C C C C C C C C C C C C C C C C C C

Medical Marijuana 

Processor
P P P P

Medical Marijuana Grow  

Site
P(36) P(36) P(36) C C C C C C C C C C C C C C

Recreational Marijuana 

Processor
X X X X X X X X X P(37) P(37) P(37) P(37) X X X X X

Recreational Marijuana 

Producer (Indoor)
X X X X X X X X X P P P P X X X X X

Recreational Marijuana 

Producer (Outdoor)
X X X X X X X X X C C C C X X X X X

Key:

P: Permitted use S: Special use – Use requires a special use permit

X: Prohibited use (#): See notes for limitations

Notes.

(5) The dwelling units must front onto Hancock or Second Street. No more than 30 percent of a single street frontage of a block may be occupied by residential uses. Contiguous 

residential street frontage must be less than 60 lineal feet. Density and parking standards for allowable dwelling units must be met.

(6) One residence per lot with the addition of a tie-down or hangar for an airplane. At a minimum, a paved tie-down or hangar shall be provided on the property, or the property shall 

include permanent rights to a private hangar within the subdivision. See Chapter 15.336 NMC.

(8) The units must be located on the same lots as another use permitted or conditionally permitted in the C-3 zone and may not occupy the first floor storefront area (the portion of 

the building closest to the primary street). There shall be no density limitation. Private parking areas or garages are not required for dwelling units located within buildings in 

existence prior to and including June 30, 1999. Parking shall be provided for all new dwelling units within any building constructed after June 30, 1999, in private parking areas or 

garages on the basis of one parking space for each dwelling unit.

(15) Facility over 40,000 square feet gross floor area requires a conditional use permit.

(12) One residence of area not more than 40 percent of the area of the hangar floor, up to a maximum of 1,500 square feet, for an airport caretaker or security officer on each 

separate parcel.

(13) Permitted in existing dwelling units only. New dwelling units may not be created for this use unless the dwelling unit would otherwise be allowed.

(10) Permitted above any permitted use in the C-2 zone. There shall be no density limitation. Parking shall be provided in private parking areas or garages on the basis of one 

parking space for each dwelling unit.

(9) Permitted on the ground floor, one per lot in conjunction with any other use permitted or conditional use in the C-1 zone. On upper floors, dwelling units are unlimited and one 

parking space per dwelling unit is required.

(7) The homes are not subject to the development standards set forth in NMC 15.445.050 through 15.445.070.

(11) Must be located above ground floor commercial uses.

(14) Allowed exclusively for employers or employees of businesses located within this district.

(2) Limited to one per lot as a permitted use. More than one per lot allowed only through a conditional use permit or planned unit development, subject to density limits 

C: Conditional use – Requires a conditional use permit

(1) Limited to sites with preexisting agricultural uses, including at time of annexation.

(3) Permitted on individual lots created prior to November 17, 1992. Homes on individual lots created on or after November 17, 1992, will only be permitted through the planned unit 

development process.

(4) The permitted density shall be stated on the conditional use permit.

of NMC 15.405.010(B).

3/21/16
PAGE 70 

http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/html/Newberg15/Newberg15445.html
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/html/Newberg15/Newberg15445.html
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/html/Newberg15/Newberg15445.html
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/html/Newberg15/Newberg15445.html
http://codepublishing.com/OR/Newberg/html/Newberg15/Newberg15445.html


(20) Businesses in the C-1 zone that have hours of operation between 10:00 p.m. and 7:00 a.m. require a conditional use permit.

(37) Indoor use only.

1    Code reviser’s note: Section 25 of Ordinance 2763 provides:

(17) Limited to facilities owned or operated by a public agency.

(16) Allowed in areas designated in industrial area plans.

SECTION 25: Grace period for previously permitted or conditional uses. Where an applicant demonstrates that a particular use was a permitted or 

conditional use on a specific property immediately prior to adoption of this ordinance, but that the use is no longer either a permitted or conditional use on 

that property due to this ordinance, the applicant may establish the use as either a permitted or conditional use, as provided in the prior code, provided 

the use is legally commenced prior to January 1, 2018.

(36) Allows up to 12 mature plants; indoor operations only.

(23) Limited to secondhand stores.

(31) Allowed indoors only.

(28) Limited to card lock fueling only. Retail services are limited to self-vending services.

(29) Permitted provided the structure is designed for easy conversion to industrial use, including not having fixed seating.

(30) Limited to 10,000 square feet maximum floor area.

(32) Allowed indoors only. Outdoor use requires a conditional use permit.

(27) Limited to service stations.

(33) Must be aviation-related. See Chapter 15.332 NMC.

(34) Limited to expansion or change of existing heavy manufacturing uses.

(35) Shall not be located at the same address as a state-registered marijuana grow site, or within 1,000 feet of the real property comprising a public park, a public elementary or 

secondary school for which attendance is compulsory under ORS 339.020 or a private or parochial elementary or secondary school, teaching children as described in ORS 339.030 

(1)(a). Distance is measured in a straight line in a radius extending for 1,000 feet or less in any direction from the closest point anywhere on the boundary line of the real property 

comprising an existing public park, public elementary or secondary school or a private or parochial elementary or secondary school to the closest point of the premises of a 

dispensary. The premises consist of the dispensary building, or the portion of the building used for a dispensary. Shall not be located within 1,000 feet of another medical 

marijuana dispensary. Operating hours are limited to the hours between 9:00 a.m. and 8:00 p.m.

(19) A conditional use permit is required if the facility is less than 2,000 feet from the nearest telecommunication facility.

(18) Parking garages are a conditional use, and must have first floor street frontage of 40 feet or less for ingress or egress. First floor development must be commercial.

(21) Drive-up service windows accessory to an existing business on the site with walk-in customer service, such as a drive-up bank window, are allowed only with a conditional use 

permit. Otherwise, drive-up service windows, except those in service on April 1, 2002, are prohibited. Changes in use will not be allowed.

(24) Store size is limited to 2,000 square feet gross floor area.

(25) Store size is limited to 5,000 square feet gross floor area.

(26) Use must demonstrate that it is compatible with airport operations.

(22) Retail sales of goods on site not allowed.

3/21/16
PAGE 71 



600 MISCELLANEOUS USES R-1/PD R-1/0.1 R-1/0.4 R-1/6.6 R-1/SP R-2/PD R-2/SP SD/LDR SD/MMR R-3/PD RP/SP RP/LU AO ARO C-1/SP C-2/LU C-2/PD C-2/SP C-3/LU SD/V SD/NC SD/H CC CF/RF RF IO M-1/SP SD/E FHO II AIO H SC BI

Medical Marijuana 

Processor
P P

Medical Marijuana Grow 

Site
C C C C C C C C C C C C C C C C C C C C C C C C C C C C C C C C C C

Recreational Marijuana 

Processor
X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X P X X X X X X

Recreational Marijuana 

Producer (Indoor)
x x x x x x x x X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X P P X P X X X X

Recreational Marijuana 

Producer (Outdoor)
X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X X C C X C X X X X

Key:

P: Permitted use S: Special use – Use requires a special use permit

X: Prohibited use (#): See notes for limitations

15.305.030 Zoning use table - Use  Subdistricts.

C: Conditional use – Requires a conditional use permit

Exhibit A, Attachment 2

3/21/16
PAGE 72 



so. RESOLUTION No. 2016-3248
A RESOLUTION INITIATING AN AMENDMENT TO THE NEWBERG
MUNICIPAL CODE, TITLE 15 DEVELOPMENT CODE FOR TIME, PLACE
AND MANNER REGULATIONS FOR RECREATIONAL MARIJUANA
PRODUCERS AND PROCESSORS

RECITALS:

The Oregon Legislature enacted four bills during the 2015 legislative session related to the Oregon
Medical Marijuana Act and Measure 91. House Bill (HB) 3400 was the omnibus bill covering
recreational marijuana and modifications to the medical marijuana program.

1.

2. On September 8, 2015 the Newberg City Council was provided background information on medical
and recreational marijuana at its Work Session. At its Business Session on September 8th the City
Council established the Marijuana Subcommittee (Subcommittee) comprised of Councilors Rourke,
Bacon and McKinney along with non-voting member Mayor Andrews.

3. The Subcommittee held its second meeting on December 9, 2015. A proposed timeline was included
in their packet of material to address recreational marijuana time, place and manner. At the meeting
staff raised a new timeline issue based on new information from the Oregon Liquor Control
Commission (OLCC) on their timeline of implementing the recreational marijuana program.
Specifically, OLCC has indicated they will start issuing licenses for Producers and Processers in the
2nd Quarter of 2016.

4. The Subcommittee subsequently passed a motion 3-0 directing staff to create an RCA to initiate the
Development Code amendment process for recreational marijuana producers and processors to bring
forward for Council consideration on January 4, 2016.

THE CITY OF NEWBERG RESOLVES AS FOLLOWS:

The City Council initiates an amendment to the Newberg Municipal Code, Title 15 Development
Code for Time, Place and Manner Regulations for Recreational Marijuana Producers and Processors.
This starts the public process to study the proposed amendments.

1.

By initiating this amendment, the council does not commit to taking any specific action on the
proposal. It only wishes to give the amendment full consideration in a public hearing.

2.

Ill

CITY OF NEWBERG-. RESOLUTION NO. 2016-3248 PAGE 1

Attachment 1 
3/21/16
PAGE 73 



EFFECTIVE DATE of this resolution is the day after the adoption date, which is: January 5, 2016
ADOPTED by the City Council of the City of Newberg, Oregon, this 4th day of January, 2016.

A
Sue Ryan, City Recorder

ATTEST by the Mayor this day of January, 2016.

Andrews, Mayor

PAGE 2CITY OF NEWBERG: RESOLUTION NO. 2016-3248

3/21/16
PAGE 74 



Attachment 2
3/21/16
PAGE 75 



3/21/16
PAGE 76 



3/21/16
PAGE 77 



3/21/16
PAGE 78 



3/21/16
PAGE 79 



3/21/16
PAGE 80 



3/21/16
PAGE 81 



3/21/16
PAGE 82 



3/21/16
PAGE 83 



3/21/16
PAGE 84 



3/21/16
PAGE 85 



3/21/16
PAGE 86 



3/21/16
PAGE 87 



 
 
CITY OF NEWBERG:  RESOLUTION NO. 2016-3262 PAGE 1 

REQUEST FOR COUNCIL ACTION 

DATE ACTION REQUESTED: March 21, 2016 

Order       Ordinance       Resolution  XX   Motion        Information ___ 

No. No.  No. 2016-3262 

SUBJECT:  A resolution designating the two days of 

the Relay for Life of Newberg event as festival days 

in order to permit the installation of flags in the city 

right-of-way. 

Contact Person (Preparer) for this 

Motion: Steve Olson, Senior Planner 

Dept.: Community Development 

File No.: G-16-003 

HEARING TYPE:  ADMINISTRATIVE 

 

RECOMMENDATION:  

 

Consider adopting Resolution No. 2016-3262, which would designate the two days of the annual Relay for 

Life event as festival days, in order to allow the placement of flags advertising the event. The event is 

typically scheduled on a weekend near the end of June; this year the event will be on June 25-26.   

 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY:  The Relay for Life of Newberg Event Leadership Team has requested that the 

City Council designate the two days of the annual Relay for Life event as festival days, in order to allow the 

Team to install flags on these days to advertise the event. The flags could be placed downtown, in the same 

manner that U.S. flags are installed in the sidewalk during national holidays.  

 

15.435.100 Temporary signs for events. 

D. Flags. An unlimited number of flags are permitted on Memorial Day, Presidents’ Day, 

Independence Day, Veterans’ Day, Labor Day, Flag Day, Peace Officers Day, the Friday of the 

Camellia Festival, the Friday of the Old Fashioned Festival, or on any festival day designated by the 

Newberg city council. [Ord. 2782 § 1 (Exh. A), 9-8-15; Ord. 2731 § 3, 10-18-10; Ord. 2499, 11-2-

98. Code 2001 § 151.599.] 

 

The event does not have a fixed date. It is typically scheduled on a weekend near the end of June; this year 

the event will be on June 25-26, 2016. The event organizers plan to carefully schedule the event so as to not 

overlap any of the other City festivals.  

 

FISCAL IMPACT: No significant fiscal impact to the City is expected. 

 

STRATEGIC ASSESSMENT (RELATE TO COUNCIL GOALS): The City wants to foster and 

maintain Newberg’s small town feel. Events like Relay for Life support cancer patients, survivors and 

families in the community, and help strengthen Newberg’s sense of community. The event has been held 

in Newberg for 15 years, so it has become an annual tradition.  

 

Attachments: 

 Resolution 2016-3262 

1. Letter from Relay for Life of Newberg Event Leadership Team 

3/21/16
PAGE 88 



 
 
CITY OF NEWBERG:  RESOLUTION NO. 2016-3262 PAGE 1 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 2016-3262 

 

 

A RESOLUTION DESIGNATING THE TWO DAYS OF THE RELAY FOR 

LIFE OF NEWBERG EVENT AS FESTIVAL DAYS IN ORDER TO PERMIT 

THE INSTALLATION OF FLAGS IN THE CITY RIGHT-OF-WAY 
 

 

RECITALS: 

 

1. The Relay for Life of Newberg Event Leadership Team has requested that the Newberg City Council 

designate the two days of the annual Relay for Life of Newberg event as festival days, in order to 

allow the installation of event flags in the city right-of-way downtown. The event is typically held 

near the end of June. 

 

2. The City Council supports the Relay for Life of Newberg event and wants it to be successful, in 

order to support the community and the work of the American Cancer Society.  

 

THE CITY OF NEWBERG RESOLVES AS FOLLOWS: 

 

1. The City Council therefore designates the two days of the Relay for Life of Newberg event as 

festival days, in order to allow the placement of event flags in the city right-of-way downtown.  

 

 
 EFFECTIVE DATE of this resolution is the day after the adoption date, which is: March 22, 2016.   

ADOPTED by the City Council of the City of Newberg, Oregon, this 21st day of March, 2016.   

 

 

_______________________________ 

Sue Ryan, City Recorder 

 

ATTEST by the Mayor this 24th day of March, 2016.   

 

 

____________________ 

Bob Andrews, Mayor 

 

 

 

 

3/21/16
PAGE 89 



 
 
CITY OF NEWBERG:  RESOLUTION NO. 2016-3262 PAGE 2 

Attachment 1: Request letter 

 

 

3/21/16
PAGE 90 



 
 
City of Newberg: RCA MOTION – SPORTSMAN AIRPARK Page 1 

REQUEST FOR COUNCIL ACTION 

DATE ACTION REQUESTED: March 21, 2016 

Order       Ordinance       Resolution        Motion XX  Information ___ 

No. No. No. 

SUBJECT:  Sportsman Airpark - Federal Aviation 

Administration Airport Development Rights Pilot 

Program 

Contact Person (Preparer) for this 

Motion: Doug Rux, Director 

Dept.: Community Development 

File No.: GR-16-003 

 

RECOMMENDATION:  

 

Council provide direction to staff on whether to continue or not continue discussions with Sportsman 

Airpark for the City to be a sponsor for the Federal Aviation Administration Airport Development Rights 

Pilot Program. 

 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY:   

 

Sportsman Airpark has been in discussions with the City of Newberg since March 2005 about the possibility 

of participating in in a Federal Aviation Administration (FAA) program called the “Pilot Program for 

purchase of airport development rights.” In 2003 a pilot program was established for the purchase of airport 

development rights 49 USC § 47138 (Attachment 1). This allowed the Secretary of Transportation to 

establish a pilot program to support the purchase, by a State or political subdivision of a State, of 

development rights associated with, or directly effecting the use of, privately owned public airports located 

in that State. The purpose of the program was to ensure airport property would continue to be available for 

use as a public airport in perpetuity and is subject to a State or political subdivision acquiring an easement or 

covenant to ensure the airport remain a public use airport. The maximum grant amount was established at 

ninety percent (90%) of the costs to acquire the development rights. A maximum of ten airports could 

participate in the pilot program. 

 

The FAA’s Airport Improvement Plan Handbook, Section 8. Airport Development Rights Pilot Program 

further details the aspects of this program (Attachment 2). Table 6-20 outlines the program. In summary it 

includes: 

 

 Participants - 10 airports under the pilot program. 

 Airport & Owner - Airport must be privately owned, file notice with FAA that the airport is privately 

owned and Airport owner may not have any existing grant obligation. 

 Grant Sponsor - The sponsor must be a state or political subdivision of a state. 

 Grant Purpose - The airport must continue to be available for use as a public airport and the airport 

must remain a public use airport in perpetuity. 

 Participation - The sponsor must express interest in a letter to the FAA and the airport owner can 

cosign the letter or indicate in the letter the airport has agreed. 

 Selection - FAA regional office sends a recommendation to APP-500 for selection. 

 Application  - Sponsor files a grant application with FAA (application, property inventory map, 

airport letter describing ownership and operation for 10 years, Airports District Office (ADO) 

determines if costs of grant are less than outright purchase, sponsor signed certification for legal 

counsel). 

3/21/16
PAGE 91 



 
 
City of Newberg: RCA MOTION – SPORTSMAN AIRPARK Page 2 

 FAA site inspection. 

 Coordination – discusses with airport owner and sponsor the obligations of the grant. 

 Acquisition – Compliance with FAA policies and procedures. 

 Fund Types/Share - Various types, match maximum 90%. 

 Grant Description – market values of development rights, planning costs, complete airfield. 

 Instrument – Details on what needs to be included in the recorded instrument. 

 Release of Purchase Rights – Political subdivision may not transfer or dispose of development rights. 

 

Sportsman Airpark Land Use Master Plan 

 

The City Council passed Ordinance No. 2006-2647 in June 2006 adopting the Sportsman Airpark 

Master Plan (Attachment 3, Appendix 1). Page 11 of the plan addresses the ownership of the airport. 

Within the analysis the FAA Purchase of Development Rights was identified as a possible program 

and identified the program to be pursued first. The program was tied to extension of the runway.  

 

In 2007 the City provided a letter to the FAA inquiring about the purchase of development rights 

program from the City Manager. This letter is included in Attachment 3 as Page 8 in the Sportsman 

Airpark material.  

 

Sportsman Airpark Request 

 

Sportsman Airpark has provided the City material outlining the benefits of the airport to the 

community (Attachment 3). Page 3 of their material identifies the area that would be included in a 

purchase of development rights through the FAA program. It generally covers the runway, taxiways, 

existing developed hanger space and undeveloped hanger space between the runway and OR 219. 

The intended purpose of the FAA funds would be to extend the runway length to more than 3,000 

along with adding additional taxiways and lighting. 

 

Material has also been submitted about ongoing maintenance at the airport. This includes mowing, 

removal of pest and rodents, runway and taxiway markings, lighting maintenance, monitoring of the 

runaway and taxiways to keep them clear of obstructions (cars, trucks, pedestrian, animals), and 

finally maintenance of the asphalt runway and taxiway surfaces. No detailed costs for these activities 

has been provided at this time. 

 

Sportsman Airpark has identified possible funding sources for maintenance obligations such as 

Oregon Department of Aviation’s Pavement Maintenance Program funded through State aviation 

fuel taxes, and establishing a Maintenance Operating Account whereby hangers and aircraft parked 

outside would pay a monthly fee. The fees collected would go towards the maintenance activities 

outlined above. A Business Plan Summary additionally has been provided. 

 

Attachment 3 includes material about the economic impact of Sportsman Airpark on the local 

economy. The Oregon Department of Aviation in 2014 prepared an analysis based on an evaluation 

year of 2012 on all of the airports in Oregon. Sportsman Airpark was identified to have provided a 

$23 million impact ($13 million from on-airport activities and $10 million in spin-off impacts). This 

ranked 20th statewide. There are also future economic impacts noted including Unmanned Aerial 

Vehicle (UAV’s), charter services that serve patrons of Oregon’s wine country and Allison Inn & 

Spa, St. Paul Rodeo, relocation of aircraft from other airports and emergency preparedness, as 

examples. 

3/21/16
PAGE 92 



 
 
City of Newberg: RCA MOTION – SPORTSMAN AIRPARK Page 3 

 

 

Finally, the Sportsman Airpark material identifies the City of Santa Paula and the Santa Paula 

Airport Association as an example of the FAA Purchase of Development Rights program 

(Attachment 3, Appendix 3). Based on conversations with Sportsman Airpark and the FAA this is 

the only airport in the United States that has utilized the pilot program.  

 

  Impacts on City as a Sponsor 

 

The FAA program requires that a sponsor for the program be a State or political subdivision of the 

State (Oregon Department of Aviation, Yamhill County or City of Newberg). If the City were to be a 

sponsor City Council needs to consider if the FAA Purchase of Development Rights request is 

successful and the airport owner/operator withdrew in some fashion from operating the airport, the 

City would be obligated to operate/maintain certain aspects the airport in perpetuity. At a minimum it 

would need to include mowing, removal of pest and rodents, runway and taxiway markings, lighting 

maintenance, monitoring of the runaway and taxiways to keep them clear of obstructions (cars, 

trucks, pedestrian, animals), and finally maintenance of the asphalt runway and taxiway surfaces. The 

actual costs for these activities is unknown at this time. Sportsman Airpark has indicted in their 

material that there would be no risk to the City.  

 

There are also costs associated with preparing an application, providing the appropriate analysis to 

support the application, preparing an appraisal report, identifying and securing matching funds of 

10% to the FAA grant and document recording. It has not been determined who would fund these 

costs at this time. 

 

Another issue to be resolved is if the City has the authority to purchase develop rights outside of the 

corporate limits. A second issue is should the airport property be annexed to the City by Sportsman 

Airpark if it they want to the city to assume a liability by pursuit of sponsorship for the FAA 

Purchase of Development Rights program.  

  

Finally, the FAA program indicates in the Airport Improvement Plan Handbook, Section 8. Airport 

Development Rights Pilot Program, Table 6-20 r. Release of Purchase Rights and Covenant  “Per 49 

USC § 47138(d) that state or political subdivision may not transfer or dispose of the development 

rights unless the FAA determines that it is in the best interest of the federal government.” This is 

another consideration for the City Council in determining they want to be a sponsor for the program. 

 

 

FISCAL IMPACT:   

 

The details of the fiscal impact if the City were to take on maintenance responsibilities are not known at this 

time. 

 

STRATEGIC ASSESSMENT (RELATE TO COUNCIL GOALS):   

 

Council Goa #4 states “Foster and encourage economic development in the community.” The Sportsman 

Airpark based on a 2014 Oregon Department of Aviation report provided in 2012 a $23 million economic 

impact from both direct and spin-off activities. Actions to maintain and enhance the economic impact of the 

airport are important to the economy of the local community.  

3/21/16
PAGE 93 



 
 
City of Newberg: RCA MOTION – SPORTSMAN AIRPARK Page 4 

 

Attachments: 1. 49 USC § 47138 Pilot Program for Purchase of Airport Development Rights 

2. FAA’s Airport Improvement Plan Handbook, Section 8. Airport Development Rights Pilot 

    Program 

3. Sportsman Airpark Material 

3/21/16
PAGE 94 



49 U.S.C. 
United States Code, 2008 Edition
Title 49 - TRANSPORTATION
SUBTITLE VII - AVIATION PROGRAMS
PART B - AIRPORT DEVELOPMENT AND NOISE
CHAPTER 471 - AIRPORT DEVELOPMENT
SUBCHAPTER I - AIRPORT IMPROVEMENT
Sec. 47138 - Pilot program for purchase of airport development rights
From the U.S. Government Printing Office, www.gpo.gov

§47138. Pilot program for purchase of airport development rights
(a) IN GENERAL.—The Secretary of Transportation shall establish a pilot program to support the 

purchase, by a State or political subdivision of a State, of development rights associated with, or 
directly affecting the use of, privately owned public use airports located in that State. Under the 
program, the Secretary may make a grant to a State or political subdivision of a State from funds 
apportioned under section 47114 for the purchase of such rights.

(b) GRANT REQUIREMENTS.—
(1) IN GENERAL.—The Secretary may not make a grant under subsection (a) unless the grant is 

made—
(A) to enable the State or political subdivision to purchase development rights in order to 

ensure that the airport property will continue to be available for use as a public airport; and
(B) subject to a requirement that the State or political subdivision acquire an easement or 

other appropriate covenant requiring that the airport shall remain a public use airport in 
perpetuity.

(2) MATCHING REQUIREMENT.—The amount of a grant under the program may not exceed 90 
percent of the costs of acquiring the development rights.

(c) GRANT STANDARDS.—The Secretary shall prescribe standards for grants under subsection (a), 
including—

(1) grant application and approval procedures; and
(2) requirements for the content of the instrument recording the purchase of the development 

rights.

(d) RELEASE OF PURCHASED RIGHTS AND COVENANT.—Any development rights purchased 
under the program shall remain the property of the State or political subdivision unless the Secretary 
approves the transfer or disposal of the development rights after making a determination that the 
transfer or disposal of that right is in the public interest.

(e) LIMITATION.—The Secretary may not make a grant under the pilot program for the purchase of 
development rights at more than 10 airports.
(Added Pub. L. 108–176, title I, §152(a), Dec. 12, 2003, 117 Stat. 2506.)

EFFECTIVE DATE
Section applicable only to fiscal years beginning after Sept. 30, 2003, except as otherwise specifically 

provided, see section 3 of Pub. L. 108–176, set out as an Effective Date of 2003 Amendment note under 
section 106 of this title.

Page 1 of 1U.S.C. Title 49 - TRANSPORTATION

3/11/2015http://www.gpo.gov/fdsys/pkg/USCODE-2008-title49/html/USCODE-2008-title49-subtitl...

Attachment 1
3/21/16
PAGE 95 



9/30/2014 Order 5100.38D

Purpose.6-66.

The goal of the program to increase the energy efficiency of airport power sources.

Available Guidance.6-67.

As of the publication date of this Handbook, APP-400 was developing guidance for the program 
to increase the energy efficiency of airport power sources.  Until this new guidance is published, 
ADOs and regional offices must contact APP-400 for guidance.

Application and Grant Process.6-68.

As of the publication date of this Handbook, APP-400 was developing guidance for the program 
to increase the energy efficiency of airport power sources. Until this new guidance is published, 
ADOs and regional offices must contact APP-400 for application information and APP-500 for 
grant information.

Funding and Federal Share.6-69.

Because 49 USC § 47117(e)(1)(A) limits the funding of the noise and environmental set-aside to 
specific projects,  projects to increase the energy efficiency of airport power sources are not
eligible for noise and environmental set aside funding.  In addition, the airport’s regular federal
share applies.

Project Funding Requirements.6-70.

Appendix S includes the funding requirements for environmental planning/mitigation projects, 
including airport energy assessments and projects to increase the energy efficiency of airport 
power sources.

Section 8. Airport Development Rights Pilot Program.

Legislative History.6-71.

In fiscal year 2004, Section 152 of Vision 100 – Century of Aviation Reauthorization Act created 
a pilot program for the purchase of development rights for up to 10 privately-owned public-use
airports.  The rules for this pilot program are provided for in 49 USC § 47138. This pilot 
program allows the FAA to issue a grant to a state (or a political subdivision of the state) for the 
purchase of airport development rights to ensure the airport property will continue to be available 
for use as a public use airport in perpetuity (in this case, public use airport means that the airport 
is open to the public). Through this pilot program, the FAA will evaluate the merits of 
purchasing airport development rights instead of the purchase of fee simple interests for the 
airports.

Rules of the Pilot Program.6-72.

The rules and requirements of the pilot program are outlined in Table 6-20.

6-30

Attachment 2
3/21/16
PAGE 96 



9/30/2014 Order 5100.38D

Table 6-20 Rules for the Airport Development Rights Pilot Program

The requirements 
for…

Include…

a. The Number of 
Participants

Per 49 USC § 47138(e), the FAA is only allowed to issue grants to purchase (1)
airport development rights at 10 airports under this pilot program.

b. The Airport and 
Airport Owner

Per 49 USC § 47138(a), the airport must be a privately-owned public-use(1)
airport.

Per FAA policy, the airport owner must have filed a notice with the ADO in (2)
accordance with 14 CFR part 157, Notice of Construction, Alteration, 
Activation, and Deactivation of Airports, indicating that the airport status is 
privately-owned, public-use.

49 USC § 47138 does not require the airport to meet the privately-owned (3)
public-use airport requirements in 49 USC § 47102(22)(B) or to be in the 
National Plan of Integrated Airports (NPIAS).

Per FAA policy, the airport owner must not have any existing grant (4)
obligations requiring the airport to remain open.

c. The Grant 
Sponsor

Per 49 USC § 47138(a), the sponsor must be a state or a political (1)
subdivision of a state (such as a city, municipality, or state agency) in the 
same state as the airport. 

d. The Grant 
Purpose

Per 49 USC § 47138(b)(1)(A), the airport property must continue to be (1)
available for use as a public airport (in this case, public airport means that 
the airport is open to the public).

Per 49 USC § 47138(b)(1)(B), the airport must remain a public use airport in (2)
perpetuity.

e. Requesting 
Participation

Per FAA policy, the FAA may contact potentially interested owners and/or (1)
sponsors at any time and informally invite them to express interest in the 
pilot program.

Per FAA policy, the sponsor must express interest in a letter to the FAA.  If (2)
the airport owner does not cosign the letter, then the sponsor must indicate 
that the airport owner has agreed in the sponsor’s letter.

f. The Selection Per FAA policy, the regional office will send a joint ADO/regional office(1)
recommendation to APP-500.  APP-500 is the selecting office.  Once an 
airport has been selected, the ADO will inform the sponsor of the selection 
and request a grant application.

6-31

3/21/16
PAGE 97 



9/30/2014 Order 5100.38D

Table 6-20 Rules for the Airport Development Rights Pilot Program

The requirements 
for…

Include…

g. The Grant 
Application

49 USC § 47138(c) requires that the FAA set the requirements for the grant (1)
application and approval procedures.

Per FAA policy, the sponsor must use the standard grant application as (2)
discussed in Paragraph 5-19.

Per FAA policy, grant application must include a property inventory map (3)
(Exhibit A) that is approved by both the sponsor and the airport owner and 
clearly shows the land and development subject to the agreement.

Per FAA policy, the airport owner must provide a letter to the FAA describing (4)
its concept for ownership and operation of the airport over the next ten years.

Per FAA policy, if the airport owner does not operate the airport, the airport (5)
owner must provide a copy of the associated lease or agreement.

Per FAA policy, the ADO must determine whether the costs of the proposed (6)
grant are less than buying the airport outright.  The issuance of the grant 
documents a positive determination by the ADO.

Per FAA policy, the sponsor must provide a signed certification from their (7)
attorney as outlined in Table 6-21.

The FAA has the option of not issuing a grant for the purchase of airport (8)
development rights if the FAA determines that it is not in the best interest of 
the federal government or that the requirements will not be met.

h. Option for FAA 
Site Visit

Per FAA policy, airport owner must agree to allow a site inspection by the (1)
FAA and sponsor prior to the grant being issued.

i. FAA Coordination Per FAA policy, the ADO must discuss the terms and conditions of the pilot (2)
program with the airport owner as well as the sponsor to ensure both parties 
understand their obligations.  

j. Acquisition Per FAA policy, the FAA, sponsor, and airport owner must follow the same (1)
policies and procedures for airport acquisition in fee simple as contained in 
Appendix Q. This includes meeting the requirements of the current version of 
FAA Order 5100.37, Land Acquisition and Relocation Assistance for Airport 
Projects, and in the current version of Advisory Circular 150/5100-17, Land 
Acquisition and Relocation Assistance for Airport Improvement Program 
Assisted Projects.

k. AIP Fund Types 49 USC § 47138(a) allows of all types of apportionment and entitlement (1)
funds available to the sponsor that are listed under 49 USC § 47114 to be
used on this type of grant.  

l. AIP Federal 
Share

Per 49 USC § 47138(b)(2), the federal share is limited to 90% of the costs to (1)
acquire the development rights.

6-32

3/21/16
PAGE 98 



9/30/2014 Order 5100.38D

Table 6-20 Rules for the Airport Development Rights Pilot Program

The requirements 
for…

Include…

m. AIP Grant 
Description and 
Amount

Per FAA policy, the FAA can only compensate the airport owner for the (1)
market value of the development rights sold based on an acceptable before 
and after appraisal.  Under this appraisal method, the market value of the 
development rights conveyed is appraised at the difference between the 
market value of the property for continued airport use and the current market 
value of the property for some other development. 

Per FAA policy, planning costs to prepare the Exhibit A and/or associated (2)
documentation are allowable project formulation costs under the grant (not 
as a separate grant).

Per FAA policy, the property interests must be for a complete airfield or (3)
those combined parcels that collectively allow the airport to serve as a 
public-use airport.  The property interests cannot be for only select areas of 
the airport (such as only the runway protection zones).

n. Grant Template The ADO must consult with APP-500 on how the standard grant template (1)
must be modified for a grant of this type.

o. Instrument 
Recording the 
Purchase of 
Airport 
Development 
Rights

Per FAA policy, the instrument recording the purchase of airport (1)
development rights must include all of the terms and conditions listed in 
Table 6-22. The instrument recording the purchase of development rights is 
the document evidencing the purchase of the airport development rights by 
the sponsor, and the easement or covenant given by the airport owner that 
the airport must remain a public-use airport in perpetuity.  

p. Grant Assurances Per FAA policy, the standard grant assurances (Sponsor, Planning Agency, (1)
or Non-Sponsors Undertaking Noise Compatibility Program Projects) must 
not be included in the grant. Instead, the requirements in Table 6-22 must 
be contained in the instrument recording the purchase of airport 
development rights, as discussed above.

q. Final Payment Per FAA policy, ADO must not allow the payment for the full amount of the (1)
grant until the instrument recording the purchase of development rights and 
easement has been recorded in the local registry of deeds and land transfers 
in compliance with local law.

r. Release of 
Purchase Rights 
and Covenant

Per 49 USC § 47138(d), the state or political subdivision may not transfer or (1)
dispose of the development rights unless the FAA determines that it is in the 
best interest of the federal government.

s. Advisory Circular 
for Airport Safety 
Self-Inspection

Per FAA policy, the ADO has the option to provide the airport owner/operator (1)
with the current version of Advisory Circular 150/5200-18, Airport Safety Self 
Inspection.  

6-33

3/21/16
PAGE 99 



9/30/2014 Order 5100.38D

Table 6-21 Required Sponsor’s Attorney Certification Language

The following certification language must be completed and signed by the sponsor’s attorney…

CERTIFICATE OF SPONSOR’S ATTORNEY

I, ________________ , acting as Attorney for the Sponsor do hereby certify that in my opinion the 
Sponsor is empowered to file the Application for Federal Assistance for the purchase of development 
rights in accordance with Title 49, United States Code, section 47138, under the laws of the State of 
_____________and has the authority from its governing body.  Further, the actions taken by said sponsor
and sponsor’s representative has been duly authorized and that the execution thereof is in all respects 
due and proper and in accordance with the laws of the said State.

Dated at _________________ (location) this _____ day of _____________, _______. 

By: ______________________________________________
(Signature of Sponsor’s Attorney)

Table 6-22 Requirements for the Instrument Recording the Purchase of Airport 
Development Rights

Per FAA policy, the instrument recording the purchase of airport development rights must include 
the following terms and conditions…

a. Exhibit A (Property Inventory Map). Parcels of land obligated under the development rights 
agreement must be described on the Exhibit A. The Exhibit A must be approved by both the sponsor
and the airport owner.

b. Notice to Airmen. The airport owner must promptly notify pilots of any condition affecting 
aeronautical use of the airport property.

c. Acquisition of Development Rights. The acquisition of development rights by the sponsor is for the 
right to develop and use the property depicted on the Exhibit A for a purpose other than as an airport 
open to the public or enhancing convenience of aviation activities.  The purpose of the acquisition of 
development rights is to ensure that the airport will continue to be available as a public use airport (in 
this case, public use airport means that the airport is open to the public).

d. Hazardous Substance. The FAA and state (or political subdivision of the state) do not assume any 
right to control the means by which the airport owner complies with restrictions on airport property; 
and do not assume any liability for discharge of a hazardous substance.

e. Public-Use Airport in Perpetuity. The airport owner, for good and valuable consideration, must 
grant the sponsor an easement or covenant that the airport must remain open to the public for use as 
an airport in perpetuity.  Such easement or covenant must be in effect in perpetuity unless modified or 
released with the approval of the FAA.

f. Modification or Release of Purchased Rights and Covenant. The sponsor must not modify, 
transfer, or disposal of the airport development rights unless the FAA has made a written 
determination that the action is in the best interest of the federal government.

6-34

3/21/16
PAGE 100 



9/30/2014 Order 5100.38D

Table 6-22 Requirements for the Instrument Recording the Purchase of Airport 
Development Rights

Per FAA policy, the instrument recording the purchase of airport development rights must include 
the following terms and conditions…

g. Recordation. The sponsor must record the instrument evidencing the purchase of development 
rights and the granting of the easement or covenant that the airport must remain open to the public 
for use as an airport in perpetuity, in the local registry of deeds and land transfers in compliance with 
local law.

h. Sponsor’s Obligation for Airport Operation. The sponsor may be obligated to operate and 
maintain the airport if it is closed during other than periods of temporary climatic conditions that 
interfere with safe operation and maintenance.  The airport owner and sponsor agree that in the event 
the airport owner discontinues safe airport operation and maintenance, the sponsor, in consultation 
with the FAA, may be required to assume that obligation.

i. Airport Owner’s Obligation for Airport Operation in Perpetuity. The airport owner or its 
successor is obligated to own the airport and operate it as an airport except for periods of temporary 
climatic conditions that interfere with safe operation and maintenance.  In the event the airport owner 
discontinues safe airport operation and maintenance, the airport owner must notify the FAA within 24 
hours.

j. Enforcement of Development Rights by the FAA. The instrument recording the purchase of 
development rights must grant the FAA third party beneficiary rights to enforce the easement or 
covenant that the airport must remain a public-use airport in perpetuity and the sponsor’s obligation 
for airport operation.

Section 9. Redevelopment of Airport Properties Pilot Program.

Legislative History.6-73.

In fiscal year 2012, Section 822 of the FAA Modernization and Reform Act of 2012 
(Public Law 112-95) created a pilot program to fund activities related to the redevelopment of 
airport properties purchased for airport noise compatibility. Note that the pilot program language 
was not incorporated into 49 USC Chapter 471, therefore the text of the pilot program can only 
be found in Section 822 of the FAA Modernization and Reform Act of 2012 
(Public Law 112-95).

Purpose.6-74.

The purpose of this pilot program is to expedite redevelopment of airport property purchased for 
noise mitigation by the airport with AIP or Passenger Facility Charge (PFC) funds.

Availability of Guidance.6-75.

Due to the short duration of the program (which will sunset on September 30, 2015) and the
limited number of airports that may participate (a maximum of four), the detailed guidance for 
this pilot program will be issued in a separate program guidance letter (PGL).  This guidance will 

6-35

3/21/16
PAGE 101 



Attachment 3
3/21/16
PAGE 102 



3/21/16
PAGE 103 



3/21/16
PAGE 104 



3/21/16
PAGE 105 



3/21/16
PAGE 106 



3/21/16
PAGE 107 



3/21/16
PAGE 108 



3/21/16
PAGE 109 



3/21/16
PAGE 110 



3/21/16
PAGE 111 



3/21/16
PAGE 112 



3/21/16
PAGE 113 



3/21/16
PAGE 114 



3/21/16
PAGE 115 



Attachment 3, Appendix 1

3/21/16
PAGE 116 



 
Sportsman Airpark Land Use Master Plan – June 5, 2006  
Ordinance No. 2006-2647 

 

 

Sportsman Airpark Land Use Master Plan 

Table of Contents 

 

1. Purpose and Objectives .............................................................................................................. 1 

2. Public Planning Process ............................................................................................................. 1 

3. Development Plans .................................................................................................................... 2 

4. Infrastructure Funding .............................................................................................................. 10 

5. Airport District Development Codes ....................................................................................... 10 

6. Airport Ownership ................................................................................................................... 11 

7. Tax and Job Values of Airport District Properties ................................................................... 12 

8. Airport Industrial Area Economic Incentives .......................................................................... 15 

9. Airport Infrastructure and Operations Funding Considerations .............................................. 16 

 

APPENDIX A –  Airport Industrial (AI) District and Airport Industrial Overlay (AIO)  
Sub-District Development Code Amendments 

APPENDIX B –  Airport Residential (AR) District and Airport Residential  
Overlay (ARO) Sub-District Development Code Amendments 

APPENDIX C –   General Development Code Language Amendments  

APPENDIX D – Yamhill County Existing GIS Property Data 

APPENDIX E –  FAA Correspondence and Airport Ownership Issues  

APPENDIX F –  Sample Airport Zoning Ordinances from other Oregon Airports  

APPENDIX G –  Public Meetings 

APPENDIX H –  Report Authorship  

3/21/16
PAGE 117 



 
Sportsman Airpark Land Use Master Plan – June 5, 2006  
Ordinance No. 2006-2647  Page 1 
 

Sportsman Airpark Land Use Master Plan 

 

1. Purpose and Objectives 

The Sportsman Airpark Land Use Master Plan (Master Plan) creates an overall land use plan for an 
approximately 117 acre area in and around Sportsman Airpark, which is adjacent to the City of 
Newberg and within its urban growth boundary.  The area includes twelve properties that all could 
have some type of access to the airport runway such that aircraft could be based at each property.  The 
Master Plan provides for new, separate Airport District designations for either Industrial or Residential 
uses.  Generally, Airport Industrial uses are located directly around the runway and to the east of the 
runway.  Airport Residential uses are designated at the northwest quadrant of the airport, and on the 
properties to the west of the airport.     

The new Airport Districts will allow and encourage the development of commercial, industrial, and 
residential uses that thrive with the availability of an adjacent runway.  However, it is important to 
reassure the community that the airport will remain the small community airport that it is.  There are 
no plans to significantly extend the runway.1  The permitted uses at the airport would not change the 
character of the airport, due to the limited length of the runway.  The new Airport Districts are 
voluntary.  To gain an Airport District, a property owner must be within the Airport District Boundary 
and request the new designation.   

There are many small businesses that desire to set up shop at an airport, however most airports do not 
allow businesses to own their own property or buildings.  Within the Sportsman Airpark Master Plan 
area businesses will be allowed to own their property and buildings, and it is believed that this asset 
will help to bring new businesses to Newberg.  Since airport-related businesses provide services that 
relate to the high technology of aircraft systems, the jobs generated are typically clean, and pay well.  
Of equal importance to jobs, the new buildings and site development for these properties will result in 
an increased tax base for the community to support schools, fire and police services.   
 

2. Public Planning Process 

The Master Plan was developed over a 14 month period that included meetings with adjacent property 
owners, two public meetings, and discussions with the FAA and Oregon Department of Aviation.  
Copies of meeting minutes and other publicly distributed documents are provided in Appendix F to 
this report. 
 

 

 
                                                           
1 In Appendix D it is noted that the FAA Seattle Airports District Office has recommended that the runway be extended 
several hundred feet as a safety measure for the aircraft that already exist at the airport, to bring the airport to the FAA’s 
normal standards for small airports.  However, this would not change the basic type of aircraft able to use the airport or the 
airport’s general character.   

3/21/16
PAGE 118 



 
Sportsman Airpark Land Use Master Plan – June 5, 2006  
Ordinance No. 2006-2647  Page 2 
 

3. Development Plans 

Detailed development options for the adjoining properties have been considered, and the Master Plan 
proposes a pattern of use districts, and a system of roads, bridges, taxiways, and utilities that can be 
implemented to provide the infrastructure needed to carry out the Master Plan.  Specific development 
layouts are provided on the following pages for: 

o District Plan (Figure 1), 

o Sub-District Plan (Figure 2), 

o Road Plan (Figure 3), 

o Bridge Plan (Figure 4), 

o Taxiway Plan (Figure 5),  

o Utilities Plan (Figure 6), and 

o Developable Area Plan (Figure 7). 
 

The District Plan and Sub-District Plan place industrial uses on the west side and residential uses on 
the east side of the airport.  This reinforces the pre-existing use patterns already in place (see Yamhill 
County zoning map in Appendix C).   

The Road Plan proposes new roads for vehicular access to all properties.  The City of Newberg 
Development Code generally does not allow the creation of private streets, or gated residential areas.  
However, to allow for the necessary security of airport operations areas, private streets and gates are 
permitted in the Airport Districts, subject to Fire Marshal approval of the design so that emergency fire 
access is assured.  Generally, the taxiways must be designed to also function as routes for emergency 
vehicles such as fire trucks.   

The Bridge Plan provides a potential location for an aircraft taxiway bridge between the residential 
properties to the west and the airport to the east.  Similarly, it provides a potential location for a 
smaller pedestrian/“golf cart” access bridge between the properties to promote aircraft ownership by 
adjacent properties.   

The Taxiway Plan proposes locations for new taxiways.  First, the location of future parallel taxiways 
beside the runway are shown, with a center-to-center separation from the runway of 150 feet to meet 
FAA Advisory Circular (AC) 150/5300-13, Airport Design.  Developable land area for buildings 
begins not less than 44.5 feet from the centerline of the taxiway, in order to protect the taxiway object 
free area2 needed for taxiing aircraft.  Additional taxiways are shown leading from these parallel 
taxiways into the developable areas, their precise locations to be determined based on actual 
development plans for buildings in each area.  These lateral taxiways will be privately owned as part of 
the development.  

                                                           
2 Standards for the various required runway and taxiway safety areas, object free areas, object free zones, runway protection 
zones, and other specific airport design criteria are found in FAA Advisory Circular (AC) 150/5300-13, Airport Design, 
most recent edition.   

3/21/16
PAGE 119 



 
Sportsman Airpark Land Use Master Plan – June 5, 2006  
Ordinance No. 2006-2647  Page 3 
 

  

 

3/21/16
PAGE 120 



 
Sportsman Airpark Land Use Master Plan – June 5, 2006  
Ordinance No. 2006-2647  Page 4 
 

 

3/21/16
PAGE 121 



 
Sportsman Airpark Land Use Master Plan – June 5, 2006  
Ordinance No. 2006-2647  Page 5 
 

 

3/21/16
PAGE 122 



 
Sportsman Airpark Land Use Master Plan – June 5, 2006  
Ordinance No. 2006-2647  Page 6 
 

 

3/21/16
PAGE 123 



 
Sportsman Airpark Land Use Master Plan – June 5, 2006  
Ordinance No. 2006-2647  Page 7 
 

 

3/21/16
PAGE 124 



 
Sportsman Airpark Land Use Master Plan – June 5, 2006  
Ordinance No. 2006-2647  Page 8 
 

 

3/21/16
PAGE 125 



 
Sportsman Airpark Land Use Master Plan – June 5, 2006  
Ordinance No. 2006-2647  Page 9 
 

 

3/21/16
PAGE 126 



 
Sportsman Airpark Land Use Master Plan – June 5, 2006  
Ordinance No. 2006-2647  Page 10 
 

The Utilities Plan proposes gravity sewer lines running from north to south, to utilize the general 17 
foot grade change that exists at the airport site from north to south.  Water lines connect to existing 
lines on E 3rd Street, 9th Street, and Highway 219 to create a looped system.  A water line will be 
extended from the looped water line in the residential area to the western boundary of the residential 
area for a future connection to an existing water line that dead-ends on Everest Street. 

The Developable Area Plan shows the developable areas on the site.  When an area is developed for 
aviation uses, there are two options for the layout of the circulation system. 

o Roads (private or public) and taxiways are completely separated; or 

o Private roads and taxiways use common pathways. 
 

In a large development area, where there is a lot of aviation activity, it is generally advantageous to 
separate the roads and taxiways.  Independence State Airport provides a good example of that 
circulation system3.  Where the development area is small, the roads and taxiways may be designed as 
a common system.  As specific areas are developed, their size and the expected aviation activity they 
will contain must be used to determine the actual layout of the circulation system and whether it can be 
common between aircraft and vehicles.  

4. Infrastructure Funding 

At present it is assumed that the infrastructure of roads, bridges, taxiways, and utilities will be 
developed at the direct expense of the respective property owners.  It is noted that in Section 9 below 
the possibility of using tax increment financing for infrastructure is discussed as a possibility to 
stimulate development.   

5. Airport District Development Codes 

The Master Plan provides specific Development Code language for each Airport District, including: 

o Airport Industrial, 

o Airport Industrial Overlay, 

o Airport Residential, and 

o Airport Residential Overlay.   

The specific language for each of these is provided in Appendices A and B.  In creating the language 
for these Districts, the texts from twenty-two other airport zoning ordinances from around the State of 
Oregon were studied4.   

The Airport Industrial District was generally developed using the City of Newberg M-2 Light 
Industrial District as a starting point, and then using the Columbia County Airport Industrial AI 
District and the Oregon Department of Aviation Model Public Use Airport Zone as major models for 
specific airport-related language.   
                                                           
3 See the pictures of Independence State Airport shown in Appendix F. 
4 See “Sample Airport Zoning Ordinances from other Oregon Airports,” Project Memorandum by Aron Faegre & 
Associates, May 16, 2005.  

3/21/16
PAGE 127 



 
Sportsman Airpark Land Use Master Plan – June 5, 2006  
Ordinance No. 2006-2647  Page 11 
 

Similarly, the Airport Residential District was generally developed using the City of Newberg R-2 
District as a starting point, and then using the City of Independence Residential Airpark Overlay and 
the Oregon Department of Aviation Model Public Use Airport Zone as major models for airport-
related language.   

For both Districts, suggestions received during public meetings and during meetings with adjacent land 
owners were incorporated into the final language as presented, so that the final development code 
represents language specifically tailored to the actual setting of Sportsman Airpark.   

The “overlay” sub-districts provide support to the continued operation and vitality of Sportsman 
Airpark by addressing potential land use conflicts that could occur between the airport and adjacent 
development.  They also address how properties in the area could be converted from their existing use 
designations to their prospective future Airport District, as the Airport District designations must be 
requested by the property owner. 

The Airport Residential District includes a provision for density transfer.  Due to the complexity and 
intermixing of roads, taxiways, and constructing hangars in an airport residential district, properties 
within the district may transfer allowed dwelling unit density to other property within the district and 
reduce minimum lot sizes such that the overall dwelling density complies with that of a conventionally 
developed R-2 zoned property. 

In all airport districts there is a requirement for some form of airport-dependent or airport-related use.  
In the case of Airport Residential, there must either be an aircraft tie-down or hangar located on the 
house site, or a hangar must be provided as part of the permanent rights of the house site.  For Airport 
Industrial, the business must need to be located at the airport.  At a minimum the business must require 
use of an aircraft as an important tool or platform for their work.   

6. Airport Ownership 

The basic airport infrastructure – the runway, parallel taxiways, and required safety zones – are 
currently in private ownership.  Access to the airport runway by adjacent properties will require an 
agreement with the airport owner.  The agreement will address such issues as maintenance costs of the 
airport runway, safety issues for use of the runway, and noise abatement issues for maintaining 
compatibility with the larger community.   

To promote long term stability it is recommended, and the private owner has offered, that the basic 
airport infrastructure should be put into some form of public ownership or protection.  Two options for 
this are potentially available: 

o Ownership by the City of Newberg through purchase by FAA grant, or 

o Continued private ownership, but with purchased “development rights” by FAA grant to City 
of Newberg to guarantee its use as an airport forever.   
 

At present, it is recommended (and the airport owner concurs) that the purchase of “development 
rights” should be pursued first.  The FAA’s “development rights” program has not yet processed any 
projects, in large part because of the complexity of the rules.  However, it is believed that with the 

3/21/16
PAGE 128 



 
Sportsman Airpark Land Use Master Plan – June 5, 2006  
Ordinance No. 2006-2647  Page 12 
 

assistance of the Oregon Congressional delegation, the rules may be adjusted to get FAA airport funds5 
designated for this project.  The FAA staff has stated that they have no problem with this project going 
to the Oregon Congressional delegation to attempt to gain assistance on gain funding.   

Once “development rights” are secured, it is recommended that the extension of the runway several 
hundred feet to the south be seriously examined.  The City of Newberg owns land at the south end of 
the airport which might be used in part for this purpose, if its elevation could be raised.  The future 
planned Newberg-Dundee Bypass Road is in this same general area, so that may create an opportunity 
for creation of a retaining wall which would help the airport meet its needs for raising ground elevation 
adjacent to the south end of the airport.   

If the runway can be lengthened several hundred feet through this process, then the FAA’s need for a 
minimum runway length would be solved, and the airport’s basic infrastructure of runway, parallel 
taxiways, and safety areas could be purchased by the City of Newberg.  The advantage of public 
ownership is that then FAA funds would be available on an on-going basis for airport improvements 
and maintenance, as currently occurs for other similar airports such as at McMinnville, Aurora, 
Hillsboro, Troutdale, and Mulino.   

7. Tax and Job Values of Airport District Properties 

The existing property and improvements value of the properties within the Airport District over the 
past 10 years are shown below.  It indicates a steady approximate 10% per year increase that may 
simply relate to recent average increases in real estate values in Oregon during the same time period.  
The graph contains no single year jump in improvements value, because there has been no significant 
new construction during recent years (note a new hangar on Tax Lot 302 will add significant value to 
the District in the next tax year).  

Sportsman Airpark, Newberg, Oregon
Existing Values of Land & Improvements in Airport District 

$0

$1,000,000

$2,000,000

$3,000,000

$4,000,000

$5,000,000

$6,000,000

$7,000,000

1996 1997 1998 1999 2000 2001 2002 2003 2004 2005

Year

Improvement Value
Land Value
Real Market Value
Assessed Value

 

                                                           
5 It should be noted that FAA airport funds are created through aviation fuel and ticket taxes and are specifically designated 
for airport projects.  Potential FAA funds for purchase of development rights or land at Sportsman Airpark would not come 
from normal IRS tax funds or other government programs, and thus would not take away from any other federal funds for 
which the City of Newberg is eligible.   

3/21/16
PAGE 129 



 
Sportsman Airpark Land Use Master Plan – June 5, 2006  
Ordinance No. 2006-2647  Page 13 
 

Taxes assessed on the properties within the Airport District over the past 10 years are shown in the 
following graph.  The rapid increases between the year 2000 and present are believed to be primarily 
due to the removal of lands from farm deferral, which increased their taxable value.  Whatever the 
reason, taxes contributed to the community during that five year period has doubled.   

Sportsman Airpark, Newberg, Oregon
Existing Taxes from Land & Improvements in Airport District 

$0

$5,000

$10,000

$15,000

$20,000

$25,000

$30,000

$35,000

$40,000

$45,000

1995 1996 1997 1998 1999 2000 2001 2002 2003 2004 2005

Year

Taxes Assessed

 

These values are based on existing development at the airport which is limited to some hangar 
development on the west side of the runway in Parcel 300, development of Parcel 1900, and one house 
on each of Parcels 1300, 1400, 1500 and 1600.  Industrial uses currently only exist on parcels 300 and 
1900.  Existing employment in the Airport District is estimated at 16 FTE jobs in Parcel 300 and 12 
FTE jobs in Parcel 1900.  It is estimated that of the 29 acres of developable Airport Industrial land, 
approximately 17% is currently developed.   

It is reasonable to assume that the Airport Industrial lands can be developed at approximately 50% lot 
coverage, and building costs are in the range of $50 to $100 per square foot.  This would indicate an 
average improvement value of $1.5 million per acre, at current dollar values.  Once the entire industrial 
developable area is completed, this will represent a potential total improvement value for the 
developable industrial lands of perhaps more than $50 million in current dollar value.   

From a public tax base standard, industrial users also require machinery, equipment, and site 
development (including taxiways and private roads) which add to the tax base for the community.  
These added values would be dependent on the type of business that develop in the District and are not 
included in the graphs below.   

3/21/16
PAGE 130 



 
Sportsman Airpark Land Use Master Plan – June 5, 2006  
Ordinance No. 2006-2647  Page 14 
 

Sportsman Airpark, Newberg, Oregon
Potential Future Values of Land & Improvements in Airport District 

$0
$10,000,000
$20,000,000
$30,000,000
$40,000,000
$50,000,000
$60,000,000
$70,000,000
$80,000,000

2005 2010 2015 2020 2025 2030Year

Potential District Total Real Market Value (2006 dollars)

Potential  District Total Assessed Value (2006 dollars)

Potential Industrial District Total Real Market Value (2006 dollars)

Potential Industrial District Total Assessed Value (2006 dollars)

Potential Residential District Total Real Market Value (2006 dollars)

Potential Residential District Total Assessed Value (2006 dollars)

The value of improvements in the Airport Residential District is assumed to be similar to what it would 
be for any R-2 Residential District.  One could argue that the improvement and land values may be 
higher due to the special availability of the airport.  However, the density of houses may be less due to 
the need to allow for room for hangars and/or taxiways.  Usually, residential development is 
considered to be an incompatible neighbor to an airport.  However Airport Residential is a supportive 
neighbor to an airport, since the residents are aircraft users and find aircraft noise not only acceptable, 
but entertaining to some extent.  For sake of conservative projections it has been assumed that only 
33% of the 35 residential developable acres will be created as Airport Residential.  Given the current 
great demand for housing in the Newberg area, it has been assumed that the residential portions of the 
Airport District will be fully developed within 10 years, rather than the 20 year period assumed for the 
industrial portions of the Airport District.  For those areas developed, a lot coverage of 33% is assumed 
and a construction value of $125 (2006 dollars) per square foot is assumed.  This would result in an 
improvements value of approximately $200,000 (2006 dollars) for a 5000 square foot Airport 
Residential lot.   

 

The following table shows the projected tax value of the Airport District development, based on the 
above assumptions, over the 20 year period of development.  The table includes estimates of tax 
increment funds that could be set aside to assist with the Airport District development, should the City 
opt to establish a 10% set aside to promote development within the District.  This concept is discussed 
in Section 9 below concerning Airport Infrastructure and Operations funding. 

3/21/16
PAGE 131 



 
Sportsman Airpark Land Use Master Plan – June 5, 2006  
Ordinance No. 2006-2647  Page 15 
 

Sportsman Airpark, Newberg, Oregon
Potential Future Values of Taxes in Airport District

$0

$100,000

$200,000

$300,000

$400,000

$500,000

$600,000

$700,000

2005 2010 2015 2020 2025 2030
Year

Potential Annual Tax Revenues Available (2006 dollars)
Potential Annual Industrial Tax Revenues (2006 dollars)
Potential Annual Residential Tax Revenues (2006 dollars)
Potential Airport Infrastructure Annual Fund Available
Potential Airport Infrastructure Annual Fund Available from Industrial
Potential Airport Infrastructure Annual Fund Available From Residential

 

A study of Aurora Airport potential development opportunities6 determined that airport properties 
could be developed at densities ranging from a high of 52 persons per acre for an aircraft 
manufacturing facility such as Van’s Aircraft, to a low of 5 persons per acre for small hangars that are 
used at least in part for business uses.  Aurora Airport has a developable land area of approximately 85 
acres, which is approximately 60% developed.  The total current tax base of the airport is assessed at 
approximately $34 million and as such the airport contributes approximately $360,000 in taxes to the 
community each year.  The airport is believed to currently contain approximately 750 jobs.  This 
would represent an average of 15 jobs per developed acre on average.   

Based on this kind of rough information, one could predict that at build-out of the Airport Industrial 
lands, the total improvement values will be in the range of $50 million.  Using an estimate of 15 
persons per developable acre, this also represents a total of 440 jobs within the Airport Industrial 
District.  Assuming a linear development of the properties over a 20 year period, this would represent a 
development of 110 jobs each 5 years, and an increase in improvement values by $12 million (in 2006 
dollars) each 5 years.  Obviously the actual numbers will depend on whether the businesses attracted 
are more like a Van’s Aircraft (in which case the numbers may be bigger) or small hangars only 
partially used for business (in which case the numbers may be smaller).   
 

8. Airport Industrial Area Economic Incentives 

To promote development in the Airport Industrial District, the City of Newberg could consider the 
development of an “enterprise zone”, a “free trade zone”, a federal or state recognized “employment 
zone”, or other similar economic development incentive programs. 
 

 

 

                                                           
6 Aurora Airport: Potential for On-airport Development, by Aron Faegre, February 14, 2003.   

3/21/16
PAGE 132 



 
Sportsman Airpark Land Use Master Plan – June 5, 2006  
Ordinance No. 2006-2647  Page 16 
 

9. Airport Infrastructure and Operations Funding Considerations 

To promote the development of the Airport District, the City of Newberg can establish the Airport 
District as a tax increment financing district.  In this way, a portion of taxes from new development in 
the Airport District can be used to install infrastructure such as water, sewer, roads, and taxiways that 
will in turn invigorate further development in the District.  This funding can also create an on-going 
operations and maintenance fund for the airport.  Should the City of Newberg take ownership of the 
basic runway and taxiways of the airport, this fund can also provide the 5 to 10% match required for 
federal airport improvement funds.  The graph on page 14 shows that at a 10% set-aside the airport 
fund is predicted to start providing approximately $5,000 per year at the start, but rise to $25,000 per 
year after 5 years, rise to $40,000 per year after 10 years, and rise to $60,000 per year by 20 years.   

It is estimated that should the City of Newberg take ownership of the basic runway and taxiways of the 
airport, City staff time of five hours per week on average would be required for administrative and 
management activities.  The adjacent airport district properties would take on the labor of mowing, 
cleanup, changing of light bulbs, and other miscellaneous work.  An annual budget of $12,500 is 
proposed for direct maintenance cost items such as light bulbs, wind socks, and other materials, and an 
annual budge of $12,500 is proposed as the 5% required match for FAA grants which might average 
$250,000 per year.   

 

 

3/21/16
PAGE 133 



 
Sportsman Airpark Land Use Master Plan – June 5, 2006  
Ordinance No. 2006-2647  Page A-1 
 

APPENDIX A   

AIRPORT INDUSTRIAL (AI) DISTRICT &  
AIRPORT INDUSTRIAL OVERLAY (AIO) SUB-DISTRICT   June 5, 2006 

 

CITY OF NEWBERG DEVELOPMENT CODE LANGUAGE 
 
[“Bold” text indicates added language, “strikethrough” text indicates deleted language, and 
“normal” text indicates existing language to remain.] 

 

Part 13.1 AIRPORT INDUSTRIAL (AI) DISTRICT 

151.498 DESCRIPTION AND PURPOSE. 

The purpose of the City of Newberg Airport Industrial (AI) District is to encourage and 
support the continued operation and vitality of Sportsman Airpark by allowing airport-
related industrial uses, and as such to promote economic development for the City of Newberg 
and Yamhill County.  The Airport Industrial (AI) District is intended to recognize those areas 
devoted to or most suitable for the immediate operational facilities necessary for commercial 
and noncommercial aviation.  It is also intended to provide areas for those activities directly 
supporting or dependent upon aircraft or air transportation when such activities, in order to 
function, require or benefit from a location within or immediately adjacent to primary flight 
operations and passengers or cargo service facilities.  It is further intended to provide 
appropriate locations for airport related light industrial uses that are compatible with and 
benefit from air transportation. 

151.498.1 PERMITTED BUILDINGS AND USES 

(A)  In the Airport Industrial District, the following buildings and uses are permitted as 
hereinafter specifically provided. 

(B)  The buildings and uses are subject to the general provisions and exceptions set forth in 
this code: 

(1)  Customary and usual aviation-related activities, including but not limited to takeoffs and 
landings; aircraft hangars and tie-downs; construction and maintenance of airport facilities; 
fixed based operator facilities; and other activities incidental to the normal operation of an 
airport, including operation of fixed wing aircraft, helicopters, hot air balloons, and 
gyrocopters.   

(2)  Emergency medical flight services, including activities, aircraft, accessory structures, and 
other facilities necessary to support emergency transportation for medical purposes.  

3/21/16
PAGE 134 



 
Sportsman Airpark Land Use Master Plan – June 5, 2006  
Ordinance No. 2006-2647  Page A-2 
 

Emergency medical flight services do not include hospitals, medical offices, medical labs, 
medical equipment sales, and other similar uses.   

(3)  Law enforcement and firefighting activities, including aircraft and ground-based 
activities, facilities and accessory structures necessary to support federal, state or local law 
enforcement or land management agencies engaged in law enforcement or firefighting 
activities.  Law enforcement and firefighting activities include transport of personnel, aerial 
observation, and transport of equipment, water, fire retardant and supplies.   

(4)  Search and rescue operations, including aircraft and ground based activities that promote 
the orderly and efficient conduct of search or rescue related activities. 

(5)  Flight instruction, including activities, facilities, and accessory structures located at 
airport sites that provide education and training directly related to aeronautical activities.  
Flight instruction includes ground training and aeronautic skills training, including schools 
for flight attendants, ticket agents or similar personnel.   

(6)  Aircraft service, maintenance and training, including activities, facilities and accessory 
structures provided to teach aircraft service and maintenance skills and to maintain, service, 
refuel or repair aircraft or aircraft components.   

(7)  Aircraft rental, including activities, facilities and accessory structures that support the 
provision of aircraft for rent or lease to the public. 

(8)  Aircraft sales and the sale of aeronautic equipment and supplies, including activities, 
facilities and accessory structures for the storage, display, demonstration and sales of aircraft 
and aeronautic equipment and supplies to the public. 

(9) Aerial mapping and surveying. 

(10) Air cargo warehousing and distribution facilities. 

(11) Aircraft and aircraft component manufacturing or assembly. 

(12) Aviation and space technology development and research. 

(13) Aircraft or air transportation businesses. 

(14) A business that owns an aircraft, keeps it at their industrial site, and relies on the 
aircraft as an important tool or platform for their work.  

(15) A business activity that relies on regular use of a general aviation aircraft by the 
business or its clients. 

(16) Auto rental agencies. 

(17) Day care and recreational facilities exclusively for employers and employees of 
businesses located within this district. 

3/21/16
PAGE 135 



 
Sportsman Airpark Land Use Master Plan – June 5, 2006  
Ordinance No. 2006-2647  Page A-3 
 

(18) Greenways, including but not limited to bicycle and pedestrian paths. 

(19) Public and semi-public buildings, structures and uses that provide necessary services 
to an airport, such as fire stations, pump stations and water storage. 

(20) Schools relating to airport operation. 

(21) Snack shop for airport clientele with a total floor area no larger than 800 square feet. 

(22) One residence of area not more than 40% the area of the hangar floor, up to a 
maximum of 1500 square feet, for an airport caretaker or security officer on each separate 
parcel. 

(23) Manufacturing, assembling, testing, repairing, packaging and distribution of precision 
testing optics; precision testing equipment; and components, devices, equipment, instruments 
and systems of an electronic or electromagnetic nature, such as coils, tubes, semi-conductors 
and similar components; communications, navigation, transmission and reception equipment, 
control equipment and systems; data processing equipment and systems; electronic parts and 
components; metering instruments; telecommunications equipment; and scientific 
instruments; upon demonstration that the use is dependent upon or benefits from air 
transportation. 

(a) An industrial use is dependent upon air transportation if it requires a location at or 
adjacent to an airport to be economically viable.  Economic viability is measured by 
determining whether the use or activity would suffer an economic disadvantage if not located 
at or adjacent to an airport.  Considerations include the percentage of business done with air 
cargo; the industry’s dependence on air transportation by staff, management, sales, 
personnel, vendors, or clientele; the industry’s site size requirements; and the industry’s 
interest in locating in a non-metropolitan area of the state. 

(b) Industrial uses shall be considered dependent upon air transportation where: 

(i) More than 10 percent of the products produced would be shipped through air cargo; or 

(ii) More than 30 percent of gross sales would be with customers located out of state; or 

(iii) The business owns an aircraft, keeps it at their industrial site, and relies on the aircraft 
as an important tool or platform for their work; or 

(iv) Sales or service of the product requires a rapid response that can best be achieved 
through air transport; or 

(v) The use would suffer an economic disadvantage if not located at or adjacent to an 
airport. 

3/21/16
PAGE 136 



 
Sportsman Airpark Land Use Master Plan – June 5, 2006  
Ordinance No. 2006-2647  Page A-4 
 

(24)  Private streets that function as taxiways are allowed within the AI District and may 
include gates for safety purposes with designs approved by the Fire Marshall, at the limit of 
the taxiways. 

151.498.2 BUILDINGS AND USES PERMITTED CONDITIONALLY 

In addition to the buildings and uses permitted conditionally, listed in 151.211, the Planning 
Commission may grant a conditional use permit for any of the following buildings and uses in 
accordance with a Type III procedure: 

(A) Motels, hotels, and gift shops, upon demonstration that they are compatible with 
airport operations. 

(B) Cafeterias and restaurants, upon demonstration that they are compatible with airport 
operations. 

(C) Aeronautic recreational and sporting activities, including activities, facilities and 
accessory structures at airports that support recreational usage of aircraft and sporting 
activities that require the use of aircraft or other devices used and intended for use in flight.  
Aeronautic recreation and sporting activities authorized under this paragraph include, but 
are not limited to, fly-ins; glider flights; ultralight aircraft flights; displays of aircraft; and 
aeronautic flight skills contests.   

Part 13.2 AIRPORT INDUSTRIAL OVERLAY (AIO) SUB-DISTRICT 

151.498.3 PURPOSE 

The Airport Industrial Overlay (AIO) Sub-District is intended to support the continued 
operation and vitality of Sportsman Airpark by addressing potential land use conflicts with 
adjacent development.  It also addresses how properties in the area could be converted to 
Airport Industrial District. 

151.498.4 NOTICES AND RESTRICTIONS REQUIRED FOR DEVELOPMENT 
WITHIN THE AIRPORT INDUSTRIAL OVERLAY (AIO) SUB-DISTRICT  

(A) Avigation Easement.  When a subdivision plan or partition is required for any 
property within the AIO Sub-District, the property owner shall dedicate an avigation 
easement to the City over and across that property.  The easement shall hold the City, public 
and airfield, harmless from any damages caused by noise, fumes, dust , fuel, fuel particles, or 
other effects that may be caused by the operation of aircraft taking off, landing, or operating 
on or near the airfield, not including the physical impact of aircraft or parts there of. 

(B)   Notification of Buyers.  No person shall sell, nor offer for sale, any property within the 
AIO Sub-District unless the prospective buyer has been notified of the fact that the property is 
within the AIO Sub-District. When property ownership is transferred, the property deed shall 
be amended to note that the property is within the Airport Industrial Overlay Sub-district.   

3/21/16
PAGE 137 



 
Sportsman Airpark Land Use Master Plan – June 5, 2006  
Ordinance No. 2006-2647  Page A-5 
 

(C)   Agree to Noise Abatement.  No person shall sell, nor offer for sale, any property within 
the AIO Sub-District unless the prospective buyer agrees to follow Aircraft Owners and Pilots 
Association (AOPA) standard noise abatement procedures, or the most recent noise 
abatement procedures established at the airport.  

(D) CC&Rs:  The applicant for a subdivision or design review in the AIO Sub-District in 
the shall provide a copy of the CC&Rs in conformance to the requirements listed above. 

151.498.5 CONVERSION OF PROPERTY TO THE AIRPORT INDUSTRIAL 
DISTRICT 

Property within the Airport Industrial Overlay Sub-district may be converted to the Airport 
Industrial District at the request of the applicant concurrent with and through the approval of 
a subdivision with the Airport Industrial Overlay Sub-district.  Property may also be 
converted to the Airport Industrial District through the zone change process 151.122 

151.498.6 CONFORMANCE WITH THE AIRPORT OVERLAY (AO) SUB-DISTRICT 

All uses, activities, facilities and structures allowed in the Airport Industrial District and  
Airport Residential District shall comply with the requirements of the Airport Overlay (AO) 
Sub-District.  In the event of a conflict between the requirements of these Districts and those 
of the Airport Overlay (AO) Sub-District, the requirements of the overlay sub-district shall 
control.   

151.536  BUILDING HEIGHT LIMITATION. 

(B) Commercial and industrial: 
 
(2) In the AI, C-2, C-3, M-1, M-2, and M-3 Districts there is no building height limitation, except 
when said districts abut upon a residential district, the maximum permitted building height shall not 
exceed the maximum building height permitted in the abutting residential district for a distance of 
50 feet from the abutting boundary. 
 
151.550  GENERAL YARD REGULATIONS 

Add: 

(F) In the Airport Industrial District clear areas, safety areas, object free areas, taxiways, 
parking aprons, and runways may be counted as required yards for a building, even if located 
upon an adjacent parcel.   

151.551  FRONT YARD SETBACK 

(C) Industrial. All lots or development sites in the M-1, M-2 or M-3 Districts shall have a front yard 
of 20 feet.  Lots or development sites in the AI District shall have a front yard of 10 feet. 

 

3/21/16
PAGE 138 



 
Sportsman Airpark Land Use Master Plan – June 5, 2006  
Ordinance No. 2006-2647  Page A-6 
 

151.552  INTERIOR YARD SETBACK 

(C) Industrial. All lots or development sites in the AI, M-1, M-2 and M-3 Districts shall have no 
interior yards where said lots or development sites abut property lines of commercially or 
industrially zoned property. When interior lot lines of said districts are common with property 
zoned residentially, interior yards of not less than ten feet shall be required opposite the residential 
districts. 

151.565  LOT AREA; LOT AREAS PER DWELLING UNIT. 

(A)(2) In the AI, R-2, R-3, RP, C-1, C-2, and C-3 Districts, each lot or development site shall have 
a minimum of 5,000 square feet or as may be established by a sub-district. 

151.567   LOT DIMENSIONS AND FRONTAGE. 
 
(D) Frontage. 
 
(1) No lot or development site shall have less than the following lot frontage standards: 
 
(a) Each lot or development site shall have either frontage on a public street for a distance of at 
least 25 feet or have access to a public street through an easement that is at least 25 feet wide.  No 
new private streets, as defined in 151.003, shall be created to provide frontage or access. 
 
(b) Each lot in an R-1, R-2, R-3, AR, AI, or RP Zone shall have a minimum width of 50 feet at the 
front building line. 
 
151.580  REQUIRED MINIMUM STANDARDS (LANDSCAPING) 

(B) Required landscaped area. The following landscape requirements are established for all 
developments except single family dwellings.  

(1) A minimum of 15% of the lot area shall be landscaped; provided however, that computation of 
this minimum may include areas landscaped under subdivision (3) below. Development in the C-3 
(Central Business District) Zoning District is exempt from the 15% landscape area requirement of 
this section. Additional landscaping requirements in the C-4 District are described in § 151. 
527.4(K) of this code. In the Airport Industrial (AI) District only a 5% landscaping standard is 
required with the goal of “softening” the buildings and making the development “green” with 
plants where possible.  The existence of the runway, taxiway, and approach open areas 
already provide generally for the 15% requirement.  Developments in the Airport Industrial 
(AI) District with a public street frontage shall have said minimum landscaping between the 
front property line and the front of the building.  

 

 

 

3/21/16
PAGE 139 



 
Sportsman Airpark Land Use Master Plan – June 5, 2006  
Ordinance No. 2006-2647  Page A-7 
 

151.612  PARKING SPACES REQUIRED. 

[Add to Table under Industrial Types:] 

Use:  Aircraft Storage Hangars up to 3,600 sq. ft. each enclosed hangar area 
Parking Space Required: none (parking occurs in hangar) 

Use:  Aircraft Storage Hangars over 3,600 sq. ft. each enclosed hangar area 
Parking Space Required: 1 for every 700 sq. ft. of hanger area over 3,600 sq. ft. 

Use:  Aircraft Hangars intended for repair and maintenance operations      
Parking Space Required:  1 for each 5,000 sq. ft. of hangar, plus 1 for each 500 sq. ft. of shop 
area, plus 1 for each 400 sq. ft. of office area.   

151.617  OFF-STREET LOADING. 

(A) Buildings to be built or substantially altered which receive and distribute materials and 
merchandise by trucks shall provide and maintain off-street loading berths in sufficient number and 
size to adequately handle the needs of the particular use. 

(4) Where a facility includes an aircraft hangar, the off-street loading requirement is not 
required since loading may occur through the hangar doors. 

3/21/16
PAGE 140 



 
Sportsman Airpark Land Use Master Plan – June 5, 2006  
Ordinance No. 2006-2647  Page B-1 
 

APPENDIX B   

AIRPORT RESIDENTIAL (AR) DISTRICT &  
AIRPORT RESIDENTIAL OVERLAY (ARO) SUB-DISTRICT   June 5, 2006 

 

CITY OF NEWBERG DEVELOPMENT CODE LANGUAGE 
 
[“Bold” text indicates added language, “strikethrough” text indicates deleted language, and 
“normal” text indicates existing language to remain.] 

Part 13.3 AIRPORT RESIDENTIAL (AR) DISTRICT 

151.449.1 DESCRIPTION AND PURPOSE. 

The purpose of the City of Newberg Airport Residential (AR) District is to encourage and 
support the continued operation and vitality of Sportsman Airpark and to take advantage of 
the transportation options it provides by allowing airport-related residential uses.  Maximum 
overall density shall be 8.8 units per gross acre.   

151.449.2 PERMITTED BUILDINGS AND USES 

(A)  In the Airport Residential (AR) District, the following buildings and uses are permitted: 
as hereinafter specifically provided. 

(B)  The buildings and uses are subject to the general provisions and exceptions set forth in 
this code: 

(1) Residential Airpark Development, meaning one residence per lot with addition of a 
tiedown or hangar for an airplane.  At a minimum, a paved tiedown or hangar shall be 
provided on the property, or the property shall include permanent rights to a private hangar 
within a subdivision. 

(2) Accessory uses and structures: 

(3) Aircraft Hangar.  No aircraft hangar shall be constructed on any parcel or lot without 
a residential dwelling, except if it is provided with permanent rights to a nearby airpark 
residence as per (a) above.  An aircraft hangar cannot be used as a residence. 

(4)  Customary and usual aviation-related activities, including but not limited to takeoffs and 
landings; construction and maintenance of airport facilities; and other activities incidental to 
the normal operation of an airport.   

(5) Greenways, including but not limited to bicycle and pedestrian paths. 

(6) Public and semi-public buildings, structures and uses that provide necessary services 
to an airport, such as fire stations, pump stations and water storage. 

3/21/16
PAGE 141 



 
Sportsman Airpark Land Use Master Plan – June 5, 2006  
Ordinance No. 2006-2647  Page B-2 
 

(7) Transportation facilities and improvements 

(8) Private streets that function as taxiways are allowed in the AR District and may 
include gates with designs approved by the Fire Marshal, at the limit of the taxiways. 

Part 13.4 AIRPORT RESIDENTIAL OVERLAY (ARO) SUB-DISTRICT 

151.449.4 Purpose 

The Airport Residential Overlay (ARO) Sub-District is intended to support the continued 
operation and vitality of Sportsman Airpark by addressing potential land use conflicts with 
adjacent residential development.  It also addresses how properties in the area could be 
converted to Airport Residential District. 

151.449.5 NOTICES AND RESTRICTIONS REQUIRED FOR DEVELOPMENT 
WITHIN THE AIRPORT RESIDENTIAL OVERLAY (ARO) SUB-DISTRICT  

(A) Avigation Easement.  When a subdivision plan or partition is required for any 
property within the ARO Sub-District, the property owner shall dedicate an avigation 
easement to the City over and across that property.  The easement shall hold the City, public 
and airfield, harmless from any damages caused by noise, fumes, dust , fuel, fuel particles, or 
other effects that may be caused by the operation of aircraft taking off, landing, or operating 
on or near the airfield, not including the physical impact of aircraft or parts there of. 

(B)   Notification of Buyers.  No person shall sell, nor offer for sale, any property within the 
ARO Sub-District unless the prospective buyer has been notified of the fact that the property 
is within the ARO Sub-District. When property ownership is transferred, the property deed 
shall be amended to note that the property is within the Airport Residential Overlay Sub-
district.   

(C)   Agree to Noise Abatement.  No person shall sell, nor offer for sale, any property within 
the ARO Sub-District unless the prospective buyer agrees to follow Aircraft Owners and 
Pilots Association (AOPA) standard noise abatement procedures, or the most recent noise 
abatement procedures established at the airport.  

(D) CC&Rs:  The applicant for a subdivision or design review in the ARO Sub-District in 
the shall provide a copy of the CC&Rs in conformance to the requirements listed above. 

151.449.6 Density Transfer Allowances within the ARO Sub-district 

Due to the complexity and intermixing of roads, taxiways, and constructing hangars in an 
airport residential district, properties within the district may not be able to be developed to 
the density otherwise allowed.  Thus, the applicant for a subdivision or partition within the 
ARO district may transfer allowed dwelling unit density to other property within the ARO 
Sub-district and reduce minimum lot sizes such that the overall dwelling density complies 
with that of a conventionally developed R-2 zoned property. 

3/21/16
PAGE 142 



 
Sportsman Airpark Land Use Master Plan – June 5, 2006  
Ordinance No. 2006-2647  Page B-3 
 

Lot coverage may be calculated using the entire site area of both the donor and recipient area, 
excluding public and private street and alley areas.  The following dimensional requirements 
shall be applicable in the R-2 District in order to accommodate the density transfer provision 
of this Section:  front yard setback – 10 feet; Garage front yard setback – 18 feet; interior 
yard setback – 3 feet; Non-alley rear yard setback – 5 feet; Alley rear yard setback – 3 feet.  
Maximum lot depth to lot width ratio is 3:1.  The minimum lot width shall be 28 feet.  

151.449.7 CONVERSION OF PROPERTY TO THE AIRPORT RESIDENTIAL (AR) 
DISTRICT 

Property within the Airport Residential Overlay (ARO) Sub-district may be converted to the 
Airport Residential (AR) District at the request of the applicant concurrent with and through 
the approval of a subdivision with the Airport Residential Overlay (ARO) Sub-district.  
Property may also be converted to the Airport Residential (AR) District through the zone 
change process 151.122 

151.536   BUILDING HEIGHT LIMITATION. 

(A) Residential: 
 
(1) In the R-1, R-2, AR, and RP Districts, no main building shall exceed two and one-half stories, 
or 30 feet in height, whichever is lesser.  Accessory buildings in the R-1, R-2, R-3, AR, and RP 
Districts are limited to one story, or 16 feet in height, whichever is lesser, except that aircraft 
hangars in the AR District may be the same as the main building.   
 
151.550  GENERAL YARD REGULATIONS 

Add: 

(G) In the Airport Residential (AR) District clear areas, safety areas, object free areas, 
taxiways, parking aprons, and runways may be counted as required yards for a building, if 
located upon an adjacent parcel.   

151.551  FRONT YARD SETBACK 

(A) Residential (Figure X). 

(1) AR, R-1 and R-2 Districts shall have a front yard of not less than 15 feet. Said yard shall be 
landscaped and maintained. 

151.552  INTERIOR YARD SETBACK 

(A) Residential. 

(1) All lots or development sites in the AR, R-1, R-2 and R-3 Districts shall have interior yards of 
not less than five feet, except that where a utility easement is recorded adjacent to a side lot line, 
there shall be a side yard no less than the width of the easement. 

3/21/16
PAGE 143 



 
Sportsman Airpark Land Use Master Plan – June 5, 2006  
Ordinance No. 2006-2647  Page B-4 
 

151.556   YARD EXCEPTIONS AND PERMITTED INTRUSIONS INTO REQUIRED 
YARD SETBACKS 

(G) Hangars within the Airport Residential (AR) District may be constructed with no yard 
setbacks to property lines adjacent to other properties within the Airport Residential or 
Airport Industrial Districts. 

151.565  LOT AREA; LOT AREAS PER DWELLING UNIT 

(A) In the following districts, each lot or development site shall have an area as shown below except 
as otherwise permitted by this code. 

(1) In the R-1 District, each lot or development site shall have a minimum area of 7,500 square feet 
or as may be established by a sub-district. 

(2) In the AR, R-2, R-3, RP, C-1, C-2, and C-3 Districts, each lot or development site shall have a 
minimum of 5,000 square feet or as may be established by a sub-district. 

(B)(2)  In the R-2, AR, and R-P Districts, there shall be a minimum of 3,750 square feet of lot or 
development site per dwelling unit. 

151.567   LOT DIMENSIONS AND FRONTAGE. 
 
(D) Frontage. 
 
(1) No lot or development site shall have less than the following lot frontage standards: 
 
(a) Each lot or development site shall have either frontage on a public street for a distance of at 
least 25 feet or have access to a public street through an easement that is at least 25 feet wide.  No 
new private streets, as defined in 151.003, shall be created to provide frontage or access. 
 
(b) Each lot in an R-1, R-2, R-3, or RP Zone shall have a minimum width of 50 feet at the front 
building line. 
 
(c) Each lot in an AR Zone shall have a minimum width of 45 feet at the front building line. 
 
151.568  LOT COVERAGE AND PARKING COVERAGE REQUIREMENTS. 

(A) For all buildings and uses the following shall mean the maximum permitted lot coverage, 
maximum coverage of public or private parking areas or garages, and/or combined maximum lot 
and parking combined coverage required in the various districts expressed in percentage of the area 
of the lot or development site in which district such coverage is permitted or required (Fig. IV). 

(1) Maximum lot coverage. 

(a) R-1: 30%. 

3/21/16
PAGE 144 



 
Sportsman Airpark Land Use Master Plan – June 5, 2006  
Ordinance No. 2006-2647  Page B-5 
 

(b) R-2 and RP: 40%. 

(c) AR and R-3: 50%. 

151.580  REQUIRED MINIMUM STANDARDS (LANDSCAPING) 

(A) Private and shared outdoor recreation areas in residential developments. 

(3) In the Airport Residential (AR) District a 5% landscaping standard is required with the 
goal of “softening” the buildings and making the development “green” with plants where 
possible.  The existence of the runway, taxiway, and approach open areas already provide 
generally for the 15% requirement.   

 

3/21/16
PAGE 145 



 
Sportsman Airpark Land Use Master Plan – June 5, 2006  
Ordinance No. 2006-2647  Page C-1 
 

Appendix C: General Development Code Language Amendments  

Section 151.003 DEFINITIONS 
 
[“Bold” text indicates added language and “normal” text indicates existing language to remain.] 

AVIGATION EASEMENT.  A property right acquired from a land owner that grants the 
right-of-flight; the right to cause noise, etc., related to aircraft flight; the right to restrict or 
prohibit certain lights and electromagnetic signals; the right to unobstructed airspace over the 
property above a specified height. 

CLEAR AREA.  A land area required to be clear of obstructions per FAA regulations for 
airports and airspace. 

HANGAR.  A building for storage and maintenance of aircraft. 

OBJECT FREE AREA.  An area on the ground centered on a runway or taxiway centerline 
provided to enhance the safety of aircraft operations by having the area free of objects, except 
for objects that need to be located in the OFA for air navigation or aircraft ground 
maneuvering purposes. 

PARKING APRON.  A paved or grass area intended for parking aircraft. 

RUNWAY.  A defined rectangular surface on an airport prepared or suitable for the landing 
or takeoff of airplanes. 

SAFETY AREA.  A defined surface surrounding the runway prepared or suitable for 
reducing the risk of damage to airplanes in the event of an undershoot, overshoot, or 
excursion from the runway.   

TAXIWAY.  A defined path established for the taxiing of aircraft from one part of an airport 
to another.   

151.538  PUBLIC ACCESS REQUIRED. 

No building or structure shall be erected or altered except on a lot fronting or abutting on a public 
street or having access to a public street over a private street or easement of record approved in 
accordance with provisions contained in this code.  New private streets may not be created to 
provide access except as allowed under 151.449.2(B)(8) and 151.498.1(B)(24).  Existing private 
streets may not be used for access for new dwelling units, except as allowed under 151.567.  No 
building or structure shall be erected or altered without provisions for access roadways as required 
in the Uniform Fire Code, as adopted by the city.

3/21/16
PAGE 146 



 
Sportsman Airpark Land Use Master Plan – June 5, 2006  
Ordinance No. 2006-2647  Page C-2 
 

151.567   LOT DIMENSIONS AND FRONTAGE. 
 
(2) The above standards apply with the following exceptions: 
 
(a) Legally created lots of record in existence prior to the effective date of this code. 
 
(b) Lots or development sites which as a process of their creation, were approved with sub-
standard widths in accordance with provisions of this code. 
 
(c) Existing private streets may not be used for new dwelling units, except private streets that were 
created prior to March 1, 1999, including paving to fire access roads standards and installation of 
necessary utilities, and private streets allowed in the Airport Residential and Airport 
Industrial Districts. 
 

151.581  LANDSCAPING AND AMENITIES IN PUBLIC RIGHTS-OF-WAY. 

D. Exception. In the Airport Industrial (AI) District and Airport Residential (AR) District, no 
landscape or amenities except for grass are required for any area within 50 feet of aircraft 
operations areas including aircraft parking areas, taxiways, clear areas, safety areas, object 
free areas, and the runway. 

151.611  PARKING AREA AND SERVICE DRIVE DESIGN. 

Add:   

(C) In the Airport Industrial (AI) District and Airport Residential (AR) District, taxiways 
may be used as part of the service drive design where an overall site plan is submitted that 
shows how the circulation of aircraft and vehicles are safely accommodated, where security 
fences are located, if required, and is approved by the Fire Marshal, Planning Director, and 
Public Works Director. The following submittal must be made: 

(1) A drawing of the area to be developed, including the probable location, height, and 
description of structures to be constructed; the location and description of a security fence or 
gate to secure the aircraft operations areas of off-airport property from the other non-secured 
pedestrian/auto/truck areas of on-airport property; the proposed location of the proposed 
taxiway access in accordance with FAA specifications; (Refer to Federal Aviation 
Administration Advisory Circular No. 150/5300-13, regarding Airport Design, and AC/5370-
10B regarding Construction Standards for specifications that should be used as a guideline); 
and the identification of the vehicular traffic pattern area clearly separated from aircraft 
traffic. Once specific buildings have been designed, FAA Form 7460-1, Notice of Proposed 
Construction or Alteration, must be submitted to the City of Newberg, the private airport 
owner, and the FAA for airspace review. 

3/21/16
PAGE 147 



 
Sportsman Airpark Land Use Master Plan – June 5, 2006  
Ordinance No. 2006-2647  Page C-3 
 

151.620.2  WHERE REQUIRED (ON-SITE WALKS) 

Private walkways shall be constructed as part of any development requiring Type II design review, 
including mobile home parks. In addition, they may be required as part of conditional use permits or 
planned unit developments. In the Airport Industrial (AI) District and Airport Residential (AR) 
District, on-site walks are not required in aircraft operations areas, such as parking aprons, 
taxiways, and runways. 

 

 

3/21/16
PAGE 148 



 
Sportsman Airpark Land Use Master Plan – June 5, 2006  
Ordinance No. 2006-2647  Page D-1 
 

Appendix D: Yamhill County Existing GIS Property Data 

Attached is the following information: 

o Tax Map 

o Zoning Map 

o Property Values  

o Spreadsheets and Graphs concerning Future Values 

 

Tax Lot Map 

 

3/21/16
PAGE 149 



 
Sportsman Airpark Land Use Master Plan – June 5, 2006  
Ordinance No. 2006-2647  Page D-2 
 

 

 

Zoning 

 

 

 

 

 

3/21/16
PAGE 150 



Attachment 3, Appendix 2 3/21/16
PAGE 151 



3/21/16
PAGE 152 



3/21/16
PAGE 153 



3/21/16
PAGE 154 



3/21/16
PAGE 155 



3/21/16
PAGE 156 



Attachment 3, Appendix 3a
3/21/16
PAGE 157 



3/21/16
PAGE 158 



3/21/16
PAGE 159 



3/21/16
PAGE 160 



3/21/16
PAGE 161 



3/21/16
PAGE 162 



3/21/16
PAGE 163 



3/21/16
PAGE 164 



3/21/16
PAGE 165 



3/21/16
PAGE 166 



Attachment 3, Appendix 3b

3/21/16
PAGE 167 



3/21/16
PAGE 168 



3/21/16
PAGE 169 



3/21/16
PAGE 170 



3/21/16
PAGE 171 



3/21/16
PAGE 172 



3/21/16
PAGE 173 



Attachment 3, Appendix 3c

3/21/16
PAGE 174 



3/21/16
PAGE 175 



3/21/16
PAGE 176 



3/21/16
PAGE 177 



3/21/16
PAGE 178 



3/21/16
PAGE 179 



3/21/16
PAGE 180 



3/21/16
PAGE 181 



3/21/16
PAGE 182 



3/21/16
PAGE 183 



3/21/16
PAGE 184 



3/21/16
PAGE 185 



 
 
City of Newberg: RCA MOTION Page 1 

REQUEST FOR COUNCIL ACTION 

DATE ACTION REQUESTED: March 21, 2016 

Order       Ordinance       Resolution        Motion XX  Information ___ 

No. No. No. 

SUBJECT:  Adoption of Work plans/Timelines for 

City Council Strategic Priorities 

Contact Person (Preparer) for this 

Motion:  Stephen A. Rhodes, CMPT 

Dept.: City Manager 

File No.:  

 

RECOMMENDATION: 

Adoption of Work Plans/Timelines for implementation of City Council Strategic Priorities.  

 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY:   

On October 3, 2015 the Council and Department Heads met in a Strategic Objectives Planning Session to 

develop mid-range strategic priorities for the City.  The session was facilitated by Joseph Bailey.  The time 

frame for the priorities is considered to be 1-3 years. There were six priorities developed by the Council. 

These priorities are seen as precursors to a Strategic Plan and Visioning process that will be developed after 

the hiring of a new City Manager. 

 

The priorities relate to issues and needs in: Visioning, Technology, Funding/Fiscal, Project Planning, 

Communications and Staffing.  (See January 4, 2016 Agenda) 

 

At the January 4, 2016 Council meeting the Council adopted the six Strategic Priorities and directed staff to 

develop work plans for the implementation of the priorities.  The work plans for four of the priorities 

developed by staff are attached to this RCA.  The two priorities that do not have work plans are for 1) 

Visioning and 2) Communications.  Work on these priorities will commence this summer once the new City 

Manager has been appointed and begins work.  

 

 

FISCAL IMPACT:   

Fiscal impacts will be identified as a part of the annual Budget process that will begin in April. 

 

STRATEGIC ASSESSMENT: 

These priorities set the process in motion for the future development of a Strategic Plan and can assist in 

conducting a Community Visioning program. 

 

3/21/16
PAGE 186 



3/21/16
PAGE 187 



3/21/16
PAGE 188 



3/21/16
PAGE 189 



3/21/16
PAGE 190 



3/21/16
PAGE 191 



3/21/16
PAGE 192 



3/21/16
PAGE 193 



3/21/16
PAGE 194 



3/21/16
PAGE 195 



 
 
CITY OF NEWBERG PAGE 1 

REQUEST FOR COUNCIL ACTION 

DATE ACTION REQUESTED: March 21, 2016 

Order       Ordinance       Resolution     Motion        Information _XX_ 

No. No.  No.  

SUBJECT:  Information about a future Community 

Development Block Grant (CDBG) application for 

manufactured housing rehabilitation funds. 

Contact Person (Preparer) for this 

Motion: Steve Olson, Senior Planner 

Dept.: Community Development 

File No.: GR-16-002 

 

 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY:  The City is a member of the Yamhill County Affordable Housing Corporation 

(YCAHC), which provides low-interest (or no-interest) loans to low-income homeowners for home repairs. 

This is a revolving loan program, which is jointly administered by YCAHC and the Housing Authority of 

Yamhill County (HAYC). The program rules require that the homeowner have a certain level of equity in the 

home, and that they own the lot the home is on. This means that owners of manufactured homes in parks are 

not eligible for assistance, even though there is a significant unmet need for repairs to address health, safety 

and accessibility issues. 

 

The State has recently started to allow jurisdictions the option of applying for CDBG funds in order to give 

homeowners grants instead of loans. This option would allow the new grant funds to be used to assist the 

owners of manufactured homes in parks. YCAHC and HAYC are interested in submitting a 2016 CDBG 

application on behalf of the City with the goal of assisting the owners of manufactured homes in parks with 

grants for needed repairs. The City Affordable Housing Commission heard a brief presentation on the 

proposal and moved unanimously to support the submittal of the application. When the State announces that 

CDBG funds are available then YCAHC and HAYC will return to the City Council and ask for formal 

support for the grant application. No action is required at this time. 

 

FISCAL IMPACT: No significant fiscal impact to the City is expected. 

 

STRATEGIC ASSESSMENT (RELATE TO COUNCIL GOALS): Council Goal 7 is to “Manage 

and operate the City government in an efficient and effective manner”, and Objective 7.5 is to “Partner 

with other organizations to ensure systems for meeting the needs of the community’s underprivileged or 

disadvantaged citizens.” The City’s partnership with YCAHC assists low-income homeowners with 

needed repairs to their homes, helps maintain the existing affordable housing in the city, and allows the 

residents to stay in their homes.  

 

Attachments: 

 1. Letter from Darcy Reynolds, HAYC 

3/21/16
PAGE 196 



 
 
CITY OF NEWBERG PAGE 1 

 

Attachment 1: HAYC letter 

 

 

3/21/16
PAGE 197 



 
 
CITY OF NEWBERG PAGE 2 

 

3/21/16
PAGE 198 



 
 
City of Newberg: RCA INFORMATION Page 1 

REQUEST FOR COUNCIL ACTION 

DATE ACTION REQUESTED: March 21, 2016 

Order       Ordinance       Resolution        Motion        Information XX 
No. No. No. 

SUBJECT:  Newberg Financial Report for January 
2016 

Contact Person (Preparer) for this 
Item: Matt Zook 
Dept.: Finance 

 
 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY:   
Included with this report are the financial summary statements for January 2015.  These are provided for 
your information only.  No action is required. 
 
In general, the January report is on track with the budget.  The Supplemental Budget passed by Council 
on January 19, 2016 is reflected in this report.  Staff continues to evaluate the year-end estimates and 
prepare for the 2016-17 Proposed Budget. 
 

3/21/16
PAGE 199 



SUMMARY REPORT Current

YTD

Compare to

2015-16 MONTH OF 2015-16 Budget 2014-15

FUNDS BUDGET JAN 2015 YTD
58%

PRIOR YTD

City Budget Totals

Total Beg Fund Balance 33,764,928$   38,243,710$ 38,243,710$   113% 31,493,673    

Total Revenues 58,225,620     15,451,931   39,603,286     68% 38,656,956    

Total Beg Fund Bal & Revenues 91,990,548     53,695,642   77,846,997     70,150,629    

Total Expenses 67,465,423     15,334,518   36,396,559     54% 33,108,089    

Total Contingencies / Reserves 24,525,125     -                 -                  0% -                  

Total Exp & Contingen / Reserves 91,990,548     15,334,518   36,396,559     40% 33,108,089    

Total Monthly Activity Net Gain / (Loss) 38,361,124$ 

Total Ending Fund Balance 41,450,438$   37,042,541    

City Services

General Fund

Beg Fund Balance 2,528,413$     2,797,675$   2,797,675$     111% 2,835,743      

Revenues

General Government -                  -                 -                  0% 15,155.00      

Municipal Court 31,000            1,494             14,930            48% 15,800            

Police 1,074,135       75,254           613,263          57% 633,897          

Fire 330,504          137,354         234,075          71% 123,606          

Communications 59,686            14,894           44,681            75% 42,462            

Library 112,859          20,776           58,929            52% 88,966            

Planning 476,700          20,682           268,648          56% 283,778          

Property Taxes 7,200,000       144,801         6,643,124       92% 6,345,179      

Other Taxes 1,400              25                  150                  11% 358,090          

Franchise Fees 1,486,882       30,319           111,395          7% 91,527            

Intergovernmental 1,246,755       151,918         724,511          58% 707,075          

Miscellaneous 2,500              (78)                 5,651              226% 1,499              

Interest 7,300              1,771             5,251              72% 5,081              

Transfers 620,000          -                 -                  0% -                  

Revenue Total 12,649,721     599,210         8,724,608       69% 8,712,114      

Expenses

General Government 179,862          10,750           112,381          62% 213,701          

Municipal Court 382,464          26,816           208,877          55% 186,847          

Police 5,952,876       482,182         3,312,084       56% 3,210,725      

Fire 3,403,276       273,275         2,141,964       63% 1,871,074      

Communications 1,087,961       66,476           630,899          58% 620,425          

Library 1,311,025       100,468         781,008          60% 707,105          

Planning 626,365          48,847           350,440          56% 339,382          

Transfers 34,263            -                 12,323            36% -                  

Contingency 1,100,042       -                 -                  0% -                  

Unappropriated Ending Balance 1,100,000       -                 -                  0% -                  

Total Expenses 15,178,134     1,008,814     7,549,977       50% 7,149,260      

Monthly Activity Net Gain / (Loss) 2,388,071$   

Ending Fund Balance 3,972,306$     4,398,597      

JAN 2015

Page 1 of 83 

3/21/16
PAGE 200 



SUMMARY REPORT Current

YTD

Compare to

2015-16 MONTH OF 2015-16 Budget 2014-15

FUNDS BUDGET JAN 2015 YTD
58%

PRIOR YTD

JAN 2015

Public Safety Fee

Beg Fund Balance 134,969$        197,858$      197,858$        147% 196,153          

Revenues 480,600          40,456           283,366          59% 183,436          

Expenses 547,603          44,640           298,332          54% 267,981          

Contingencies / Reserves 67,966            -                 -                  0% -                  

Monthly Activity Net Gain / (Loss) 193,674$      

Ending Fund Balance 182,891$        111,609          

EMS

Beg Fund Balance 595,725$        806,952$      806,952$        135% 457,509          

Revenues 1,886,600       156,424         1,335,129       71% 1,140,209      

Expenses 1,911,034       134,972         992,233          52% 1,069,464      

Contingencies / Reserves 571,291          -                 -                  0% -                  

Monthly Activity Net Gain / (Loss) 828,404$      

Ending Fund Balance 1,149,849$     528,254          

911 Emergency

Beg Fund Balance 19,768$          20,940$         20,940$          106% 89,061            

Revenues 196,200          50,463           103,086          53% 99,138            

Expenses 204,628          23,575           125,940          62% 139,725          

Contingencies / Reserves 11,340            -                 -                  0% -                  

Monthly Activity Net Gain / (Loss) 47,828$         

Ending Fund Balance (1,914)$           48,474            

Civil Forfeiture 

Beg Fund Balance 19,596$          20,146$         20,146$          103% -                  

Revenues 4,100              12                  4,084              100% 3,590              

Expenses 23,696            -                 -                  0% -                  

Contingencies / Reserves -                  -                 -                  0% -                  

Monthly Activity Net Gain / (Loss) 20,158$         

Ending Fund Balance 24,230$          3,590              

Library Gift & Memorial

Beg Fund Balance 48,169$          86,434$         86,434$          179% 92,623            

Revenues 129,389          6,484             23,848            18% 37,183            

Expenses 171,000          1,503             19,695            12% 27,169            

Contingencies / Reserves 6,558              -                 -                  0% -                  

Monthly Activity Net Gain / (Loss) 91,415$         

Ending Fund Balance 90,587$          102,637          

Page 2 of 83 

3/21/16
PAGE 201 



SUMMARY REPORT Current

YTD

Compare to

2015-16 MONTH OF 2015-16 Budget 2014-15

FUNDS BUDGET JAN 2015 YTD
58%

PRIOR YTD

JAN 2015

Building Inspection

Beg Fund Balance 404,838$        620,378$      620,378$        153% 339,929          

Revenues 407,850          10,566           288,335          71% 372,875          

Expenses 500,497          38,233           263,362          53% 241,515          

Contingencies / Reserves 312,191          -                 -                  0% -                  

Monthly Activity Net Gain / (Loss) 592,711$      

Ending Fund Balance 645,351$        471,290          

Streets (Operating)

Beg Fund Balance 808,548$        798,186$      798,186$        99% 689,103          

Revenues 1,343,520       119,401         725,678          54% 714,447          

Expenses 1,549,803       87,670           905,409          58% 701,927          

Contingencies / Reserves 602,265          -                 -                  0% -                  

Monthly Activity Net Gain / (Loss) 829,918$      

Ending Fund Balance 618,455$        701,623          

Water (Operating)

Beg Fund Balance 3,294,255$     3,773,455$   3,773,455$     115% 4,783,887      

Revenues 9,984,346       5,495,950     8,939,522       90% 3,398,650      

Expenses 8,307,724       496,914         2,560,221       31% 2,648,441      

Contingencies / Reserves 4,970,877       -                 -                  0% -                  

Monthly Activity Net Gain / (Loss) 8,772,490$   

Ending Fund Balance 10,152,756$   5,534,096      

Wastewater (Operating)

Beg Fund Balance 4,403,799$     4,944,662$   4,944,662$     112% 7,576,184      

Revenues 13,033,100     7,137,994     10,679,679     82% 3,667,648      

Expenses 8,582,706       335,141         3,672,078       43% 4,237,701      

Contingencies / Reserves 8,854,193       -                 -                  0% -                  

Monthly Activity Net Gain / (Loss) 11,747,514$ 

Ending Fund Balance 11,952,263$   7,006,131      

Stormwater (Operating)

Beg Fund Balance 573,645$        731,487$      731,487$        128% 1,004,730      

Revenues 1,924,972       786,294         1,409,318       73% 679,284          

Expenses 1,685,057       118,712         859,526          51% 506,882          

Contingencies / Reserves 813,560          -                 -                  0% -                  

Monthly Activity Net Gain / (Loss) 1,399,068$   

Ending Fund Balance 1,281,279$     1,177,132      

Page 3 of 83 

3/21/16
PAGE 202 



SUMMARY REPORT Current

YTD

Compare to

2015-16 MONTH OF 2015-16 Budget 2014-15

FUNDS BUDGET JAN 2015 YTD
58%

PRIOR YTD

JAN 2015

Administrative Support

Beg Fund Balance 563,272$        588,457$      588,457$        104% 684,851          

Revenues 3,652,103       304,545         2,137,997       59% 2,124,679      

Expenses

City Manager 805,374          53,290           425,539          53% 155,100          

Human Resources -                  -                 -                  0% 77,219            

City Recorder -                  -                 -                  0% 67,605            

Emergency Management -                  -                 -                  0% 38                   

Finance 567,668          41,935           341,844          60% 339,114          

Gen Office(Postage/Phones) 155,000          11,826           82,237            53% 78,472            

Utility Billing 281,200          20,954           158,249          56% 150,269          

Information Technology 704,856          56,663           415,289          59% 381,602          

Legal 468,654          32,831           254,108          54% 251,904          

Fleet Maintenance 178,866          14,963           102,101          57% 90,372            

Facilities Repair/Replacement 471,312          25,627           215,102          46% 209,198          

Insurance 353,168          1,249             298,509          85% 244,182          

Transfers -                  -                 -                  0% 500,000          

Contingencies / Reserves 229,277          -                 -                  0% -                  

Total Expenses 4,215,375       259,337         2,292,978       54% 2,545,075      

Monthly Activity Net Gain / (Loss) 633,664$      

Ending Fund Balance 433,476$        264,455          

Capital Improvement Projects

Streets CIP's

Beg Fund Balance 164,193$        164,209$      164,209$        0% 109,838          

Revenues 778,425          57,313           628,423          81% 314,077          

Expenses 777,625          57,229           627,699          81% 313,649          

Contingencies / Reserves 164,993          -                 -                  0% -                  

Monthly Activity Net Gain / (Loss) 164,293$      

Ending Fund Balance 164,933$        110,266          

Water / Wastewater / Stormwater CIP's

Beg Fund Balance -$                -$              -$                0% -                  

Revenues 6,346,875       330,557         1,399,210       22% 4,942,038      

Expenses 6,346,875       330,557         1,309,459       21% 2,261,934      

Contingencies / Reserves -                  -                 -                  0% -                  -                  

Monthly Activity Net Gain / (Loss) -$              

Ending Fund Balance 89,751$          2,680,104      

Wastewater Financed CIP's

Beg Fund Balance (749,096)$       (749,096)$     (749,096)$       0% -                  

Revenues 1,500,000       -                 -                  0% 7,266,675      

Expenses 750,904          28,156           201,179          0% 6,263,780      

Contingencies / Reserves -                  -                 -                  0% -                  

Monthly Activity Net Gain / (Loss) (777,252)$     

Ending Fund Balance (950,275)$       1,002,895      

Page 4 of 83 

3/21/16
PAGE 203 



SUMMARY REPORT Current

YTD

Compare to

2015-16 MONTH OF 2015-16 Budget 2014-15

FUNDS BUDGET JAN 2015 YTD
58%

PRIOR YTD

JAN 2015

Street SDC

Beg Fund Balance 1,918,739$     2,574,473$   2,574,473$     134% 2,534,551      

Revenues 47,839            10,594           420,432          879% 427,503          

Expenses 259,125          44,859           165,999          64% 141,093          

Contingencies / Reserves 1,707,453       -                 -                  0% -                  

Monthly Activity Net Gain / (Loss) 2,540,208$   

Ending Fund Balance 2,828,906$     2,820,961      

Water SDC

Beg Fund Balance 36$                  1,239,405$   1,239,405$     3442793% 468,918          

Revenues 927,540          18,781           241,655          26% 303,573          

Expenses 846,856          100                758,100          90% 1,377,129      

Contingencies / Reserves 80,720            -                 -                  0% -                  

Monthly Activity Net Gain / (Loss) 1,258,086$   

Ending Fund Balance 722,960$        (604,638)        

Wastewater SDC

Beg Fund Balance 3,475,181$     4,175,483$   4,175,483$     120% 1,794,112      

Revenues 75,120            29,337           375,265          500% 968,472          

Expenses 739,361          1,864             286,564          39% 446,996          

Contingencies / Reserves 2,810,940       -                 -                  0% -                  

Monthly Activity Net Gain / (Loss) 4,202,956$   

Ending Fund Balance 4,264,184$     2,315,588      

Stormwater SDC

Beg Fund Balance 138,259$        131,416$      131,416$        95% 351,007          

Revenues 3,980              1,060             25,864            650% 24,965            

Expenses 3,125              100                1,466              47% 853                 

Contingencies / Reserves 139,114          -                 -                  0% -                  

Monthly Activity Net Gain / (Loss) 132,376$      

Ending Fund Balance 155,815$        375,119          

Page 5 of 83 

3/21/16
PAGE 204 



SUMMARY REPORT Current

YTD

Compare to

2015-16 MONTH OF 2015-16 Budget 2014-15

FUNDS BUDGET JAN 2015 YTD
58%

PRIOR YTD

JAN 2015

Debt

Debt Service (General Op)

Beg Fund Balance 206,309$        210,221$      210,221$        102% 195,259          

Revenues 896,711          27,034           750,681          84% 746,757          

Expenses 895,317          -                 551,022          62% 537,566          

Contingencies / Reserves 207,703          -                 -                  0% -                  

Monthly Activity Net Gain / (Loss) 237,254$      

Ending Fund Balance 409,880$        404,450          

City Hall 

Beg Fund Balance 529,638$        535,601$      535,601$        101% 576,115          

Revenues 89,400            5,588             48,697            54% 56,141            

Expenses 108,240          -                 95,224            88% 76,977            

Contingencies / Reserves -                  -                 -                  0% -                  

Unappropriated Ending Balance 510,798          -                 -                  0% -                  

Monthly Activity Net Gain / (Loss) 541,190$      

Ending Fund Balance 489,074$        555,279          

Reserves

Water Replacement Reserve

Beg Fund Balance 5,151,846$     5,151,846$   5,151,846$     100% 2,961,007      

Revenues -                  -                 -                  0% 614,619          

Expenses 5,151,846       5,151,846     5,151,846       100% 37,781            

Contingencies / Reserves -                  -                 -                  0% -                  

Monthly Activity Net Gain / (Loss) -$              

Ending Fund Balance -$                3,537,844      

Wastewater Replacement Reserve

Beg Fund Balance 6,446,100$     6,446,100$   6,446,100$     100% 1,234,745      

Revenues -                  -                 -                  0% 1,018,389      

Expenses 6,446,100       6,446,100     6,446,100       100% 1,525,304      

Contingencies / Reserves -                  -                 -                  0% -                  

Monthly Activity Net Gain / (Loss) -$              

Ending Fund Balance -$                727,831          

Stormwater Replacement Reserve

Beg Fund Balance 814,722$        684,702$      684,702$        84% -                  

Revenues -                  -                 -                  0% 52,229            

Expenses 814,722          684,702         684,702          84% 1,000              

Contingencies / Reserves -                  -                 -                  0% -                  

Monthly Activity Net Gain / (Loss) -$              

Ending Fund Balance -$                51,229            

Page 6 of 83 

3/21/16
PAGE 205 



SUMMARY REPORT Current

YTD

Compare to

2015-16 MONTH OF 2015-16 Budget 2014-15

FUNDS BUDGET JAN 2015 YTD
58%

PRIOR YTD

JAN 2015

Vehicle / Equipment Replacement

Beg Fund Balance 1,362,426$     1,362,426$   1,362,426$     100% 1,658,968      

Revenues 701,881$        52,932$         388,857$        55% 581,581          

Expenses

General Government 1,348              -                 -                  0% -                  

City Manager's Office 4,856              140                140                  3% -                  

Human Resources -                  -                 -                  0% -                  

City Recorder/Clerk -                  -                 -                  0% -                  

Finance 17,267            -                 284                  2% -                  

Information Technology 235,606          2,683             72,711            31% 164,397          

Legal 411                  -                 -                  0% -                  

Municpal Court 4,548              -                 560                  12% -                  

Police 533,867          13,259           136,440          26% 84,484            

Fire 516,625          -                 -                  0% 116,389          

Communications 106,716          -                 2,694              3% 6,149              

Library 11,374            1,902             2,764              24% -                  

Planning -                  -                 -                  0% 11,137            

Building 49,573            -                 280                  1% -                  

PW Administration 395,514          7,740             57,143            14% 108,213          

Fleet Maintenance 14,736            -                 232                  2% 254                 

Facilities Repair/Replacement 157,000          508                69,686            44% 6,213              

Contingencies / Reserves 14,866            -                 -                  0% -                  

Total Expenses 2,064,307       26,233           342,934          17% 497,237          

Monthly Activity Net Gain / (Loss) 1,389,125$   

Ending Fund Balance 1,408,348$     1,743,312      

Fire & EMS Equip Fee

Beg Fund Balance 244,012$        246,483$      246,483$        101% 174,453          

Revenues 143,700          12,282           85,724            60% 84,151            

Expenses 387,712          -                 11,179            3% 11,179            

Contingencies / Reserves -                  -                 -                  0% -                  

Monthly Activity Net Gain / (Loss) 258,765$      

Ending Fund Balance 321,028$        247,425          

Page 7 of 83 

3/21/16
PAGE 206 



SUMMARY REPORT Current

YTD

Compare to

2015-16 MONTH OF 2015-16 Budget 2014-15

FUNDS BUDGET JAN 2015 YTD
58%

PRIOR YTD

JAN 2015

Community Projects
Cable TV Trust

Beg Fund Balance 38,171$          37,339$         37,339$          98% 41,744            

Revenues 200                  19                  105                  53% 109                 

Expenses 38,371            -                 50                    0% -                  

Contingencies / Reserves -                  -                 -                  0% -                  

Monthly Activity Net Gain / (Loss) 37,358$         

Ending Fund Balance 37,394$          41,853            

Economic Development

Beg Fund Balance 629,395$        646,472$      646,472$        103% 643,183          

Revenues 66,448            4,823             39,476            59% 122,423          

Expenses 446,865          1,843             143,022          32% 80,472            

Contingencies / Reserves 248,978          -                 -                  0% -                  

Monthly Activity Net Gain / (Loss) 649,452$      

Ending Fund Balance 542,926$        685,134          

Transient Lodging Tax

Beg Fund Balance -$                -$              -$                0% -                  

Revenues 955,000          193,812         544,248          57% -                  

Expenses 955,000          11,417           80,264            8% -                  

Contingencies / Reserves -                  -                 -                  0% -                  

Monthly Activity Net Gain / (Loss) 182,395$      

Ending Fund Balance 463,984$        -                  

Page 8 of 83 

3/21/16
PAGE 207 



 
 
City of Newberg: RCA INFORMATION Page 1 

REQUEST FOR COUNCIL ACTION 

Date of Council Meeting: March 21, 2016 

Order       Ordinance       Resolution        Motion        Information XX 

No. No. No. 

SUBJECT:  Forward Looking Calendar,  

District 4 City Council Vacancy 

 

Contact Person (Preparer) for this 

Item: Sue Ryan, City Recorder 

Dept.:  

File No.:  

 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY:  These items are informational for the Council and the public. 

 

Newberg City Council Vacancy 
DISTRICT NO. 4 
A City Council position is vacant due to the resignation of Councilor Tony Rourke on March 7, 2016. 

The City Council shall appoint a qualified person to fill the position for the remainder of the term until 

December 31, 2018. 

The successful applicant will fill a vacant Council seat in District No. 4 with a term beginning upon 

appointment by the Council and expiring December 31, 2018.  

City Council members: ► Set policy for the entire City 

    ► Approve the City budget 

    ► Attend two Council meetings per month and committees as assigned. 

    ► Participate in intergovernmental relations 

    ► Supervise City Manager, City Attorney and Municipal Judge 

    ► Various other responsibilities of running a municipal corporation 

Candidates must:  ► Be a registered voter 

    ► Resided within the City of Newberg for at least one year. 

    ► Reside within the boundaries of District No. 4 

Candidates must:  ► Fill out a City volunteer application 

    ► Submit a resume 

    ► Apply by March 28 

   
Questions ?: Contact City Recorder Sue Ryan at sue.ryan@newbergoregon.gov or call (503) 537-1283. Visit 
online at https://www.newbergoregon.gov/citycouncil/page/newberg-city-council-vacancy 

 

 

STRATEGIC ASSESSMENT (RELATE TO COUNCIL GOALS): To keep the citizenry informed. 

TERMS & CONDITIONS 

QUALIFICATIONS & RESIDENCY REQUIREMENTS 

TO APPLY: 

3/21/16
PAGE 208 

mailto:sue.ryan@newbergoregon.gov
https://www.newbergoregon.gov/citycouncil/page/newberg-city-council-vacancy


 

G:\Common\Recorder\Council Packet\Forward Looking Calendar\COUNCIL forward looking calendar.doc 

NEWBERG CITY COUNCIL  

2016 FORWARD LOOKING CALENDAR  

 

Monday, April 4, 2016 

Work Session – Design Star Kids presentations 

Work Session – Newberg Animal Shelter contract review 

Presentation on Chamber quarterly report 

Presentation on Waste Management annual report 

Resolution 3270 Public Works Operation Plant Mechanic 

Resolution 3255 To hire tourism consultant 

Yamhills Inc. Liquor License 

Resolution Aquarius Street Wastewater lateral replacement contract bid award 

Quasi-Judicial Public Hearing on Ordinance 2799 Rourke annexation 

Administrative Public Hearing on Resolution: water hardship request for 1650 NE Chehalem Drive  

Resolution tentative on Master Fee Schedule Adoption 

Marijuana Tax 

Resolution 3265 Updating performance standards for charter employees 

Council Business – Discuss District 4 appointment 

 

Saturday, April 9, 2016  9:00 a.m. to 3:00 p.m. 

Executive Session City Manager 1st round interviews 

 

Monday, April 18 Meeting will start early at 5:00 p.m. for joint City/County meeting 

5:00 p.m. – Joint meeting with Yamhill County Commissioners 

6:00 p.m. – Town Hall for community 

Resolution on Yamhill County CDBG Housing grant 

Resolution Adopting Newberg Economic Development strategy 

Resolution Wastewater Treatment Plant Sodium Hypochlorite Generation System Contract Award 

Resolution 3260 Murray Smith Villa contract amendment 

 

Saturday, April 24 9:00 a.m. to 3:00 p.m. 

Executive Session City Manager Finalist interviews 

 

Other upcoming Council meetings 

Monday, March 28 – 6:00 p.m. Economic Development Strategy Meeting, Springbrook Room at 

Friendsview on Hayes Street 

Thursday, April 14 – 6:00 p.m. Chehalem Future Focus at Cultural Center 

Saturday, April 16 – 9:00 a.m. to 2:00 p.m. Budget Committee Tour and orientation 

 

3/21/16
PAGE 209 


	Business Session Agenda
	Newberg Cultural District
	February 16 Council Minutes
	Resolution 3267 Library Assistant Hire
	Ordinance 2798 Rec Marijuana rules
	Resolution 3262 Relay for Life Festival Day
	Sportsman Airpark FAA Dev Rights program
	Council Priorities work plans
	CDBG Grant application info
	January 2016 Financials
	Council Calendar



